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Ocala-Marion County
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I 1

June 6,2003

Citzns Honorable Mayor,
&MembersofCityCouncil
CityHall
Ocala, Florida 34478

Ladies and Gentlemen:

It is a pleasure to submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the City of Ocala, Florida for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002. The
report fulfills the requirements set forth in the Florida Statutes, Chapter 166.241(4)
and the Rules of the Florida Auditor General, Chapter 10.550.

This CAFR is controlled by and is the responsibility of City management. We
believe that the report accurately and fairly presents the financial position, re-
sults of operations of all fund types and cash flows of proprietary fund types of
the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding
of the City's financial activities have been included. The report is structured to
be of interest to the public, local government officials, state agencies and the
banking and financial community in general.

With the presentation of the CAFR for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002, the City is implementg GovernmentAccouning Standards Board (GASB)
StaementNo.34,BasicFiancl Sta ntand M eDiscussion andAnaly-
sis for State and Local Governments, which represents a dramatic change in govern-
mental financial reporting. The format and purpose of these changes are addressed in
the ManagementDiscussionandAnalysis(Seepage3). Additionallythenotestothe
financial statements discuss the changes (See Notes 1 and 1 1) and explain the effects
of these changes.

With this CAFR,
the City is
implementing
GASB 34...
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In developing, maintaining and evaluating the City's accounting system, manage-
ment has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to ensure that the City's assets are protected from loss, theft or misuse and
that sufficient reliable accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GenerallyAcceptedAccounting Principles
(GAAP). This internal control structure is intended to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable as-
surance recognizes that (1) the cost ofcontrol should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management The City's chart of accounts substantially complies
withtheUnifomAccouning System as prescribed by Chapter 3A-61 ofthe Forda
Administrative Code.

The Florida Statutes require an independent audit of the books, financial records -

and transactions of all administrative departments ofthe City bya Certified Public
Accountant selected by City Council. The goal of the independent audit is to pro-
vide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City are fiee ofmate-
rial misstatement The audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by mnagement; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor has concluded,
based upon the audit, that there is a reasonable basis for rendering and unqualified
opinion that the financial statements presented herein are in conformity with GAAPR
The auditor's report on the City's general-purpose financial statements, the com-
bining and individual find statements and the schedules is included in the Financial
Section ofthis report.

The CAFR is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical.
The Introductory Section contains the table of contents, this transmittal letter, the
Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 2001 CAFR
and the City's organizational chart.

The Financial Section includes the Independent Certified Public Accountant's Re-
port on the City's Basic Fmancial Statements, Management's Discussion andAnaly-
sis, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to Financial Statements, Required Supple-
mentary Inrmation, and the Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements
and Schedules.

The Statistical Section includes selected unaudited financial and demographic in-
formation designed to enhance the reader's understanding ofthe City's past and its
fixture potential.

ii
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threesections:
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Financial and
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The Notes to Financial Statements in the Financial Section are necessary to under-
stand the the statements. The notes include a summary ofsignificant accounting poli-
cies and other necessary disclosures relating to the financial position of the City.

All City finds are included in this report. The City of Ocala provides a full range of
general services, including police and fire protection; general government; culture and
recreation; and the constmction and maintenance of highways, streets and infiatruc-

- ture.

The City has ten enterprises thatprovide finmil support and ahigh qualityofservice
to its citizens. The eneprise funds include two hampionshipgolfcourses with a total
of45 holes and clubhouse facilities, garbage and trash pick-up service (both back
door and curb-side), water and sanitary sewer services, electric utility service, an
airport (Ocala International Airport/Jim Taylor Field), an adult athletic complex, a
broadband communications network, a municipal trailer park, an emergency training
facility and a regional mass transit system.

The financial activities of all municipal boards and commissions are included in the
City's financial statements. Only the Ocala Housing Authority does not meet the
established criteria for reporting and is excluded from this report. The Community
Redevelopment Agency is included because of City Council's capacityto significantly

_ influenceftheiroperations.

Budgetary controls are maintained on an nnual allotmentbasisbasedonpriorworing
capitalandevenueprojectionsforthecurrentyear. Expendituresandencumbrances
are reported against budgeted appropriations. At mid-year, City department heads
are required to reassess their appropriations for the remainder of the year, and if

- necessary, a budget revision is prepared and submitted for City Council approval.
The Finance andAdministrative Services Director coordinates the budget process.
Unliquidated purchase order balances, as ofSeptember 30, are reapprated in the
form ofa supplemental appropriation resolution, which is presented for adoption by
City Council. Thisresolutionalsoincludesaprovisiontocary-forwardmaorprojects
not completed in the previous yearthat are not covered bypurchase orders. All items
inthis resolution are subject to a working capital availability test. Monthly reports are
distributed to the various departments to keep them informed of their year to date
expenditures, encumbrances and funds availability.

The City has ten
enterprises that
provide
financial
support and a
high quality of
service ...
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Local Demographic Statistics

Population growth has averaged less than one percent per year for the last ten years.
The growth has resulted primarily from new residents relocating to the City from
other areas of the country and, to a lesser extent, the annexation of approximately
eight square miles during the ten-year period.

... City
population has

grown slowly
over the last
decade. . .
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The increasing property values are due to a combination of new construction, annex-
ation and reassessments of existing property in the area. Ad Valorem taxes based on
property values are a major revenue source to the City's General Fund for providing
public safety and other essential City services.
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- After many years of a relatively constant millage rate, the rate was increased by ap-
proximately 10.6 percent in 2001 in order to increase the general fund balance to a
more appropriate level and to provide necessary public safety capital and operating

- resources in excess of baseline budgets. The City Council in striving to keep the
millage rate at the lowest level possible while continuing to provide quality service to
the citizens of Ocala. The rate was reduced by one percent in 2002.

IMillage Rates
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- The City has experienced a steady increase in the tax levies due to a 46 percent
increase in the assessed valuation of property within the City over the last ten years.
The constant millage rate (1993) shows that the City's increase in tax levies is largely
due to the increase in assessed valuation rather than an increase in the millage rate.

.... assessed
valuation of
properties has
increased 46
percent in the
same decade ...
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Ocala Electric Utilities, the City's Electric Deparlnent, remains competitive with other
local electric companies in the average cost to consumers. The current year decreases
reflect the recent decreases in the cost of energy over the previous year.

|Yearly Average Cost of 1000 KHWs|
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Ocala Electric
Utilities remains
competitive with

other local electric
companies ...

Due to the in-migration of older citizens, the median age of the County has increased
in recent years. The 2000 numbers were adjusted to be consistent with updated
2000 census data.

Personal income per capita measures the ability to pay taxes and other costs for City
services. It demonstrates to credit rating agencies the capability of local governments
to repay debts without creating a hardship for its citizenry. In the community, the
economy supports some expendable income. Most of the dollars are allocated by
individuals to pay for necessities, e.g. food, clothing, etc. Additionally, some percent-
age of income supports the cost of government To the extent personal income levels
do not keep pace with inflation, there is a commensurate reduction in an individual's
ability to pay for governmental services.
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Personal Income per Capita
for Marion County Residents
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Historically, Marion County has experienced an unemployment rate similar to the
unemployment rate ofthe State of Florida, but in fiscal year 2002, Marion County did
significantly better. This is attributible to the City's efforts in economic development.
The City's Electric Utility allocates dollars annually to leverage against other commu-
nity resources, which has resulted in a much stronger employment base. The City's
unemployment rate has consistently been better than the State of Florida and national
averages.

In 2002,
Marion County

did significantly
better than the

State of Florida
in regard to

unemployment
* *.
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Major Industries affectinz the Local Economy

Horse breeding, dominated by Thoroughbreds and Arabians, is a major industry in
the Ocala area. The tourist industry also has a significant impact on the economy, with
Silver Springs Attraction and the Ocala National Forest nearby. Some other local
industries making Ocalathe place fortheir operations are Emergency One, Inc., Clairson
International Corporation (Closet Maid), K-Mart Corporation (K-Mart Distribution
Center), Merillat Industries, Inc., Class I, CarQuest, Cingular Wireless Call Center
and Signature Brands, LLC.

vii
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Future Economic Outlook

OcalwMarion County population growth rate ranks 27th among Florida's 67 coun-
ties. Net migration to Marion County is expected to outpace job growth for the
intermediate and long-term future, ensuring a sufficient workforce to meet the needs
ofthe expanding local economy. The City's Economic Improvement Fund (EIF) is
used to help new industries set up their operations in Ocala.

The much-anticipated improvements in economic conditions did not occur during
fiscal year 2002. Concerns over a too-slow recovery, international tensions and the
posibility ofwarhave combined to keep investment ins at a low leveL In addition,
shortfalls in the State budget primarily due to a decline in touism post-911 and the
passing of several very costly Constitutional amendments in recent years threaten
future Revenue Sharing funds for the City and other local governments. These condi-
tions could impose difficult economic times and tight budgets for the City over the
next few years.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year

The City's major goals for 2002, as directed by the City Council, were to maintain
orderly growth, increase the public's and employees' confidence in Council's proce-

The City wi|l dures, continue the viability ofthe City electric utility, proceed with economic devel-
The City will opment activities, reduce the crime rate to zero, develop and support community

continue programs, and improve communication and cooperation with other governmental
to upgrade bodies.

infrs~ucre .. .l
Inflrastrcture improvement projects are still underway in the electric and water and
sewer systems. During fiscal year 2002, the City continued construction of Water
Reclamation Facility #3, which is approaching completion. Anew Customer Service
Facility for the Electric Utility was substantially completed during the year The City
also continues to renovate existing City buildings. For a number ofyears, the City and
Marion County have shared the costs of improvements of some major arterial streets.
In 2002, the City approached completion of Phase B of the SE 3 1 Street road
project and began major improvements to SW 19& Avenue Road (Easy Street).

In addition, the following programs and projects are underway to foster growth and
development inthe community as a whole:

Congruent with the Council's policy objective of providing services to low in-
come individuals inthe community, "Operations Inastcture" provides grants to
qualified property owners to pay utility connection fees and related expenses.
This funding is coupled with the CDBG allocation to provide ample funding to
meet the needs ofthe southwest quadrant ofthe community. The southwest quad-
rant is the first phase ofthe project.
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* During the fiscal year 2001, the Council adopted a water and sewer rate ordi-
nance. Efvectuation ofthe rate structure in the ordinance is providing the needed
revenue to support an expansive five-year capital improvement program, which
includes the construction ofWater Reclamation Plant #3.

* In September, the 1992 Optional Gas Tax Refinding Revenue Bonds were re-
finded. As a result of this action, the City realized over $224,000 in annual sav-
ings on debt service payments. These monies are being allocated to roadway
improvernerit

* During fiscal year 2001, staffin the Electric Deparlment conducted a workshop
with Council related to long-term planning for the electric system. There were
several projects identified that are geared toward making the system more reli-
able and efficient The magnitude ofthe total five-year capital improvementpro-
gramis$39.5 million.

* The Telecommunications Fund generated a profit for fiscal year 2002. This is
primarly attibutable to he City departments paying a rate for telephone services
that is half of that charged by Sprint These rates will be adjusted periodically to
be consistent with the market

* The Recreation and Parks department continues its facility improvements and the
acquisition ofnewparkland. During fiscal year 2002 the City began construction
of family water parks at the Martin Luther King Center and Jervey Gantt Park.
The funding source for these parks are neighborhood enhancement funds.

For thze Future

The Citywill continue toupg infistruc, and programs are areadyunderway
to improve and expand the electric system, the water and sewer system and streets.
The City has developed a capital improvementprogramthat includes $77million in
water and sewerprojects, which include the new waterreclamationplant and several
replacement and renewal projects. Aportion ofthe capital improvements was fi-
nanced through the issuance of the Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.
Additionally, the Electric Utility has an expansive $39 million capital improvement
program, which will add capacity for the future.

The City has also embarked on key activities related to downtown development.
These activities include creating selected site-specific redevelopment plans, an overall
strategic development schedule and a comprehensive marketing analysis. Those ac-
tivities will lead to planned physical development that complements and enhances the
downtown Community RedevelopmentArea (CRA).

The City saved
over $224,000
in annual debt
service payments
by refunding
bonds. . .
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The City has
committed to lead
the revitalization
effort of the West

Ocala Historic
District ...

The City ofOcala has committed to taking the leading role in the revitalization efforts
ofthe West Ocala Historic District, which was listed on the National Register of
Historic Places in June 2002. The City is currently in the process of developing new
housing programs that will include faade grants for existing housing and plans for
new affordable infill housing, Public-private partnerships with Habitat for Humanity,
financial institutions, developers, contractors and building supply companies are also
being pursuedto ficilitate the revitalization efforts. It is anticipated that private owners
will follow the city's lead by either participating in the faWade program or by working
with banks and private developers. The City is also working on infrastructure im-
provements to the water and sewer systems, drainage, streets and sidewalks as well
as historic street signage and stop signs.

A week-long celebration of Racial Harmony and Cultural Awareness is planned in
2003 by the City Of Ocala. The observance will bring together diverse groups of
citizens to promote racial harmony, encourage appreciation and respect for cultural
differences and spotlight racial and cultural issues that need to be addressed in the
community.

In September, the City issued $17.6 million in Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Im-
provement Revenue Bonds and $14.3 million in General Government Capital fin-
provement Revenue Certificates. The proceeds from the gas tax bonds will refund
the outstanding 1992 gas tax bonds and finance the City's share ofthe improvements
for Southeast 20& Street, Southeast Lake WeirAvenue, Southeast Ft. King Street,
State Road 200A, andNorthwest44*Avenue. These projects willbejointlyfunded
by the City of Ocala and Marion County and negotiations are currently underway to
determine how to apportion the costs to each government.

The General Capital Improvement Certificates will finance economic development,
City aquatic ficilities, replacement ofthe 800 MHz radio system, a financial manage-
ment system, and other park and road projects and special transportation-related
projects.

OTHER INFORMATION

Pension Trust Fund Overations

The City sponsors separate contributory defined benefit pension plans for its Police
Officers and its Firefighters and a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan for all
other full-time employees. The assets of each plan are managed by multiple invest-
ment managers and the board of each plan retains an advisor who prepares quarterly
reports evaluating the results achieved by the plan's investment managers. Each year
independent actuaries engaged by the various pension boards calculate the amount of
the annual contribution that the City must make to the pension plans to ensure that
they will be able to fully meet their obligations to the City's retirees.
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Due to adverse market conditions, the combined Pension Trust Funds experienced a
$6.4 million decrease in plan net assets during 2002. The combined funds had a net
investment losses of $4,627,424 and $4,526,963 for the years ending September
30,2001 and 2002, respectively, resulting from realized and unrealized investment
losses wichmore than offset dividend income. As aresult, the City has increased its
contribution for fiscal year 2003 to all employees pension plans by 1.25 percent of
payroll, from 6.65 percent to 7.9 percent In addition, for fiscal year 2003 the police
officers are increasing their contribution by 3 percent of payroll to a total of 8 percent
and the firefighters are increasing their contribution to 8.42 percent of payroll.

Debt Administration

At September 30,2002, the City had $155,315,000 in outstanding serial and term
bonds and certificates. Ofthis amount, $101,665,000 is associated with enterprise
finds and $53,650,000 is associated with governmental funds. Both ofthe City's
issues carry the highest ratings. Debt coverage ratios for the City's bond issues are
included in the statistical section of this report Although the City may issue general
obligation debt in an amount up to 20 percent of the assessed valuation ofthe taxable
real and personal property in the City according to article IX, §9.02, of the City
Charter, there is no general obligation debt outstanding.

In Fiscal Year 2002, the City issued $17.6 million in Optional Gas Tax Refunding and
Improvement Revenue Bonds and $14.3 million in General Government Capital Im-
provement Revenue Certificates. All ofthese issues are fully insured and secured by
appropriate revenue streams.

Cash Manafement

The City is authorized by Florida Statutes to invest in obligations ofU.S. agencies,
interest-bearing time deposits, savings accounts in banks and in savings and loan

- associations. additionthe Cityhas an investmt policy, which broadens the instu-
ments in which the City can invest The primary objective ofthe City's investment
policy is the safety and preservation of principal, liquidity and yield while minimizing
risk.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in the State Board ofAdministra-
tion Local government Surplus Trust Fund, which is an investment pool administered
by the State of Florida. At September 30,2002, these investments with the State
Board ofAdministration were eamning 1.89 percent

Duringfiscal 1998, the CitybiredSawgrassAssetManagement, L.L.C. as its invest-
ment manager to maximize earnings. Sawgrass Asset Management, within the con-
fines of the City investment policy, invests the City reserve funds in broadly diversified
U.S. Govemment U.S. Agency and corporate debt obligations. Compliance to the
temis of the City investment policy resticfions with regard to credit and market risk is
strictly monitored. Sawgrass investments range from 30 days to 7 years to maturity

Each year,
the City adjusts
the amount
contributed to its
pension plans to
ensure that they
will meet
thefuture needs
of retirees ...
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with the average maturity of 28.8 months deriving a yield of 7.2 percent. The City's
investment portfolio of$106,922,560 managed by SawgrassAsset Management at
September 30, 2002 consisted of U. S. Government and federal agency securities
(59 percent), corporate bonds (39 percent) and cash equivalents (2 percent). Inter-
est earnings on those investments during fiscal year 2002 were $5,641,690.

Risk Manazement

The Intergovernmental Risk Management Department was established through an
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Ocala and Marion County in 1987. The
department is charged with minimizing the impact of risk on the organizations' re-
sources. To achieve this goal the following programs have been established within the
department

Employee Insurance - Health Benefits, Dependent Coverage, Life Insurance,
Disability sance

Employer Insurance - Workers Compensation, Property, Auto, General and
Professional Liability IrsuranceClaims Management
and SafetyActivities

Environmental - Compliance with Federal, State and Local
Environmental Regulations. Environmental Site
Assessments of City properties and properties the
City is considering acquiring.

The City has
received

twenty
consecutive
awards for
Excellence

in Financial
Reporting ...

More detailed information about the City's insurance coverage can be found in the
Statistical Section ofthis report.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
to the City of Ocala, Florida for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended September 30,2001. This was the twentieth consecutive year that the
City of Ocala has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certifi-
cate ofAchievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both gener-
ally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that
our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet theAchievement
Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOAto determine its eligi-
bility for another certificate.
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The Citywas awarded the DistinguishedBudget PresentationAward bythe Govern-
ment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada for its annual
budgets for the fiscal years beginning October 1, 1987 through 2001 In order to
receive this award, which is valid for a period of one year only, a governmental unit
must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as apolicydocument, as
an operations guide, as a financial plan and as a communications medium.
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the dedicated service ofthe entire staffofthe Finance and Administrative Services
Department. Sincere appreciation is extended to specific individuals who worked
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ChiefAccountant; Cheryl Knight, Accountant m; Robert Coggin, Accountant m;
Stephanie Miller, ManagementAnalyst and Myron Taylor, Revenue Officer. Appre-
ciationis also extended to Eric Lewerenz, the City's Internal Auditor for his assistance
in this efforL

In closing, without the leadership and suport ofthe City Council, whose continued
interest in maintaining a financially sound government as an invaluable asset to our
community, the preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfulysubmitted,

DonaldA. Corley
Finnce&Administraive City Manager
Services Director

The City was
awarded the
Distinguished
Budget
Presentation
Award by the
GFOA ...

xiii



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Ocala,
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2001

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers

Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting

and financial reporting.

I~~~~~~~

President

Executive Director

xiv



CITY OF OCALA
Organizational Chart

xv



i

I

I

I



PurvisG rayv
Company

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Ocala
Ocala, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ocala, Florida, (the City) as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2002, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Citys
management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2002, and the respective changes in
financial position and the cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in note 11, during the year ended September 30, 2002, the City adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 34, 37, 38 and Interpretation 6.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 4, 2003, on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the results of our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Laurel Ridge Professional Center * 2347 S.E. 17th Street Ocala, Florida 34471 * (352) 732-3872 * FAX (352) 732-0542

MEMBERS OF AMERICAN AND FLORIDA INSTITUTES OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS PRIVATE COMPANIES AND S.E.C. PRACTICE SECTIONS



The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Ocala
Ocala, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT -

(Concluded)

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the major fund budgetary comparison information as listed
in the table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary
information required by the GASB. We applied certain limited procedures, consisting principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary X

information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively _
comprise the Citys basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, schedules, and statistical tables listed in the table of contents are
presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. We subjected
the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, this information is fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

April 4,2003 t
Ocala, Florida /..
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CIlY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

The City's management discussion and analysis presents an overview of the City's financial activities for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002. Please read It in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal,
beginning on page , and the City's financial statements beginning on page 12.

Financial Highlights

* The assets of the City exceeded Its liabilities at the dose of fiscal year 2002 by $430,486,307
(net assets). Of this amount, $103,246,834 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* At September 30, 2002, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $52,034,075, an increase of $21,865,972 In comparison with the prior year, due mainly to the
unspent proceeds from the Optional Gas Tax and Capital Improvement revenue bonds that
were Issued during September, 2002.

* At September 30, 2002, unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was
$4,942,327 or 7.4% of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

* Governmental funds revenues Increased $3,572,284 or 8.1% over the prior fiscal year.

* The City's outstanding long-term debt Increased by $33,612,493 during fiscal year 2002. The
key factor contributing to this Increase was the Issuance of Optional Gas Tax and Capital
Improvement revenue bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis Is intended to serve as an ntroduction to the City's basic financial
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) govemment-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information In addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Govemment-Wide financial statements

The govemment-we financial statements, which consist of the following two statements, are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, In a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents Information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, Increases or decreases In net assets may
serve as a useful ndicator of whether the financial position of the City Is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activtes presents information showing how the government's net assets changed
during fiscal year 2002. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event, giving
rise to the change, occurs, regardless of the mng of reated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some Items that will only result In cash flows In future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected and earned, but unused vacation leave).

Both of these financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (govemmental acttiies) from other functions that are Intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City nclude general government, public safety, public works, culture
and recreation, and housing rehabilitation. The business-type activities of the City include its electric
utility, solid waste disposal, water and sewer utilities, golf courses, airport and public transportation.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Fund financial statements

A fund Is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmenta hinds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
acdies In the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govemment-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-tern Inflows and ouflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful In evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds Is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
Information presented for governmental acves in the govemrnment-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term Impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains several Individual governmental funds. Infornation is presented separately In the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes In fund balances for the General Fund, which Is considered to be a major fund. Data from
the other governmental funds are combined Into a single, aggregated presentation. ndMdual fund data
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds Is provided in the form of combining statements In the
other supplemental Information section of this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, special revenue and certain capital
projects funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for these funds to demonstrate
budgetary compliance.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 18 of this report.

Proprletay finds

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterpdse fumds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type acties (electric utility, water and sewer, sanitation, etc.) in the
government-wide financial statements. nternal sevice Aunds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses the Internal
service fund to account for its Internal service, fleet management, and self-Insurance and risk
management programs. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental aciviies In the government-wide
financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for all of the City's
proprietary funds.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 28 of this report.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected In the govemment-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds Is similar to proprietary funds. The fiduciary funds of the City are pension trust funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29 and 30 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional Information that Is essential to a full understanding of the data provided In
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 31 through 54 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, requied supplementary
Information Is Included which presents budgetary comparison schedules for the City's general fund as
well as historical trend information for pension trust funds. Required supplementary Information can be
found on pages 55 through 59 of this report.

The combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules referred to eadlier In connection with
nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds are presented in the other supplemental Information
section of this report Combining and individual fund schedules for the nonmajor governmental funds as
well as for the internal service funds can be found on pages 60 through 85 of this report.

Govemment-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $430,486,307 at the dose of the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002.

At the end of fiscal year 2002, the City Is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for Its separate governmental and business-type
activities.

CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
NEr ASSETS

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Curent and otherassets $ 75,447,299 $ 140,419,883 $215,867,182
Capital assets (net) 168,436.856 239,850,148 408,287,004

Total Assets 243.884,155 380.270,031 624,154,186

Cunrent and otherliabilities 11260.216 27,196,981 38,457,197
Long-term liabilities 56.144,974 99.065.708 155.210.682

Total Uabilities 67.405,190 126.262689 193,667,879

Net Assets:
Ivested in capital assets,

ret of related debt 115,625,140 141,875,832 257,500,972
Restricted 37,546,316 32,192,185 69,738,501
Unrestricted 23.307,509 79.939,325 103,246,834

Total Net Assets $ 176,478,965 $ 254007342 S 486.307
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CIlY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

The largest portion of the City's net assets (59.8%) are reflected in the investment In capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, and equipment); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City's Investment In its capital assets Is reported net of related debt. it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these labilities.

The remaining balance of unmeshted net assets ($103,248,834) may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors and to provide the funding for various projects. There was a
net Increase of $13,944,288 In net assets reported in connection with the City's business-type activities.
This represented al 7.4% Increase of total unrestricted net assets for business-type activities at year-end.
Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $483,408, thereby accounting for 3.4% percent
of the total growth in the net assets of the City.

CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES:
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Other

Total Revenues

Governmental
Activities

S 5.979,540
8,107,358

27,512

12,436,199
13.230,084
7,275,381

45.056,072

Business-Type
Activitles

S 132,440,619
845,718

4,010,287

Total

$ 138,420,159
6,93.0`74
4,037,799

- 12,436,199
- 13,230,084

5,172,632 1.2.z013
142.4e9.2We 187,525,328

EXPENSES:
General Government
Pubic Safety
PublicWorks
Culture and Recreation
Housing Rehabilitation
Non-departmental
Other
Interest On Long Term Debt
Electric
Water and Sewer
Sanltation
Munopal Golf Courses
Municipal Traller Park
International Airport
Emergency Training Facility
Adult Athletic Complex
Communications
Suntran

Total expenses

5,932,435
24,889,143
16,209,451
4,199,839

338,440
258,040

1,195,309
1,608,387

54.629.024

90,426,168
14,165,701
7,770,720
2.667,599

96,207
888,865
441,677
191.705
618,371

1,221,17
118,468,830

5,932,435
24,889.143
16,209.451
4,199,839

336,440
258,040

1,195,309
1,608,387

90,426,168
14.165,701
7,770.720
2867,599

96,207
868,865
441,677
191,705
818,371

1,221,817
173,097,654

Change In Net Assets Before Transfers
Transfers
Change In Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

(9,572,952)
10,056.358

483,408
175,995,559

S 178,962371

24,000,628 14,427,674
(10,05B,358) -
13,944,268 14,427,674

240,063,074 416,058,633
S 267,951,610 $ 444,913.981
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTMTIES

% of Program % of
Expmses To Rein laW

Not (Expene)
hRvnu

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Housing Rehabilitation
Non-departmental
Other
Interest On Long Term Debt

$ 593Z435
24,889,143
16,209,451
4,199,839

336,440
258,040

1,195,309
1,608,367

10.8%
45.6%
29.7%

7.7%
0.6%
0.5%
2.2%
2.9%

$ 3,005,306
1,766,135
5,421,484

621,444
336,440

963,599

24.8%
14.6%
44.7%

5.1%
28%
0.0%
8.0%
0.0%

$ (2,927,129)
(23,123,008)
(10,787.957)
(3,578,395)

(258,040)
(231,710)

(1,608,367)

54,E29E 100.0% 12G114O408 100.0% (4514616

REVENUES BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTMVTIES

A _ummM
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Business-type activities

Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $13,944,268, accounting for 96.6% of the total
growth in the government's net assets. Key elements of this increase are the increases in net assets of
the Electric and Water and Sewer funds of $8,140,170 and $5,906,875, respectively.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTMTIES

%of
ToM

PRgm %of
Total

Not (Expense)
Remnu*Functlons/Prourams

Electric
Water and Sewer
Saniation
Muicipal Golf Courses
Muicipal Trailer Park
Internalional Airport
Emrgency Training Facility
Adult Athlefic Complex
Comlmmufllorts
Suntran

$ 90,426,168
14,165,701
7,770,720
Z87,599

96.207
868,865
441,677
191,705
618,371

1,221,617

76.3%
12.0%

S.5%
23%
0.1%
0.7%
0.4%
0.2%
0.5%
1.0%

$105,994,448
18,432,720
7,308,36
2,147,531

97,12B
706,441

13,426
96,323

1,112,618
1,387,627

77.2%
13.4%
5.3%
1.6%
0.1%
0.5%
0.0%
0.1%
0.8%
1.0%

$ 15,588,280
4,267,019

(482,354)
(520,068)

919
(162,424)
(428,251)
(95,382)
494,245
166,010

$118,468,630 100.0% $137,296,624 100.0% $ 18,827,904

REVENUES BY SOURCE - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Charges for
Services -

93.0%

Operaftng Grants
and Contributions

0Ol%

Capital Grants andV Contributions

2.8%

Investment Income
3.6%

A comparative analysis of govemment-wide data will be presented in future years when the information is
available.

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Governmental funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable esoures. Such informnation Is useful In assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of fiscal year 2002, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $52,034,075, an increase of $30,184,966 In comparison with the prior year, due mainly to the Issuance
of Gas Tax and Capital Improvement bonds. Unreserved fund balance of the governmental funds Is
$13,926,923, of which $8,984,596 Is designated for specific projects. The unreserved and undesignated
fund balance of $4,942,327 Is available for spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of fund
balance Is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed.

The General Fund Is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2002, the fund
balance of the General Fund was $13,926,923, all of which was unreserved. Of the total unreserved fund
balance, $8,984,586 is designated for specific projects and $4,942,327 Is unreserved and undesignated.
As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it is useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. In this case, they are one In the same and represent a
healthy 33.2% of the total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $526,142 during the current fiscal year. Key
factors in this growth are as follows:

An Increase In revenues of $2,420,278 over fiscal year 2001, primarily In taxes, which was
predominately due to the communication services tax

* Expenditures Increased by $3,361,891, primarily In public safety and public works.

* Less than 100% of the appropriated budget was expended.

Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of Information found in the govemment-wide financial
statements, but In more detail. All proprietary funds are reported as major funds.

Unrestricted net assets of proprietary funds at the end of the year amounted to:

Unrestricted

Fund Net Assets
Electric System Revenue $ 48,702,517
Water and Sewer 49,387,347
Sanitation 918,530
Municipal Golf Course (514,019)
Municipal Trailer Park 114,613
Ocala International Airport (1,039,667)
Adult Athletic Complex (342,988)
Communications 233,023
SunTran 70
Total $ 97,459,426

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have been addressed in the discussion of the City's
business-type activities.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The following is a brief review of the budgeting changes from the original to final budget (please see
budget to actual comparison on page 55).

The Increase In revenue was primarily attributable to a $1,521,999 Increase in other ntergovernmental
revenues. This was offset In part by a $45,287 decrease In charges for services revenue. The
corresponding Increases In appropriations are primarily attributable to a $2,482,888 increase in capital
outlay, a $779,025 increase In other current expenditures and a $1,081,533 decrease in nondepartmental
appropriations.

The budget anticipated $7,382,286 to be expended from available Fund Balance. During the year,
however, revenues exceeded and expenditures were less than budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the
need to draw upon existing fund balance. In large measure, this was due to the transportation capital
program. The years actual operations resulted in a $528,142 positive position.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City's Investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September
30, 2002 amounts to $408,287,004 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment In capital assets
includes land, buildings, Improvements other than buildings, leasehold Improvements, equipment,
Infrastructure, and construction In progress. The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets
for the current fiscal year was 7.6%, attributable almost entirely to business-type activities. Major capital
asset changes Implemented during the current fiscal year Included the following:

* The capital assets related to governmental activities were restated to Include infrastructure.
Infrastructure was not previously capitalized by the City.

* The majority of the increase In capital assets attributable to business-type activities occurred
in the Water and Sewer Fund. The construction of the Citys new Water Reclamation Facility
# 3 was In process during the year,

* To a lesser extent, the Increase In capital assets attributable to business-type activities
occurred In the Electric System Revenue Fund with the construction in progress of the new
Customer Service Office.

CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
CAPITAL ASSETS

Land
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildngs
Crystal River Unit # 3
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

Less: Accumulated Depredation
Capital Assets, Net

Govemmental
Activities

$ 5,038,165
25,954,755

30,599,653
248,573,201

12,595,020
322,760,794

(154,323,938)
$ 168,438,856

Business-Type
Activiffes Total

$ 17,274,041 S 22,31Z206
10,100,818 38,055,573

264,698,065 264,698,065
16,168,423 18,168,423
9,401,972 40,001,625

- 248,573,201
37,230,277 49,825,297

354,871,596 677,632,390
(115,021,448) (269,345,386)

$ 239,850,148 $408,287004

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 43 - 44 of this report.

10



CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Long-term debt

At the end of fiscal year 2002, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $162,762,398. Of this
amount, $155,315,000 represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue
bonds). $53,650,000 of the revenue bonds are applicable to governmental activities, and $101,685,000
are for the business-type activities. Other items included In long-term debt Include self-insurance claims
payable and compensated absences.

The City's bonded debt had a net Increase of $21,840,000 or 16.4% during fiscal year 2002. The key
factor In this Increase was the Issuance of Gas Tax and Capital Improvement revenue bonds.

Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, were Issued In September,
2002, and consisted of $15,500,00 In serial bonds and $2,065,000 of term bonds. The proceeds of this
Issue are being used for the current refunding of the outstanding Optional Gas Tax Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 1992, and for the financing of the costs of acquisition and construction of certain roads and
road improvements within the City.

Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 2002, were Issued In September, 2002, and consisted
of $14,340,000 In serial certificates. The proceeds of this Issue are being used primarily for the purpose of
financing certain capital Improvements within the City.

Additional nformation on the City's debt can be found In Note 6 on pages 48 - 50 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

* The unemployment rate for the City at September 30, 2002 was 4.9 percent. This represents no
change from the prior year.

• The taxable value of commercial and residential property Increased 6.38 percent In the 2002 fiscal
year.

• Building permit activity decreased 23.8 percent for residential and Increased 40.3 percent for
commercial In the 20O2 fiscal year.

* Population increased approximately .6 percent from the prior fiscal year to 46,543 at September 30,
2002.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance In the General Fund Increased to $13,926,327, of
which $8,984,596 Is designated for special projects. Of the remaining $4,942,327 unreserved and
undesignated fund balance, the City has appropriated $137,948 of this amount for spending In the
adopted budget for fiscal year 2003. The ad valorem tax rate for the General Fund was not increased for
the 2003 fiscal year budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report Is designed to present users with a general overview of the City's finances and to
demonstrate the CiR's accountability. If you have questions concerning any of the Information provided
in this report or need additional financial Information, please contact the City's Finance and Administrative
Services Department at 151 SE Osceola Avenue, Ocala, Florida 34471, or call (352) 6294373.

11
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Assets
Cash and Investments
Equity In Pooled Cash Fund
Receivables (net)
Internal Balances
Due From Other Governments
Inventories
Other Assets
Capital Assets, net of accumulated

depreciation:
Land
Buldings
Improvements Ot ergthn Buidings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructue
Construction in Progress

Total Assets

Governmental
Activities

$ 26,102262
42,024.929

662.744
893,368

4,887,329

876,667

5,038,165
17,290,694

12,518,409
120,994,568
1Z595,020

243,884,155

Business
Type

Activities
$ 25,327,556

93,842.825
17,256,433

(893,368)
944,987

2,522,421
1.419,029

17,274,041
6,691.427

175,023.238
3,631,165

37,230,277
380,270031

Total
$ 51,429,818

135,867,754
17,919,177

5,832,316
2,522,421
2,295,696

22.312,206
23,982,121

175,023,238
16,149,574

120,994,568
49,825,297

624,154,186

iablitles
Accounts Payable
Accrued Uabilities
Deferred Revenue
Other Uabilifies
Long Term Labilities:

Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year

Total Uablities

6,703,555
631,638

1,454,411

2,470,612
56,144,974
67,405,190

15,793,532
2,380,367

657,285
3,284,693

22,497,067
3,012,005
2111,6
3,284,693

5,081,104 7,551,716
99,065,708 155,210,682

126,262,689 193,667,879

Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, Net Of Related Debt
Restricted For:

Special Revenue Activities
Capital Projects
Debt Service

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

115,625,140

12,104,585
24,856,731

585,000
23,307,509

$ 176,478,965

141,875,832

31,110,052
1,082,133

79,939,325
S 254,007,342

257,500,972

12,104,585
55,966,783

1.667,133
103,246,834

$ 430,486,307

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial Statemnts.

12



I

CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Housing Rehabilitation
Non-departmental
Other
Interest On Long Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

Expenses

$ 5,932,435
24,889,143
18,209,451
4,199,839

338,440
258,040

1,195,309
1,608,387

54,629,024

Charges For
Services

$ 2,564,083
694,778

2,178,140
409,650

134,891

5,979,540

rogram Revenues
Operating
Grants and C

Contributions Cc

$ 441,223 $
1,063,347
3,245,344

192,294
338,440

Capital
Grants and
mntributions

8,012

19,500

828,708 -

6,107,358 27,512

Business Type Activities:
Electric
Water and Sewer
Sanitation
Municpal Golf Courses
Municipal Trailer Park
International Airport
Emergency Training Facility
Adult Athletic Complex
Communications
Suntran

Total Business Type Activities

90,428,168
14,165,701
7,770,720
2,667,599

98,207
868,865
441,677
191,705
618,371

1,221,817
118,468,630

105,442,675
15,640,830
7,308,366
2,147,531

97,128
432,748

13,428
96,323

1,112,818
148,978

132.440.619

4,500
91,459

547,273
2,700,431

- 273,693

749,759 488,890
$ 845,718 $ 4,010,287$ $ 

-

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes
Utility Service Taxes
Other Taxes

State Shared Revenues
Investment Income
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total General Revenues, Speicial Items and Transfers
Change In Net Assets
Net Assets-Beginning
Net Assets-Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Change In Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

$ (2,927,129)
(23,123,008)
(10,787,967)
(3,578,395)

(258,040)
(231,710)

(1,608,367)
(42,514,616)

Business-type
Activities

$

Total

$ (2,927,129)
(23,123,008)
(10,787,967)

(3,578,395)

(258,040)
(231,710)

(1,608,367)
(42,514,616)

15,568,280
4,267,019
(462,354)
(520,068)

919
(162,424)
(428,251)

(95,382)
494,245
166,010

$ 18,827,994

15,568,280
4,267,019
(462,354)
(520,068)

919
(162,424)
(428,251)

(95,382)
494,245
166,010

$ 18,827,994$

$ 12,436,199
9,826,251
3,403,833
4,384,898
2,642,330

248,153
10,056,358
42,998,022

483,406
175,995,559

$ 176,478,965

$

5,172,632

(10,056,358)
(4,883,726)
13,944,268

240,063,074
$ 254,007,342

$ 12,436,199
9,826,251
3,403,833
4,384,898
7,814,962

248,153

38,114,296
14,427,674

$ 14,427,674
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

General
Fund

Assets
Cash and Investments
Equity In Pooled Cash Fund
Receivables (net)
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Other Assets

$ 4,735
16,998,940

348,995
935,574

1,742,857
18,919

Other
Governmental

Funds

$ 28,098,427
10,822,107

110,099
104,119

3,144,472
782

Total
Governmental

Funds

28,101,182
27.821,047

459,094
1,039,693
4,887,329

17,701

Total Assets $ 20,048,020 $ 40,278,008 $ 60,328,026
_

-

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Uabilities
Deferred Revenue
Advances To Other Funds
Total Liabilities

$ 4,149,034
1,012,781

833,708
125,578

6,121,097

$ 1,430,218
99,182

820,705
20,749

2,170,854

$ 5,579,252
1,111,983
1,454,411

148,325
8,291,951

Fund Balances:
Reserved For

Debt Service Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects

Unreserved:
Designated For Specific Projects
Unreserved and Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

1,145,838
12,104,585
24,858,731

1,145,838
12,104,585
24,858,731

8,984,598
4,942,327

52,034,075

8,984,596
4,942,327

13,926,923 ,= 38,107,152

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 20,048,020 $ 40,278,008 $ 60,328,028

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA. FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds $ 52,034,075

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of
assets are different because;

Capital assets used In governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported In the funds. The
cost of the assets Is $ 287,975,733, and the accumulated
depredation Is $137,180,074.

The Internal service fund Is used by management to charge the
costs of fleet management, risk management, Information
technology and other services to Individual funds. The assets
and liabilities of the nternal service fund are Included In
governmental activities In the statement of net assets.

150,795,659

27,714,565

Long term liabilities are not due and payable In the current period
and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long
term debt Is not accrued In governmental funds, but rather is
recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities-both current
and long term are reported In the Statement Of Net Assets. Long
tern liabilities at year end consist of:

Revenue bonds and certificates
Less: Deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as

Interest expense).
Deferred charge for Issuance costs (to be
amortized over life of debt)
Bond discount (to be amortized over life of debt)

Accrued Interest payable
Compensated absences

(53,650,000)

202,315

567,157
68,812

(560,836)
(692,782)

Total net assets of governmental activities $ 176,478,965

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements
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I
CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Revenues
Property Taxes
Utility Service Taxes
Other Taxes
State Revenue Sharing
Other Intergovernmental Revenues
Parking Meters and Facilities
Ucenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Charges For Services
Investment Income
Gifts
Other

Total Revenues

General
Fund

S 12,273,927
9,826,251

395,596
1,391.703
5,371,927

1,055,928
395,292

1,857,905
992,330
106,820
659,282

34,326,961

Other
Governmental

Funds
162,272

6,602,088
62,673

8,471
2,173,980

785,199
58,584
11,043

9,864,310

Total
Governmental

Funds
$ 12,436,199

9,826,251
395,596

1,391,703
11,974,015

62,673
1,055,928

403,763
4,031,885
1,777,529

165,404
670,325

44,191,271

Expenditures
Current

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Housing Rehabilitiation
Nondepartmental
Other

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal Payments
Interest and Fees

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues Over

Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Transfers Out
Bond Proceeds
Bond Discount
Payment To Refunding Bonds Escrow Agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change In Fund Balances
Fund Balances-Beginning
Fund Balances-Ending

5,323,862
23,546,305
5,482,418
3,922,136

336,440
215,439

1,067,762
1,979,978

11,438
41,885,778

(7,558,817)

10,584,830
(2,499,871)

8,084,959
528,142

13,400,781
$ 13,926,923

398,282

3,241,735

567,157
73,281

6,482,375

3,385,000
1,768,234

15,916,064

(6,051,754)

3,696,647
(1,718,936)
31,905,000

(68.812)
(6,422,315)
27,391,584
21,339,830
16,767,322

$ 38,107,152

5,722,144
23,546,305

8,724,153
3,922,136

336,440
782,596

1,141,043
8,462,353

3,385,000
1,779,672

57,801,842

(13,610,571)

14,281,477
(4,218,807)
31,905,000

(68,812)
(6,422,315)
35,476,543
21,865,972
30,168,103

$ 52,034,075

-A

/

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of activities are
- different because:

Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds $ 21,885,972

Govemmental funds report capital purchases as expenditure. However, In the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This reconciling item is the amount
by which capital purchases of $8,462,353 exceeded depreciation expense of
$7,487,038 974,915

The issuance of bonds and similar long term debt provides current financial resources
to governmental funds and thus contribute to the change In fund balance. In the
statement of net assets, however, issuing debt increases long term liabilities and does
not affect the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets. Also
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premium, discounts, and similar
items when debt Is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized In
the statement of activities. The amounts of the items that make up these differences In
treatment of long term debt and related Items are:

Debt issued or incurred:
Issuance of bonds (31,905,000)
Bond discount 68,812
Bond Issuance costs 567,157

Principal repayments:
Bonds and Certificates 3,385,000

Payment to escrow agent for refunding 6,422,315

Some expenses reported In the statement of activities such as compensated absences
- and accrued Interest, do not require the use of current financial resources and are not

reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
Compensated absences (136,479)

- Accrued Interest on long term debt 171,305

The Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of activities that
benefit the entire government. The net Income (expense) of the nternal service fund
is reported with governmental activities. (930,591)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 483,406

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVES -

Electric
System
Revenue

Water
and Sewer

Municipal
Golf

Course

Municipal
Trailer
Park

-1

Sanitation
Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Equity In pooled cash and

ivestnent fund
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts and notes receivable
Accrued unbilled revenues
Due from other funds
InterfUnd loans receivable
Inventories
Due from other governments
Other current assets

Total curnt assets

$ Z300

40,823,709
414,885

9,283,009
6,737,420

138,650
55,659
,048,542

325203
59,829,377

250 $ - S 4,128 $ 100

2970,678
227,977
105,608

6B2,248

35.397

160
24,00Z318

1,150,588
9,132

339,760

1,499,480

33,927
1,229

65

81.127

4,009
124,485

117.253
1.153

70

1,700

120,276

Restricted Assets
Cash and Investments:

Crystal RIver Decomissioning Trust
Construction accounts
Debt service accounts

Equity In pooled cash and
Investment fund

Construction accounts
Impact fee accounts
Renewal and replacement

Accrued Interest receivable:
Construction accnts
Impact ee accounts
Renewal and replacement

Due frtom other governments
Other

Total restricted assets

Capital Assets, Net

Other Assets:
InterfUnd Loans Receivable After

One Year
Issuance Costs on Long-Term Debt

Total other assets

5,178,140

2,122,B78

347,043

6,208,692

3,513

62,685

13,922,751

13,250,080
4.769,780

8,552,487
6,170,212
7,317,707

221,694
58,753
74,387

291.980
40,705.080

80,531286 127,167,917 282,841 4,388,139 43,333

$ 1,762321 $ 4,512,624 S 163,609

1,802,347
68,512

1,870,859
729,102
729,102 I

Total Assets $ 158,154,273 192,604,417

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.

-
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Ocala
International

sArpr

Florida
Emergency

Training
Facility

Adult
Athletic
Complex

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTINVITIES

Internal
Service
Funds

Comnm[-
cations munTrmn Tota2

An.... ... . . A.

$ 100 $ - $ - $ $

150,529
2,240
3,549 51,064

$ 6.878 $

65,246,684
656,616

9,443,365
6.737,420
1.14D,656

55,659
Z522,421

844,422
329,435

86.983.558

14,203,882
156,166
47.484

235,588

56,221
14.700.441

1,100

357,355

63
156,418 - - 408,482

842,722

842722

5,178,140
13,250,080
6,892,458

8,899,530
6,170,212

13,526,399

100,565

100,5-

20,029,727 - 1,36ZB23 4,750,447 1.313,635

$ 20,286,710 $ - $ 1,362,823 $ 5,158,929 $ 2,156,357

225,207
56,753

137,072 -

100,565 -

291,980 -

54,728,396

239,850,148 17,641,197

1,802,347
797,614 -

Z599961 -

$ 384,162,063 $ 32,341,638

(Contnued)
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

UIabilitles and Fund Equity

Current Uabilities.
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Compensated absences payable
Accrued Interest payable
Due to other funs
Customer deposit
Deferred revenue
Interhnd loans payable

Total current iabillties

Liabilrdes Payable from Restricted Assets
Accounts payable
Accrued Interest payable
Deferred revenue
Revenue bonds payable within

one year
Decommissioning coss

Total liabilities payable
from restricted assets

Noncurrent Uabilities
IntedUnd Loans Payable After One Year
Compensated absences payable
Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable

After One Year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested In capital assets, nt of

related debt
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for renewal and replacement
Unrestricted (accumulated deFit)

Total net assets

Electric
System

Revenue

$ 10.125.275

307.120
2909

1,43201 1
3,284,693

Municipal
Gol

Municipal
TrailerWater

and Sewer

S 308.783

89.522

-

15,152,008 398,305

182678

1.940.000
5.178.140

4,284,661
2194,780

623,295

2,575,000

Sanitation Course Park

S 350,695 S 77,783 3,346

119,236 37,431 531

30,447
- 38,751

469,931 184,412 3.877

- 429,846
111,019 24,248 1,786

111,019 454,092 1.788
580,950 838,504 5,683

262841 4,388,139 43,333

918,530 (514.019) 114,613
S 1,181,371 S 3.874.120 S 157,948

7,300,818 9,677.738

-

209,787

8,166,037
8,375,824

30,828,650

70.425,249

6.197.857
48,702517

S 125,325,823

73,885

85.293,279
85,387,164
95,443,205

39,299,838
1,082,133
7,392,094

49,387,347
S 97,161,212

-4

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements.

21

I



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Ocala
International

Airport

Florida
Emergency

Training
Facility

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTVITIES

hflernal
Service

Adzu
Athletic
Complex

S 44,589 $

3,157

- $ 5.347

2,855

- 332,489

Conmml-
cations

$ 28,260

6.252

138,650

SunTran

$ 564,793

277,201

658

842,652

Total Funds

$ 1 1,508,871 $ 1,124,303

- 3,26.247
566,104 122,953

2,909 -
2,180,351 -
3,284,693 -

33,990
38,751

17.615,669 4,513,503

2,885

50,631 - 340,691 - 173,162

4,284,661
2,377,458

623,295

4.515.000 -

5,178.140 -

- - 16,978,554 -

1.243,084
2,s35 2,297

1,672,930
428,2522,297 113,570

1,245,019
1.296,650

'-

- 2,297
- _ 342,988

2,297
175,459 842,652

1,313,635

70
$ 1,313,705

93.459,316
95,580,498

130.154,721

141,875,832
1,082,133

13,589,951
97,459,428

S 254,007,342

113,570
4,627,073

17,641,197

10,073,368
$ 27,714,565

20,029,727

(1,039,667)
VS7 18,S90,060

- 1.362,823 4.750,447

- (342,988) 233,023
$ - $ 1,019,835 $ 4,983,470
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ClY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

Electric
System Water
Revenue and Sewer

Municipal
Gof

Course

Municipal
Trailer
Park

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Purchase of electricity
Disiution
Operation and maintenance
Water and sew treatment
Sewer collection
Internal service
Administration
Depreciation and amortization
Economic Improvement Incentives
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating Income (ss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income
Interest expense
Other non-operating revenue

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses)

S 101,633,156
3,809,519

105,442,675

65,703,W8
10,258,353
2704,919

5,243,381
4,109,020

25Z333
1,45,653

89,925,307

1517,38

2883,103
(500,81)
551,773

S 14,835,707
889,123

15,724,830

1,377,126

2,655,147
1,681,514

1,783,837
3,843,266

22,245
11,363,185

4,381,845

Sanitation

S 7,303,359
5,007

7,308,360

7,164,401

489,975
116,344

7,770,720

S 1,873,126 S 97,043
274,405 83

2,147,531 97,128

Z328,977 92,706

76,004
228,431 3,501

Z=633412 96,207

(485,881) 919

13,242 6,294
(34,187) -

(20,945) 8,294

(506,82) 7,213

(100,000)
(100,000)

(606,826) 7,213

4,480,948 150,733

S 3,874,120 157,948

Z608,360
(2,802,516)
2,319,515

55,528

2,914,015 2,125,359 55,528

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers . 18,431,383 6,487,004 _ (406,82

Operating Transfers:
From other hinds
To other hnds

Total operating transfers

Change In net assets

Net assets:
Beginning of year

End of year

5,563
(10,296,776)
(10,291,213)

8,140,170

103,159
(5,0,288)
(580,129)

5.90,875

Z444
(127,319)
(124,875)

(531,701)

117,185,453 91,254,337 1,713,072

$ 125,325,023 S 97,161,212 S 1,181,371

The notes to the fnancial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Florida

Ocala
International

Airport

Emergency
Training
Facility

Adult
Athletic Coknmunl-
Complex cations

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

Internal
Service
FundsSunTran Total

$ 432,153
595

! 432,748

454,29O

326,697

-1 780,987

11v (M8.239)

$ 1,000
Z426

13,426

215

408,896

409,111

(395,685)

$ 96,035
288

96,323

118,118

55,618

173,736

(77,413)

$ 1,111.814
802

1,112,616

517,802

89,988

607,788

504,828

$ 148,978

148,978

992,334

226,921

2,362
12,1.617

(1,072,639)

$ 127,532,371
4,992,248

132,524,619

65,703,6W8
11.643,479
14,373,762
2,65,147
1,681.564

7,593,177
9.408,680

2582333

1,670,260
114,982070

17,542,549

$ 18,053,250
106.125

18.159,375

17,039,332

2,907,100

19,946,432

(1.787,057)

14,480
(87,678)
273,693

200,295

(147,944)

9,708,572

9,708,572

9,560,628

(3Z6)

(32,566)

(428,251)

674,170
(9,535M232)
(8,861,062)

(9,289,313)

(17,989)

(17,969)

#35,382)

78,495

78,495

(16,887)

(10,583)

(17,96910583

494,245

14,232

14,232

508,477

1,238,649

1,238,649

166,010

99,622

99,622

265,632

5,561,007
(3,486,560)
4,383,630

6,458,077

24,000,628

10,686,257
(0,74Z,615

(10,056,358)

13J,44,268

864,801
(2,023)

862,778

(924279)

(6,312)
(6,312)

(930,591)

9,429,432

$ 18,990,060

0,289,313

$s

1.036,722

S 1,019,835

4,474,993

$ 4,983,470

1.048,073

$ 1,313,705

240,063,074 28,645,156

$ 254,007,342 $ 27,714,565
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

Electrc
Systern
Revenue

Water
and Sewer

Municipal
GoV

Course

Municipal
Trailer
ParkSanitation

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from custoers
Cash paid to suppliers for goods

and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net cash provided by (used In)
operating activities

Cash Flows fron Non-Capital
Financing Activties:

Operating transfers In
Operating transfers out
Operating grants
Principal received on loans to

other finds
Interest received on loans to

other funds
Principal paid on loans from

other funds
Interest paid on ans from

other hunds
Net cash provided by (used In)

non-capital financing activities

Cash Fls from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:

Principal paid on bonds and notes
Interest paid on bonds and notes
Proceeds from sale of fixed asset
Acquisition and consIntion of

capti assets
Connbutions received from other

governments and developers
Net cash pruvided by (used In)

capital and related financing
activities

$ 104,985,173 $ 18,228.712 $ 7,304,153 $ 2115.350 $ 97.058

(75,225,811)
(7,088,513)

(4,434,514) (4,848,121) (1.274.718) (41.012)
(;2,945,8121 LZ763,710) (1,119,641) (5,9S"

22,671,049 8,848,388 (305,678) W9,009) 3,090

5,583
(10,209,024)

4,500

103,159
(683=288)

7,459

2,444
(127,319)

3,888
(100,000)

78,370 ,.

133,045

- - (38,138)

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - (34,187) -_

(9,987.54 (120, ) (170,325)

(243.571)

(9,737,220)

(460,000)
(,708,504)

(23,175X78) (3,659) (62.979)
-

547,273 2,312,058 - -

(9,433,518) (25,031.72S) (,65s (62,979) -

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities

of rwvestments
Investment income

Net cash provided by
investing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equdvalents,
beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year

(903,718)

Z752425

(755,530)

8,930,000
3,334,088 8.58 19,132 6,343

1,8i8,709 11,508,558 82856 19,132 6,343

5,098,694 (5.247,450) (387,468) (493,181) 9,433

44,405,728 52,29,445 1,518,058 531,236 107,920

5 49,504,422 $ 4,931,995 S 1,150,588 5 38,055 S 117,353
_ = 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Florida

Ocala Emergency
International Training

Akmrt Facility

;,,' $ 449,365 $ 20,751

(265,325) (13,170)
l1 (177,561) (7,581)

6,479 -

Adult
Athletic
Complex

$ 96,698

(48,044)
(19,495)

(19,955)

Conrnunl-
cations

S 1061,s39

(416,862)
(425.67)

219,450

SunTran

$ 145,978

(853,57

(707,594)

Total

$ 132,505,175

(87,418.949)
(14,650,048)

30.436,180

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

Internal
Service
Funds

$ 17,957,079

(11,975,795)
(4,076,159

1,905,125

173,340

(2Z495)

A ~~~(87,878)

1%.e - - Z6967

(624,899)

302,317

78,495

78.495

(58,500)

_ (58,6)

(219,450)

99,622

675,058

774,680

(216,338)

149,252

(67,066)

462,623
(11,119,631)

690,905

78,370

133,045

(58,633)

(122,065)

(9,95,3B6)

(460,000)
(3ASZ075)

(34,098,323)

3,310,898

(35,199,500)

(1.659,246)

8,930,000
6,192,287

13,483,041

(1,235,665)

(6,312)

(6,312)

(171.753)
(2,023)

214,174

(Z032,075)

(1,991,6TI

860,407

860,407

767,543

17,443

17,443

(235,693)

386,322

S 150,629

-

5 - S - S - $

99,158,707

$ 97,923,042

13,437,439

$ 14,204,9E2

(Continued)
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CIlY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

BUSINESS-!E ACTM1ES -

Electric
System

Revenue
Water

and Sewer

Municipal
Golf

Course

Municipal
Trailer
ParkSanitation

ReconciIation of Cash and Cash
Equivalents to Balance Sheet

Total unrestricted cash and Invest-
ments per the balance sheet

Total restricted cash and nvest-
ments per the balance sheet

Total cash and Investments
Less Investments not meeting the

definition of cash equIvalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year

Reconclilatlon of Operating income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used I)
Operating Actvies:

$ 40,826,009 $ 22,970.928 S 1.150,588 S 38,055 S 117.353

13,856,553 40,060,268 ,

54,682,52 63,031,194 1,150,588 38,055 117,353

(5,178,140) (16,069.199) - -

S 49.504,422 S 46,981.995 S 1,150,588 S 38,055 S 117,353

-.e

Operating income Qoss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating

Income (loss) to cash provided
by operating activities:

DepreciatIon
Amortization
Loss (gain) on fied asset disposal
(Increase) decrease In assets:

Accounts and notes receivable
Accrued unbilled revenue
Due from other funds
Inventories
Due from other governments
Other current assets

Increase (decrease) In liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Deferred revenue
Decommissionig costs

S 15,517,368

4,102,714
,306

28,993

(177,480)
(801.919)
313,857
239,959
22,195

148,453

1,723,484
45777
97,924

499702

903,716

S 4,361,845 S (462,354) S (485,881) $ 919

3.772,633
70,633
(2,745)

(23,655)

2,922
(5,258)

84,249

116,344

884

(4,213)

228,431

758

54S

(550)

(497)

9,699
1212

32.727)

3,501

(70)

(1,700)

1,091
(651)

70,W42
(8,693)

524,815

12,112
31,549

Net Cash Provided by (Used In)
Operating ActMtes

Noncash Capital and Related Financing
Activities:

Plant and equipment contributed
from (to) other funds

Noncash investing Actlites:
Change in fair value of Investments

$ 22.571,049 S 8,848,388 $ ((256) S (79,09) $ 3,090

S - $ - S - S - S -

S 44,621 $ (495,073) S - S - S -

The notes to the finwca statements are an integral pat of the financial statements
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Florida

Ocala Ernergency
International Training

Airport Facility

Adult
Athletic
Complex

GOVERNMENTAL
ACT IES

Internal
Service
Funds

Cofrmunf-
cations SunTran Total

$ 150,629

150,629

$ 150,629

$ (348239)

326,697

16,617

14,993
(3,589)

S 6,479

$

$

$ (395,685)

408,896

59.589

$

$ =

$ (77,413)

55.618

375

2,039
1,191

(1.805)

5s (19,995)

S

$ 504,828

89,986

187

(50,677)

72076

162

(73,340)
668

(324,440)

$ 219,450

$

$~~~~

SS$ (1,0l72.639)

226,921

856

110,036

30,232

(3,000)

S (707,.EIL

$ 65,253,562

53,916,819
119,170,381

(21,247,339)

$ 97,923,042

$ 17,542,549

9,331,741
76,939
28,933

(174,755)
(801,019)
312,566
306,227
20,495

232,367

1,857,201
61,883

(250,353)
499,702
488,888
903,716

$ 30,436,150

S 14,204,982

14,2D4,982

$ 14,204,982

$ (1,787,057)

2,807,100

(75,916)

34,036

(61,912)
7,000

26,066

826,400
29,408

= 1,905,125

(1.9)
(7,581)

(5Z264)

S

$ 9,537,100 $ (9,537,100 S 20,943 $

$

$

$

$ 20,943

$ (450,452)

$

$
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

General
Employees'

Retirement
System

Firefighters'
Retirement

Plan

Police
Officers'

Retirement
System Total

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables:
Interest and dividends receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expense

Total receivables

Investments, at fair value:
Mutual funds: equities
Mutual funds: bonds
Common stock
Government obligations
International stock
Non-government obligations

Total investments

Total Assets

$ 331,480 $ 278,292

24,332
1,876

7,341
314,007
20,452

303
26,208 342,103

18,519,156
20,308,744

2,722,938
10,938.711

3,398,005

3.751,185

42,579,085 17,055,B52

42,938,773 17,876,047

$ 917,021 $ 1,526,793

120,333 152,008
- 315.883

20,452

__ __ __ __ __ 303
120,333 488,844

- 2,722,936
8,900,394 36,358,261
9,921,233 33,825,982
3,540,699 3,548,899
1,541,012 5,292,197
3,65,487 3,658,487

25.565,805 85,200,542

28,603,159 87,215,979

833,121 1,302,479
833.121 1,302,479

S 25,970,038 $ 85,913,500

-1

Uabilities

Accounts Payable
Total liabilities

638,373 32,985
638,373 32,985

Net Assets

Net Assets Reserved for Employees'
Pension Benefits $ 42,300,400 $ 17,643,062

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
FOR ThE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

General
Employees'
Retirement

System

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer
State
Employee

Total contributions

Investment income:
Investment income (loss)
Dividend income

Total Income on Investments
Less: Investment management fees

Net Investment ncome (loss)
Total additions (reductions)

Deductions:
Pension payments
Refunds to employees
Administration

Total deductions

$ 1,730,990

1,730,990

(2,687,648)
423,492

(2,264,156)
(320,347)

(2,584,503)
(853,513)

3,136,005

101,472
3,237,477

Firefighters'
Retirement

Plan

$ 617,662
303,241
338,235

1,259,138

(643,654)
100,910

(542,744)
(118,302)
(661,046)
598.092

1,331,429
10,194
70,899

1,412,522

Police
Officers'

Retirement
System

$ 484,580
442,447
357,573

1,264,600

(1,361,213)
251,178

(1,110,035)
(171,379)

(1,281,414)
(16,814)

1,436,148
16,848
63,286

1,516,282

Total

$ 2,813,232
745,688
695,808

4,254,728

(4,692,515)
775,580

(3,916,935)
(610,028)

(4,526,963)
(272,235)

5,903,582
27,042

235,657
6,166,281

Net Increase (Decrease) (4,090,990) (814,430) (1,533,096) (6,438,516)

Net Assets Reserved for Employees'
1-1 Pension Benefits:

Beginning of year

End of year

46,391,390 18,457,492 27,503,134 92,352,016

$ 42,300,400 $ 17,643,062 $ 25,970,038 $ 85,913,500

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City Of Ocala (the City") have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. For the reporting year ended September 30, 2002. the Ciy has Implemented GASB
Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Goverments. Significant City accounting policies are described below.

Reportinq Entit

The City of Ocala, Florida (the City") operates under a council-manager form of government, including a s-
member City Council comprised of a Mayor (elected at large) and five district Councilmen and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter public safety, public works, public utilities, culture, recreation and
community development. The City of Ocala, Florida was created pursuant to the Laws of Florida, Chapter 87-
1782.

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units (traditionally
separate reporting entities) for which the City may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be
Includable within the City's financial statements. The City (the primary government) is financially accountable if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing board and (1) It Is able to impose its will on the
organization or (2) there Is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific
financial burden on the City. Additionally, the primary government is required to consider other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or Incomplete. Management determined that
the Community Redevelopment Agency is the only organization that should be Inciuded In the City's financial
statements as a component unit.

Blended Component Unit:

Community Redevelonent Aaencv CR4) - The Community Redevelopment Agency was created
pursuant to Chapter 183.358, Florida Statutes, City Ordinance 2009 and City Resolutions 88-37, 88-52
and 89-44. The City Council serves as the CRA Board. Although legally separate, the CRA Is
appropriately blended as a governmental fund type component unit Into the primary government.
Separate financial statements for the CRA are not presently developed.

The City includes advisory boards and commissions within the City In its financial statements In
circumstances where the City selects the governing authority, designates management, has the ability to
influence operations, and has accountability for fiscal matters of the advisory boards and commissions.

Related Ormanization:

The City is responsible for appointing the Ocala Housing Authority's board. However, the City's
accountability for this organization does not extend beyond making these appointments.
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CIlY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

_ SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (CONTINUED)

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
report Information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activites,
which normally are supported by taxes and ntergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The Statement of Activities
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program
revenues. Diecexpenses are those that are dearly identifiable with a specific function orsegment. Poam
revenues Include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
property included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental and
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns In the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the econoric resources measurent focus and
the accrual basis of accounfing, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability Is Incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues In the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements Imposed by the provider have been met. As a
general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues Include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues Include all taxes.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
X and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable

and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability Is ncurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion
of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (CONTINUED)

as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when cash Is received by the government

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

* The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for In another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

* The Electric System Revenue Fund accounts for the construction, operation and maintenance of the City-
owned portion of CR-3 and the City-owned electric system as well as sales of electricity and other services to
the general public. Electricity rates charged to customers are set by the City Council within the rate structure
established by the Florida Public Service Commission.

* The Water and Sewer System accounts for the fiscal activity of providing water and wastewater services to
residential and commercial customers.

* The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City's refuse collection system.

* The Municipal Golf Course Fund accounts for the construction, operations and maintenance of the City's two
golf courses.

* The Municipal Trailer Park Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City-owner trailer park.

* The Ocala International Akport Fund accounts for the construction, operations and maintenance of the City's
airport and the Foreign Trade Zone #217.

* The Florida Emergency Training Facrily Fund accounts for the construction, operations and maintenance of
the emergency training facility located adjacent to the City airport

* The Adult Athletic Complex Fund accounts for the construction, operations and maintenance of the Ocala -

Regional Sportsplex.

* The Communication Fund accounts for the construction, operations and maintenance of the City's broadband I
communications (fiber optics) network.

* The SunTran Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the regional mass transit system that [
began operations during 1999.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

* Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specified purposes.

* Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term
debt principal and interest.
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CITY OF OCAIA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

- SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (CONTINUED)

0 Capffal Pjects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

* Internal Service Funds account for the activities of the City's risk management, fleet management and internal
service funds. The City's risk management program includes amounts collected and the claims paid for the
County's workers' compensation, property, general liability, and prescription medicine self-Insurance. The
Fleet management fund Is charged with acquiring and maintaining of approximately 930 units of gas-driven
vehicles and equipment The Internal Services fund operates the Ciy's MIS system, facilities maintenance,

- purchasing and warehousing functions.

* Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the City's General Employees', Firefighters' and Police
* Officers' Retirement System, which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to qualified retiring

employees. They are excluded from the government-wide financial statements because they are fiduciary in
nature and do not represent resources available to the government for operations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Based on the accountin and reporting standards set
forth in GASB Statement No. 20, Accountg and Fancial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other

- Governmental Eriies That Use Poprietary Fund Accounring, the City has opted to apply only the accounting and
reporting pronouncements Issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) on or before November
30, 1989 for business-type activities and enterprise funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating Items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods In connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds
and of the County's Internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds and internal service fund Include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it Is the City's policy to use unrestricted
resources first, and then restricted resources, as they are needed for their Intended purposes.

Annual Budgets

An annual budget Is prepared for all governmental and proprietary funds except for two capital project funds
(2002 Optional Gas Tax Construction Fund and 2002 Capital Improvement Fund) and all debt service funds. The
two capital project funds were established as a result of bond Issues which closed In late September, 2002. The
debt service funds are monitored by the appropriate City personnel. The budget amounts presented In the
accompanying financial statements for the governmental funds are as originally adopted, or as legally amended,
by the City Council during the year ended September 30, 2002.

The City Manager Is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however,
any budget amendments that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.
During 2002, the City Council approved various supplemental budget appropriations to provide for unanticipated
requirements of the period. Budget appropriations may not be legally exceeded on a fund basis. Appropriations
lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The budgets for the governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles (GMP). The budgetary comparisons reflect only those activities
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for which legally adopted budgets are prepared. For the year ended September 30, 2002, no expenditures
exceeded the budget at the fund level.

Ecuitv in Pooled Cash and Investments

The City maintains a pooled cash and Investment fund which allows the various funds of the City to pool monies
for Investment purposes. The City maintains records to Identify the equity of each fund Investing In the pool as
well as amounts borrowed from the pool. Investment earnings of the pool are recorded as earned and are
allocated to the participating funds based on the respective fund's equity In the pool at the end of each month.

Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand (Including equity
pooled cash), demand deposit accounts and highly liquid investments (jncluding restricted assets) with a maturity
of three months or less when purchased.

Investments

AU Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at the end of the fiscal year. Income from
other Investments owned by the Individual funds Is recorded In the respective funds as earned.

Inventories

Inventories held by the proprietary funds consist of golf retail merchandise, equipment and supplies held for
maintenance use or for capital improvements and are stated at the lower of average cost or market. Obsolete
and unusable items have been reduced to estimated salvage values.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported In the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in
the government-wide financial statements. Property, plant, and equipment with initial, indnidual costs that equal
or exceed $750 and estimated useful ives of over one year are recorded as capital assets. Roads, bridges, and
sidewalks are capitalized when their Initial costs equal or exceed $25,000 and possess estimated useful lives of
more than one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and Improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is Included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings 30 Years
Electric and Water/Sewer Plant 10-30 Years
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 5 Years
Infrastructure 15-50 Years
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Capitalization of Interest - In accordance with FASB Statement No. 62, the Water and Sewer System enterprise
fund capitalizes net interest costs on funds borrowed to finance the construction of fixed assets. For the year
ended September 30, 2002, capitalization of net Interest costs was as follows:

Water and
Sewer System

Interest expense $ 1,800,641
Amortization of bond issuance costs 16,852
Interest Income (599,069)

Increase In construction in progress A 1,218,424

Caotal Leases and Installment Purchase Contracts - Property and equipment and long-term liabilities associated
with capital leases and Installment purchase contracts of governmental funds are accounted for in the General
Fixed Asset and General Long-Term Debt account groups, respectively.

The acquisition or construction of general fixed assets under a capital lease agreement or Installment purchase
contract Is recognized as an expenditure and other financing source and principal and interest expenditures In the
governmental funds.

Property and equipment and liabilities associated with capital leases and Installment purchase contracts of
proprietary funds are accounted for and reported in the financial statements of the respective proprietary fund.

Accrued Revenue

Revenues of enterprise funds are accrued based on estimated unbilled services provided to customers at the end
of the fiscal year.

Propertv Taxes

Property taxes levied by the City are billed and collected by Marion County and normally attach as an enforceable
lien on property as of January 1. Generally taxes are levied on November 1 and are payable on or before June 1.
Substantially all property tax billings are collected during the fiscal period billed.

The City Is permitted under its charter to levy taxes up to $10 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general
government services other than the payment of principal and Interest on general long-tern debt and In unlimited
amounts for the payment of principal and interest on long-tem debt. Additional taxes assessed for the payment
of general long-term debt Issues of the City must be approved by the public. The tax rate assessed by the City for
the year ended September 30, 2002 was $5.7784 per $1,000 of assessed property value.

Interfund Pavables and Receivables

Interfund payables and receivables are non-interest bearing and generally are liquidated monthly (Note 3).
Interfund advances are liquidated in accordance with the City Council's resolution and may bear Interest (Note 3).

Compensated Absences

In governmental fund financial statements, the amount of compensated absences associated with employee
vacations that are recorded as expenditures represent the amounts accrued during the year that would normally
be liquidated with available spendable resources. The amount of compensated absences associated with
employee sick leave Is based on the historical annual trend of adjusted sick leave payments made at retirement.
Accordingly, only the amount of the compensated absence liability that would normally be liquidated with
expendable available resources in the next fiscal year is reflected In the fund financial statements of governmental
funds. In the government-wide financial statements, all governmental fund compensated absences are recorded
and split between the current and noncurrent portions.
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In proprietary funds, the amount of compensated absences associated with employee vacations that are recorded
as expenses represent the amounts accrued during the year and the amount of compensated absences
associated with employee sick leave is based on the historical annual trend of adjusted sick leave payments
made at retirement. The entire liability for compensated absences of these funds is reflected In the respective
financial statements split between the current and noncurrent portions.

Self-insurance Claims

I-labilitles for reported claims and Incurred but not reported claims are estimated based on an actuarial review of
claims pending and historical experience. -

Pension Costs

Pension plan contributions include provision for normal cost plus an amount sufficient to amortize the past service
liability over a thirty-year period.

Reserves of Fund Balances

Fund balances of governmental funds are reserved for assets which have been legally segregated for specific
future uses or which are not available for expenditure. Open encumbrances at year-end are reported as
reservations of fund balance to reserve that portion of the current year budget appropriation which has not been
recognized as an expenditure or a liability.

Grants and Contributions

Program and capital grants received by governmental funds are recorded In the applicable governmental fund as
receivables and revenues at the time reimbursable costs are Incurred and all significant grant restrictions are
satisfied. Grant revenues received in advance of meeting all major grant restrictions are deferred.

Capital grants received by proprietary funds are also recorded as revenues and receivables when reimbursable
project costs are incurred or as deferred credits if the grant money is received In advance of project expenditures.

Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value at the time received.

Bond Premiums. Discounts and Issuance Costs -

Bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the
effective interest method.

Bond discounts are presented as a reduction of the face amount of the related bonds payable and bond
premiums are presented as an addition to the face amount of the related bonds payable. Issuance costs are
recorded as other assets.

Deferred Loss on Defeasance of Debt

The difference between the reacquisition price (new debt) and the net carrying value of the old debt in a debt
refinancing Is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the shorter remaining life of the -
old or new debt. The deferred loss on defeasance of debt is presented as a reduction of the face amount of the
new bonds payable.

Cost Allocations

Certain expenses are Incurred by the City's Electric System Revenue Fund on behalf of the Water and Sewer and 
Sanitation funds. The Electric System Revenue Fund charges for these services based on the receiving fund's
original budgeted appropriations. The reimbursement for these services Is recorded as an operating expense of
the Water and Sewer and Sanitation funds and as an operating revenue of the Electric Revenue Fund.

The City's General Fund also incurs certain expenditures on behalf of other funds of the City. The General Fund
is reimbursed for these expenditures based on actual cost allocations. The amounts reimbursed are recorded as
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revenue of the General Fund. The related reimbursements are recorded as either an operating expense of the
proprietary funds or as an expenditure of the governmental funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
monies are recorded In order to reserve a portion of the applicable budget appropriation, Is utilized by the
governmental funds of the City. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reserves of fund balance
of governmental funds since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. They are recognized as
expenditures In the period In which the actual goods or services are received and a liability Is ncurred.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS AND EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and Investment pool that Is available for use by all funds, except the pension trust
funds and certain other funds required to have separate bank accounts. Each fund type's portion of this pool Is
displayed on the combined balance sheet as Equity In pooled cash and Investment fund". In addition,
investments are held separately by several of the City's funds. The deposits and Investments of the pension trust
funds are held separately from those of other City funds.

Cash

At September 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $13,223,419. These deposits, consisting
of Interest bearing and non-interest bearing demand accounts and certificates of deposit, were entirely insured by
federal depository Insurance or by collateral held by the City's agent pursuant to the Public Depository Security
Act of the State of Florida. This Act requires that the City maintain deposits only In quaified public depositories".
All qualified public depositories must deposit with the State Treasurer eligible collateral In such amounts as
required by the Act. In addition, qualified public depositories are required under the Act to assume mutual
responsibility against loss caused by the default or Insolvency of other qualified public depositories of the same
type. Should a default or Insolvency occur, the State Treasurer will Implement procedures for payment of losses
according to the validated daims of the City.

Funds not prohibited by bond covenants have pooled their cash balances In order to maximize Investment
earnings. The City's banking arrangement provides that the City will pay monthly direct service charges and will
earn interest on collected balances at the effective federal funds rate less 50 basis points and adjusted for reserve
requirement.

Investments

Florida Statutes authorize the City to invest In the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, obligations of the
U.S. Govemment, U.S. Government Instrumentalities, interest-bearing time deposits and savings accounts in
banks and savings and loans provided such deposits are collateralized as described above, mutual funds
investing in U.S. Government securities and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by U.S. Government
obligations. In addition to the above, the City's investment policy also authorizes the City to Invest in corporate
bonds, bankers acceptances, prime commercial paper, repurchase agreements, collateralized mortgage
obligations, yankee securities and eurodollar securities. Assets of the Ocala Firefighters' Retirement Plan and the
Ocala Police Officers' Retirement System may also be invested, under state statute, In corporate bonds,
corporate stocks, commercial paper and life Insurance contracts.

Cash Management Funds are mutual funds administered by the Bank of America and by The Bank of New York.
Investments held In these funds consist of U.S. Government and other short-term obligations. Investment income
is recognized as earned and Is allocated to participants of the funds based on their equity participation.
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The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is an investment pool administered by the Florida State Board
of Administration. Investments held in the Fund consist of short-term federal agency obligations, treasury bills,
repurchase agreements, and commercial paper. Investment income Is recognized as earned and is allocated to
participants of the fund based on their equity participation. In accordance with GASB Statement 31, the SBA has
reported that the Local Government Investment Trust, which it operates, is a "2A-7 like pool and, thus, these
Investments are valued using the pooled share price.

Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO's) are investments used by the City to maximize yields. The City's
CMO's, consisting of planned amortization classes (PAC's) and adjustable rate mortgage pools ARM's), are _
based on cash flows from principal and Interest payments on underlying mortgages. The PAC's have fixed
interest rates; therefore, as interest rates rise, they will decline In value. The ARM's have an adjustable Interest
rate based on an undeilying index; therefore, they will normally retain their value as Interest rates change.
Although there Is market risk in connection with fluctuating interest rates, the City feels that the risk for these -
types of CMO's Is minimal.

The City's investments are categorized by type to give an Indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the City
at year end. Category I includes Investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by
the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered nvestments, with
securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent In the City's name. Category 3 Includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or
agent but not In the City's name. The pension trust funds hold approximately 26% of the investments in
Category 1. The types of investments and their levels of risk exposure as of September 30, 2002 were typical of
those items held during the fiscal year then ended.

Categal. Category2 Category 3 FaIrValue
US. Gorrment securifes $ 71,513,578 - S - S 71,513,578
Nonjamgmenmrt ogatlcns 50,184,115 - - 50,184,115
Comnon stock 33.625,982 - * 33,625,982

$ 155.323,675 S S S - 155,323,675
Cash Managemert Funds 12,977,200 -

Muualhinds: bonds 38,358,261
Mutual ftnds: domestic equities Z722,936
Mutual ftnds: foreign equities 5,29,97
Local Gaveortnent Surpls Funds Trust Fund 48.129,219
TOal Investrents 260,801,488

Carrying amount of cash deposits 13,223,419
Total cash and investrrma $ 274,024,907

Per Government-wide Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and hwestnme 51,429,818
Equity pooled cash fund 135,887,754

Par Statement of Fiduciy Net Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1.528,793
Investments, at far value 85200,542

Total cash and investnents per statements $ 274.024,907
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The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2002 is as follows:

Interfund
Receivablesl

Payables

Interfund
Advances

Current

Interfund
Advances
Long-Term

Interfund
Advance

Total
Due to General Fund from:

Electric System Revenue Fund
Adult Athletic Complex Fund
SunTran Fund

Total due to General Fund from other funds

$ 325,884 $
332,489
277,201 -

$ 935,574 $

$ - $r

Total
S Interfund

Balances

- $ 325,884
- 332,489
- 277,201
- 935,574

Due to nonmajor governmental funds from:
Electric System Revenue Fund $ 104,119 $ - $ - $ - $104119

Due to Electric System Revenue Fund from:
General Fund
Municipal Golf Course Fund
Ocala International Airport Fund
Communications Fund
Nonrnajor governmental funds

Total due to Electric System Revenue
Fund from other funds

Due to Water and Sewer Fund from:
Electric System Revenue Fund

Due to Sanitation Fund from:
Electric System Revenue Fund

Totals at the fund level

$ - $ 6,843
_ 38,751

138,650 -
10,065

$ 118,733
429,846

1,243,084

$ 125,576
468,597

1,243.084

$ 125,576
468,597

1,243,084
138,650
20,74910,684 20,749

$ 138,650 S 66,659 $1,802,347 $1,858,006 $ 1,99,656

$ 662,248 $ - $ - $ - $ 662,248

$ 339,760 $ - $ - $ - $ 339,760

$ 2,180,351 $55659 $1,802,347 $1,858,006 $4,038,357

During fiscal year 2002, the interfund receivable due to the General Fund and the nterfund advance due to the
Electric System Revenue Fund from the Florida Emergency Training Facdity Fund FETF") were reclassified to
transfers to the FETF. The capital assets and other remaining Hiabilities of the FETF were transferred to the Ocala

L International Airport Fund.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2002, consisted of the following:

,.-

Transfers to General Fund from:
Nonmajor governmental funds
Electric System Revenue Fund
Water and Sewer Fund

Total transfers to General Fund

Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from:
General Fund
Nonmajor governmental funds
Electric System Revenue Fund
Water and Sewer Fund
Sanitation Fund:
Internal Service Fund

Total transfers to nonmajor governmental funds

Transfers to Water and Sewer Fund from:
Municipal Golf Course Fund
All other funds

Total transfers to Water and Sewer Fund

Transfers to Ocala International Airport Fund from:
Florida Emergency Training Facility Fund
General Fund
All other funds

Total transfers to Ocala International Airport Fund

Transfers to Florida Emergency Training Facility Fund from:
General Fund
Electric System Revenue Fund

Total transfers to Florida Emergency Training Facility Fund

All other transfers

Total transfers at the fund level

$ 181,882
9,902,948

500,000
$10,584,830

$ 1,656,758
1,428,398

308,075
173,788
127,319

8,312
$ 3,698,647

$ 100,000
3,159

$ 103,159

$ 9,535,232
163,840

9,500
$ 9,708,572

$ 600,650
73,520

$ 674,170

$ 200,358

$24,967,734

.
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Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2002 was as follows:

Beginning BEding
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated;

Land and krprovements
Construction In Rogress

Total capital assets not beng depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildngs and improvemerts
Eiuipment
infrastructure (Roads and Streets)

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less Accunuated Deprecation:
Buildns and Inprovemerts
Equipment
infrastructure (Roads and Seets)

Total Acumuiated Deprecition
Total capital assets being depreciated-net

$ 5,038,165
4,941,830
9.979,995

25,954.755
28,853,661

248,573,201
303,381,617

(7.942.153)
(15,715,675)
1,228,6.

(144,B86,388)
153,495,229

$ - $ - $ 5,038.165
7,830,341 (177,151) 12.595.020
7,830,341 (177,151) 17,63,185

- - 25,954,755
5,027,254 (3,281,262) 30,599,653

- - 248.573,21
5,0Z7,254 (3,281,262) 31)5127 609

(721.906) - (8.664.061)
(3,318.966) 953,597 (18,081,244)
(6 350,Z73) - (127,578,633)

(10391,147)~ 953.597 (154,323,3)-
(5,363,93)' (Z327.M6) 150,803,671

Governmertal activilies capital assets-net

Business Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and inprovements
Construction In Pogress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and provements
knprovements and Ectenskbns
Equipment
Crystal River Uit No.3

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
krprovements and Eitensions
Equipment
Crystal River Lnit No.3

Total Acurniated Depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated-net

$168,475,224 S 2466,448 $ (.504816) S 168,436,856

$ 17,248,292 $ 25,749 $ - $ 17,274.041
2Z0451575 35,429,519 (20,244.817) 37,23077

39,293,867 35,455,268 (20244,817) 54,504,318

8,783,066 1,317,752 - 10,100,818
243,943,187 21,30338 (549.510) 264,696.065

9,015,394 912399 (525,821) 9,401.972
16,168,423 - - 16,168,423

277,910,070 23,53Z539 (1,075,331) 300,367J

(3,110,691) (298.700) - (3.409,391)
(87,115,811) (7,673,415) 217,095 (94,572131)

(5,332348) (881.307) 442,848 (5,77,807)
(10,790,801) (478,318) - (11,269,119)

(106.349,651) (9,331,740) 659,943 (115,021.448)
171,560,419 14,200,799 (415,388) 185,345,830

$210,854,286 $49,656,067 $ (20,660.25 $ 239,850,148Business-Type activities capital assets-net
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Depredation expense was charged to functions Iprograms of the government as follows:

Govenrrertl Activities:
General Governnat and Adninistratn
Ribric Safety
Rbo Warl
Ifrastruchre

Culture and Recreation
1lbusing Peh*litadon
Other
Capit assets held by the ays internal ser'ce funds

are charged to th vaius functions based on their
usage of the assets

Total Depreciation kpense - Gvernment Activies

Busiess Type Activitles:
Gectic
ater and Sew er

Sanitation
Golf Courses
Trailer Park
Airprt
Brergency Trainhig Facity
Athletic Conplex
Colmnuicaios
SunTran

Totl Depreciaion Ecpense - Buisness Type Activibes

S 5Z433
778,655
137.697

8,350,273
83,408
69,802
11,781

2,907,100

$ 10,391,147

$ 4.102713
3,772,633

11344
228,431

3,501
328,697
408,898

55,618
89,988

228,921

$ 9,331,740
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NOTE 5- PENSION PLANS

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan which covers substantially all of the Citys full-
time employees excluding certified law enforcement officers and certified firefighters (General Employees'
Retirement System), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan which covers all of Its full-time certified law
enforcement officers (Police Officers' Retirement System) and a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
which covers all of Its full-time certified firefighters (Firefighters' Retirement Plan). The provisions of each of the
Plans are established by City Ordinance. All benefit provisions, Including changes in contribution requirements,
can be amended only by City Ordinance. Administrative costs are financed through Investment earnings. During
fiscal year 2000 the City's pension plans were restructured, which addressed the changes In the requirements of
the Florida Statutes, Chapters 175 and 185.

Plan Descriptions and Provisions

General Emolovees' Retirement System - The General Employees' Retirement System Is a noncontributory
defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all full-time employees of the City excluding certified law
enforcement officers and certified firefighters.

Employees are eligible to retire at age sixty-five (65) with five (5) years of credited service or at any age with thirty
(30) years of credited service; or may elect early retirement at age fifty-five (55) with five (5) years of credited
service or at any age with twenty-five (25) years of credited service. Employees become vested after five (5)
years of credited service.

Police Officers' Retirement System - The Police Officers' Retirement System Is a contributory defined benefit
pension plan covering any person employed full-time In the Ocala Police Department who Is certified as a law
enforcement officer In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 943.14 of the Florida Statutes. Florida Statutes
Chapter 185 allows contributions to the Plan by the State of Florida.

A law enforcement officer Is eligible to retire on the first day of any month coincident with, or next following the
earlier of the attainment of age fifty-two (52) and the completion of ten (10) years of credited service or the
completion of twenty-five (25) years of credited service or may elect to take early retirement on the first day of any
month coincident with or next following the attainment of age fifty (50) and the completion of ten (10) years of
credited service. Those electing early retirement have the option of receiving either a deferred or an immediate
monthly retirement benefit. Law enforcement officers become vested In the plan after ten (10) years of credited
service.

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 185.08, an excise tax amounting to 1% of the gross amount of receipts of
premiums from policyholders on all premiums collected on casualty Insurance policies covering property within
the corporate limits of the City Is collected by the Insurance Commissioner. Such amounts collected by the
Insurance Commissioner, less expenses, are contributed annually to the Plan. The City contributes 6.65% and
the law enforcement officers contribute 5% of their salaries or wages to the Police Officers' Retirement System.

Firefighters' Retirement Plan - The Firefighters' Retirement Plan Is a contributory defined benefit pension plan
covering any person employed full-time In the Ocala Fire Departrnent who is certified as a firefighter as a
condition of employment in accordance with the provisions of Section 633.35 of the Florida Statutes. Florida
Statutes Chapter 175 allows contributions to the Plan by the State of Florida.

Firefighters are eligible for normal service retirement on the first day of the month coincident with or next following
the earlier of the sum of age and years of service equal to seventy (70) or the attainment of age fifty-five (55) and
the completion of ten (10) years of credited service. There shall be no mandatory retirement age. Early retirement
is available to firefighter members on the first day of the month coincident with or next following the attainment of
age fifty (50) and the completion of ten (10) years of continuous years of credited service. Those electing early
retirement may receive either a deferred or an Immediate monthly retirement benefit. Firefighters become vested
in the Plan after ten (10) years of credited service.

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 175.101, an excise tax amounting to 2% of the gross amount of receipts of
premiums from policyholders on all premiums collected on casualty insurance policies covering property within
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 5 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED}

the corporate limits of the City Is collected by the Insurance Commissioner. Such amounts collected by the
Insurance Commissioner, less expenses, are contributed annually to the plan. The City contributes 6.65% and
the firefighters contribute 7.40% of their salaries or wages to the Firefighters' Retirement Plan.

Particloation - At September 30,2002, participation in the plans consisted of the following:

General Police Fire

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits 284 36 45

DROP retirees 4 5 2
Terminated employees entitled to

benefits not yet receiving them 148 8 5

438 49 52

Current employees:
Vested 471 69 48
Nonvested 292 78 63

Total 763 147 111

Investments

Investments of the three plans, consisting of domestic and International common stocks, government and non-
government obligations and mutual funds, are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at the end of the
fiscal year.
Contributions Required and Contribution Made

The contribution requirement for the General Employees' Retirement System for the 2002 fiscal year, determined
through an actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2001, was $2,458,998 (10.1% of current covered
payroll). Actual employer contributions to the General Employees Retirement System amounted to $1,730,990
(8.65% of current covered payroll). Accumulated excess contributions In the contribution surplus account were
available to assist In funding the City's contribution requirement for the year.

The contribution requirement for the Police Officers' Retirement System for the 2002 fiscal year, determined 
through an actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2001, was $1,458,824 (22.0% of current covered
payroll). Actual employee contributions to the Police Officers' Retirement System totaled $357,573 (5.0% of
current covered payroll), actual City contributions were $484,580 (8.65% of current covered payroll) and actual
state contributions amounted to $442,447 (6.3% of current covered payroll). Accumulated excess contributions In
the contribution surplus account were available to assist in funding the City's contribution requirement for the
year.

The contribution requirement for the Firefighters' Retirement Plan for the 2002 fiscal year, determined through an
actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2001, was $1,185,547 (30.57% of current covered payroll). Actual
employee contributions totaled $338,235 (7.40%h of current covered payroll), actual City contributions were
$304,425 (8.65% of current covered payrol plus an additional $313,237 for a total of $817,662, and actual state
contributions amounted to $303,241 (8.16% of current covered payroll). Accumulated excess contributions in the
contribution surplus account were available to assist in funding the City's contribution requirement for the year.
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NOTE 5 -PENSION PLANS CONTINUED)

There Is no net pension obligation or asset for each of these Plans.

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual
Pension

Cost (APC)

Percentage
of APC

Contributed

Net Pension
Obligation

(Asset)Fiscal Year Ended

General Plan:
9/30/00
9/30/01
9130102

Police Officers' Plan:
9/30/00
9130101
9/30/02

Firefighters' Plan:
9/30/00
93/01
Q930/02

$ 1,471,544
1,790,087
2,456,998

$ 331,892
617,506
683,102

$ 205,319
255,335
590,123

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
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SEPTEMBER 30,2002

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM UABILES

The City's outstanding long-tefmi debt includes bonds payable, notes payable, claims payable and compensated
absences payable. The following is a schedule of changes in the City's long-term debt for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002:

Beginning
Balance Increases

Amounts
Ending Due Within

Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:
Revenue Bonds and Certificates

1992 Optional Gas Tax Bonds
2002 Optional Gas Tax Bonds
1993 Capital Improvement Certificates
1995 Capital Improvement Certificates
2002 Capital improvement Certificates

Subtotal
Less deferred refundings and discounts
Total Revenue Bonds and Certificates
Other liabilites

Compensated Absences
Claims and Judgements

Total other liabilities
Total Governmental Activities

$ 9.045,000 $
17,585,000

^ ,.^. ^^e act o

17,465,000
A .. nn

't-ouu -14,340,000

31,350,000 31,905,000
- (21,127)

31,350,000 31,633,873

1,743,653 228,813
3,087,719 198 528
4.811,372 425,341

33,1Z1,3lZ 7

9 (9..uuuj - -f

17,585,000 -

(475,000) 16,990,000 500,000
(85,000) 4,755,000 85,000

14,340,000 -
(9,605,000) 53,650,000 585,0

- ~(271,127-
(9,605.000) 53,378,873 585,000

- 1,970,468 1,184,114
- 3,266,247 853,249
-s,0swo s 5238143- 1 8171363

Business-ype Activities:
Revenue Bonds

1995 Water and Sewer Bonds $ 4,985,000
1998 Water and Sewer Bonds 10,550,000
2001 Water and Sewer Bonds 38,205,000
2001 A Water and Sewer Bonds 39,885,000
2001 Electric System Bonds 10,520,000

Subtotal 102,125,000
Less deferred refundings and discounts (4,038,848)

Equipment notes 171,753
CR#3 decommissioning costs payable 4,274,424
Compensated Absences 932 473

Total Business-type Activities US103M802

$ $ (10,
(450,

000) $ 4,955,000
000) 10,100,000
- 38,205,000
- 39,885,000
- 10,520,000
Moo) 101,665,000
- (3,690,884)

(460,

$ 10,000
485,000

2,080,000
1,940,000
4,515,000

568,104

-

34B,164
(171,753)

903,716 - 5,178,140
81 883 994,358

1,_11_763_ S104,14812

Bonds Payable Collateral

The City has gas tax revenue bonds, capital improvement certificates, water and sewer revenue bonds and
electric system revenue bonds outstanding at year-end. Gas tax revenue bonds are collateralized by a pledge of
the City's sixh cent optional gas tax; the capital improvement certificates are collateralized by a pledge of certain
non-ad valorem revenues of the City; and the enterprise revenue bonds are collateralized by a pledge of the net
revenues generated by the issuing fund.

._

-
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NOTE 6- LONG-TERM LIABIUTIES (CONTINUED)

The following is a schedule of bonds outstanding at September 30, 2002:

Amount
Issued

Amount
Outstandina

Interest
RatesDescription Of Bonds

Governmental Activities:
2002 Optional Gas Tax Bonds
1993 Capital Improvement Certificates
1995 Capital Improvement Certificates
2002 Capital Improvement Certificates

Total Governmental Activities

Purnose Of Issue ------ - - ---------- Qm-

Road Projects
Capital Projects
Capital Projects
Capital Projects

$17,565,000
18,365,000
5,000,000

14.340,000

$ 17,565,000
16,990,000
4,755,000

14,340,000

$ 53,650,000

225%-3.55%
4.20%-5.25%
4.40%-5.3750,
2.00-4.50%

Business-Type Activities:
1995 Water and Sewer Bonds
1996 Water and Sewer Bonds
2001 Water and Sewer Bonds
2001-A Water and Sewer Bonds
2001 Electric System Bonds

Total Business-Type Activities

Capital Projects
Refunding
Capital Projects
Refunding
Refunding

5,000,000
12,170,000
36,205,000
39,885,000
10,520,000

$ 4,955,000
10,100,000
36,205,000
39,885.000
10,520,000

$101,665,000

4.40%-5.50%
5.50%-6.00%A
5.00%-5.75%
3.25h-4.50%
3.25h-4.00%

The following schedule shows debt service requirement to maturity for the City's bonded indebtedness:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Fiscal
Year

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008-2012
2013-2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032

Optional
Gas Tax
Bonds

Capital
Improvement
Certificates

$ 298,96 $ 1,961,757
1,865,388 2,697,150
1,875,575 2,703,809
1,876,575 2,707,915
1,871,762 2,699,057
9,339,009 13,489,775
3,928,228 15,340,919

- 12,250,903
- 2,039,106

Water ana
Sewer
Bonds

$ 6,908,189
7,041,045
7,041,039
7,048,875
7,039,200

35,105,188
31,839,885
19,198,350
19,220,437
19,060,832

Electric
Bonds

$ 2,271,406
2,299,387
2,294,219
2,296,613
2,293,053

Total $21,055,503 $ 55,890,391 $ 159,503,040 $11,454,678
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NOTE 6- LONG-TERM LIABILTIES (CONTINUED)

The City's charter limits the aggregate amount of general obligation bonds outstanding to twenty percent (20%) of
the assessed valuation of the taxable real and personal property in the City. At September 30, 2002, there was _
no general obligation debt outstanding.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the following governmental bond activity occurred:

Cavital Imorovement Revenue Certificates. Series 2002 (dated Seotember 1. 2002)

The Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 2002, were Issued in September, 2002, and consisted of
$14,340,000 In serial certificates maturing on October 1, 2003 through 2022 at Interest rates of 2.0% to 4.5%. The
proceeds of this issue are being used primanly for the purpose of financing certain capital improvements within
the City. The Certificates were issued on a parity with the outstanding Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue
Certificates, Series 1993, and with the Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series1995. The certificates
are insured and are secured by a lien upon and pledge of half-cent sales tax revenues, franchise fees, local -

communication services tax, occupational license taxes, the guaranteed entitlement portion of state revenue
sharing funds, mobile home licenses and court fines and forfeitures.

Ovtlonal Gas Tax Refundina and Imoroverrent Revenue Bonds. Series 2002 (dated Seotember 1. 2002)

The Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, were issued in September,
2002, and consisted of $15,500,000 In serial bonds maturing on October 1, 2003 through 2012 at Interest rates of
2.5% to 3A% and of $2,085,000 of term bonds maturing on April 1, 2013 at an Interest rate of 3.55%. A portion of
the term bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption at the price of par without premium on October
1, 2003 through 2012. The proceeds of this issue are being used for the current refunding of the outstanding
Optional Gas Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992, and for the financing of the costs of acquisition and
construction of certain roads and road improvements within the City. The bonds are insured and are secured by a
lien upon and pledge of the proceeds if the sIx cent local option fuel tax received by the City.

The refunding portion of the bonds, along with certain available City funds, were used to purchase Federal
Securities which were deposited Into an escrow account for the purpose of a current refunding of the Optional
Gas Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992, maturing on December 1, 2002 through 2009 on December 1,
2002. As a result, the Series 1992 bonds are considered to be defeased, and the liability for those bonds has
been removed from the City's financial statements. The defeasance resulted In an accounting loss of $202,314,
which will be amortized over fiscal years 2003 through 2009 on the entity-wide statement of activities. The City
completed the current refunding to reduce the total debt service payments over the life of the issue by $2,021,785
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the old and new debt service payments)
of $624,503.

Conduit Issues

In January, 1994, $3,500,000 Student Housing Revenue Bonds were Issued. The proceeds of the bonds are
being used by the Central Florida Community College Foundation to acquire real property and to construct
student housing facilities. The bonds, which mature in 2014, do not represent debt or an obligation of the City
and are collateralized solely from the gross revenues of the completed project. The completed project and all
revenues derived therefrom, subsequent to the payment of all debt service requirements, belong exclusively to
the Foundation. -

In December, 1994, $1,920,000 Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds were issued. The proceeds of the bonds
are being used by the Hospice of Marion County, Inc. to build an administrative office complex. The bonds, which
mature in 2009, do not represent debt or an obligation of the City and are collateralized solely from the gross
operating revenues. The completed project and al revenues derived therefrom, subsequent to the payment of all
debt service requirements, belong exclusively to Hospice.
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NOTE 7 - PRIOR YEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

The City has defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for
all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not included In the City's financial statements. At September 30, 2002, $13,625,000 of bonds
outstanding are considered defeased, as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Optional Gas Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 $ 8,245,000

Business-Type Activities:
Electric System Revenue:

Power Supply Revenue Bonds, Series 1977 $ 3,275,000
Water and Sewer:

- Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1983 2,105,000

Total $ 13,625,000

NOTE 8-FUND DEFICITS

At September 30, 2002 there were no fund deficits.

NOTE 9- RISK MANAGEMENT

The City has established a self-insurance fund (an Internal service fund) to account for the City's self-insured
programs. This fund Is used to account for the City's workers' compensation, general liability, automobile liability,
disability Income replacement, medical and dental programs. The City uses a combination of self-insurance and
private Insurance to protect tself against risks which cannot be eliminated.

The City has general liability Insurance with a $100,000 retention per claimant and $200,000 retention per
occurrence with Emits of $1,000,000. The City has workers' compensation insurance with a $250,000 deductible
per occurrence with limits of $5,000,000. The disability income replacement, dental programs and auto liability
programs are fully self-insured. The City's employee health Insurance program was fully self-Insured through
February, 1994, after which it is fully Insured except for the prescription program which was fully self-insured
through December, 1997. The City had no significant reductions In Insurance coverage during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002.

All departments of the City participate In the program. Payments are made by various funds to the Self Insurance
Fund based on past experience of the amounts needed to pay current year claims. For the year ended
September 30, 2002, the City obtained actuarially determined estimates of the total claims loss reserves for all
selfinsurance risks. The claims liability of $3,266,247 reported In the Fund at September 30, 2002 Is based on
the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10 which requires that a liability
for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to Incurred but not reported claims, be accrued when
insured events occur. In addition, there have been no settlements which exceeded the City's Insurance coverage
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NOTE 9- RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

in any of the past three fiscal years. Changes n the Fund's claim liability amount during the past three fiscal
years is as follows:

Current Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

Beginning-of-
Fiscal-Year-Liability

Balance
Claim at Fiscal

Payments Year End

1999-2000
2000-2001
2001-2002

$ 2,872,370
2,697,608
3,067,719

$ 1,471,538
2,029,131
1,940,718

$ 1,448,300
1,859,020
1,748,190

$ 2,697,608
3,087,719
3,268,247

NOTE 10- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT UABILITIES

Economic Imcrovement Incenives - The City has designated a portion of the savings resulting from the decision
to purchase power through the Florida Municipal Power Agency to be set aside for economic improvement
incentives. The funds are utilized to encourage local businesses to remain In Ocala and to attract existing
businesses to relocate to Ocala to create new employment opportunities and, thereby, increasing City revenues
through electric utility usage and an expanded tax base. Economic incentive payments amounted to $252,333 for
the year ended September 30, 2002.

- The City receives significant financial assistance from federal agencies primarily in the form of capital
grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and Is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Disallowed claims, if
any, resulting from such audits may become liabilities of the City. However, In the opinion of management,
disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material effect on the Citys financial statements.

L bition - Various suits and claims arising In the ordinary course of City operations are pending against the City
of Ocala. While the ultimate effect of such litigation cannot be ascertained at this time, the City does not expect
any of these routine items to have a material impact on the financial condition of the City.

Other Commitments - The City has outstanding commitments on various contracts for construction and other
projects. These commitments, as of September 30, 2002, in the respective funds are as follows:

I

General Fund
Electric System Revenue Fund
Water and Sewer Fund
Sanitation Fund
Municipal Golf Course Fund
Ocala International Airport Fund
Communications Fund
SunTran Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Internal Service Funds

Total

S 3,493,433
1,991,165
4.159,941

975
1,612

17,682
160.992
10,249

583,540
625,237

$ 11.044,826

-
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NOTE 10- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT UABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Purchased Power Contract - The City presently purchases power exdusively from Florida Municipal Power
Agency (FMPA) through the 230 kv State-wide bulk power system. Additionally, since 1977, the City has become
the owner of an undivided 1.333% or 11 MW share of the 825 MW Crystal River Nuclear Plant No. 3 (CR-3).

The City has an All Requirements Power Supply Project Contract ("Requirements Contract") with FMPA which
requires FMPA to sell and deliver to the City and the City to purchase from FMPA all electric power that the City
requires In excess of the amount the City receives from Its percentage ownership Interest in CR-3. The
Requirements Contract expires In 2025, but automatically extends for additional five-year terms unless either
party notifies the other of its decision not to extend the Requirements Contract. The City pays for electric power
under the Requirements Contract at the rates set forth In the applicable rate schedule of FMPA, which FMPA may
revise from time to time.

NOTE 11-IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB STATEMENT NUMBER 34

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement Number 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion
and Analysis for State and Local Govemments. This statement provides for a significant change In financial
reporting that Is described In the Management Discussion and Analysis section and Note 1, Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies. This statement also established new reporting requirements for Infrastructure
capital assets (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.) previously unrecorded In the City's Financial Statements. The
City has implemented this statement in fiscal year 2002.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2002

Variance with
Final Budget -

PositiveBudgeted Amounts Actual

Revenues:
Property taxes
Utility service tax
Other taxes
State revenue sharing
Other intergovernmental revenues
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Charges 1or servces
Investnent income
Gift
Other

Total revenues

Original

$ 1Z21Z065
8,749,175

390,000
1,340,000
5,417,509
1,388,550

359,000
Z036.730

742,127
112,500
241,072

32,988,728

Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 12,212,065
8,749,175

390,000
1,340,000
6,939,508
1.388,550

359,000
1,391,443

742,127
129,256
352,898

33,994,022

$ 12,73,927
9,826,251

395,596
1,391,703
5,371,927
1,055,928

395,292
1,857.905

992,330
106,820
659,282

34,326,961

$ 61,862
1,077,076

5,596
51.703

(1.567,581)
(332,622)

36,292
466,462
250,203
(22436)
306,384
332,939

Expenditures:
Current

General government and adminlsbtion
Public safey
Public works
Culture and recreat on
Housing rehabilitation
Nondepartmental appropriations
Other

Capta outlay
Debt servIce:

Principal payments
Interest and paying agents' fees

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

5,519,537
23,871,083

7,704,026
4,381,713

410,338
1.944,370
1,637,394
3,767,002

5,668,843
23,786,788

8,217,847
4,433,113

420,338
662,837

2,418,419
6,249,888

5,323,862
23,54,305
5,482,418
3,922,136

336,440
215,439

1,067,762
1,979,978

344,981
240,483

2,735,429
510,977

83,898
647,398

1,348,657
4,269,910

14,317 14,317 - 14,317
11,439 11,439 11,438 1

49,261,219 52O81,829 41,885,778 - 10,198,01

(16,272491) (18,067,Bo7) (7,558,817) 10,528,9O

Other F'mancing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

11,056,597 12548,124 10,584,830
(1,741,619 (1,842,603) (2,499,871)
9,314,982 10,705,521 8,084,959

(1,963,294)
(657,26B

(2,620,562)

Net change In fund balances (6,957,50) (7,382286) 526,142 7,908,428

Fund Balance, beginning of year

Fund Balance, end of year

13,400,781 13,400,781 13,400,781 _ -

S 6,443,272 S 6,018,495 S 13,926,923 $ 7,908,428
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION FOR PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (1)

General Plan:

Fiscal
Year

Ended
9130

la]
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

[b]
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(ML)
Frozen
Entry
Age *

[b - [a]
Unfunded

AAL
(UMA)

la] I [b]
Funded

Ratio

[cl
Covered
Payroll

(Qb-[aD4c1
UML as a

Percentage
of

Covered
Payroll

2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

$51,050,337
49,715,165
49,300,452
68,142,950
62,105,361
5a,707,127

$60,715,570
58,555,697
57,844,293
71,753,284
67,870,920
62,080,721

$9,665,233
8,840,532
8,543,844
5,610,334
5,565,559
5,373,594

84.08%
84.90%
85.23%
92.18%
91.78%
91.34%

$25,712,038
24,305,928
21,757,209
31,891,235
30,016,764
28,804,565

37.59%
38.37%
39.27%
17.59%
18.54%
18.66%

Police Officers' Plan:

Fiscal
Year

Ended
9/30

[al
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

[b]
Actuarial
Accrued
Uability
(AL)

Frozen
Entry
Age*

[bJ- [a)
Unfunded

ML
(UAAL)

-(1b]-[aD/[c
UML as a

Percentage
of

Covered
Payroll

-[a] / [b)
Funded
Ratio

[C]
Covered
Payroll

2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

$31,939,047
31,152,402
28,632,328
27,130,310
13,084,660
12,495,738

$31,939,047
31,152,402
30,103,745
28,611,683
13,084,6860
12,495,738

$

1,471,419
1,481,353

100.00%
100.00%
95.11%
91.74%

100.00%
100.00%

$ 6,993,805
8,625,498
8,434,809
5,783,939
5,318,552
5,282,071

22.87%
25.61%

-j

* The frozen entry age actuarial cost method does not have a defined AAL after the initial year. The
ML was created by adding the UAAL (which is defined under the frozen entry age method) to the
actuarial value of assets.

(Continued)
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION FOR PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - CONTINUED (1)

Firefighters' Plan:

The aggregate actuarial cost method Is used In determining the funding requirements and does not
identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities. These liabilities are amortized through
the nornal cost.

(1) Actuarial information as of the latest actuarial valuation Is as follows:

Valuation Date
_ Actuarial Cost Method

Amofllon Method

Remaining Amortizaton Period
Asset Valuation Method
Actual Assumptions (Al Plans):

Net Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Inre ases
*Inoludes Inflation at
Costf- ng Adjustments

General
October 1, 2002
Frozen Entry Age
Level Percent of

Pay - Closed
28 Years

5-Year Smoothing

8.5%
6.0%
3.0%
0.0%

Police Officers
October 1, 2002

Aggregate"
N/A

N/A
5-Year Smoothing

8.0%
6.0%
3.0%
0.0%

Firefihters
October 1, 2002

Aggregate
WA

WA
Expected Value

8.0%
3.5% - 7.5%

3.5%
0.0%

" Prior to this valuation, the actuarial cost method used for the Police Officers Plan was ftoe entry age. The
amortization method was level percent of pay -closed, with a remaining amortization period of 28 years.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION FOR PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM EMPLOYER
AND OTHER CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES

General Plan:

Fiscal
Year
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

Annual
Required

Contribution
(City)

$ 2,458,998
1,790,087
1,471,544
1,413,903
1,350,6860
1,438,894

Percentage
Contributed

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Firefighters' Plan:

Fiscal
Year
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

Annual
Required

Contribution
$ 911,985

815,204
582,416
219,088
215,358
234,485

Annual
Required

Contribution
(City) 1)

$ 652,608
555,827
308,354

8,632
8,832

Annual
Required

Contribution
(State) (2)

$ 259,377
259,377
254,062
219,088
208,724
225,833

Percentage
Contributed

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

(1) These City contributions are funds that were drawn from the contributions
surplus account.

(2) Excess state annual required contributions are accumulated in the
contributions surplus account which Is drawn upon if actual state
contributions fall below the annual required contribution.

(Continued)
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION FOR PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTiONS FROM EMPLOYER
AND OTHER CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES - CONTINUED

Police Officers' Plan:

Fiscal
Year
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

Annual
Required

Contribution
$ 1,125,549

1,020,584
714,755
471,671
402,319
347,104

Annual
Required

Contribution
(City) (1)

$ 683,102
617.506
416,374
100,829

31,477

Annual
Required

Contribution
(State) (2)

$ 442,447
403.078
382,863
370,842
370,842
347,104

Percentage
Contributed

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

(1) These City contributions include funds that were drawn from the contributions
surplus account.

(2) Excess state annual required contributions are accumulated In the
contributions surplus account which Is drawn upon if actual state
contributions fall below the annual required contribution.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (ONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS:

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources earmarked for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities and other project oriented activities other than those
financed by proprietary funds. Capital project funds used by the City are:

Optional Gas Tax Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for resources
earmarked for construction of and improvements to several roadways exclusive of the
N.E. 14th Street project.

2002 Optional Gas Tax Construction Fund - This fund Is used to account for resources
eamnarked for construction of and improvements to several roadways funded by the new
money portion of the Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002.

2002 Capital Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for the resources
earnarked for the acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements funded by
the Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 2002.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Assets
Cash and Investments
Equity In Pooled Cash Fund
Receivables (nel)
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
OtherAssets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Advances To Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved For:

Debt Service Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Special
Revenue

Funds

$
10,699,778

110,099
104,119

3,144,472
782

14,059,248

1,284,829
28,380

820,705
20,749

1,954,663

12,104,585

12,104,585
$ 14,059,248

Debt
Service
Funds

$ 1,131,878
110,959

1,242,835

25,997
70,802

9B,799

1,145,836

1,145,836
$ 1,242,

Capital
Projects

Funds

$ 24,964,751
11,372

24,978,123=

119,392

119,392

24,858,731
24,858,731

$ 24,978,123

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ 2,098,427
10,822,107

110,099
104,119

3,144,472
782

40,278,006

1,430,218
99,182

620,705
20,749

2,170,854

1,145,836
12,104,585
24,858,731
38,107,152

$ 40,278,006

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financal statements.

-J

__J
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Special
Revenue
Funds -

Debt
Service
Funds

Capital
Projects

Funds

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Revenues
Property Taxes

i Other Intergovernmental Revenues
- Parking Meters and Facilities

Fines and Forfeitures
Charges For Services
Investment Income
Gifts
Other

Total Revenues

$ 162,272 $
6,602,088

62,673
8,471

2173,980
654,954
58,584
11,043

9,734,065. c

$

123,534

- $ 162,272
- 6,602,088
- 62,673
- 8,471
- 2,173,980

6,711 785,199
- 58,584

11.043
6,711 9,864,310123,534 =

Expenditures
Current

General Government
Public Works
Nondepartmental
Other

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal Payments
Interest and Fees

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues Over

Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers In
Transfers Out
Bond Proceeds
Bond Premium (Discount)
Payment To Refunding Bonds Escrow Agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change In Fund Balance
Fund Balances-Beginning
Fund Balances-Ending

398,282
3,240,100

73,281
6,482,375

1,652
10,195,690

114,798

3,385,000
1.766,582
5,266,380

1,635
452,359

453,994

398,282
3,241,735

567,157
73,281

6,482,375

3,385,000
1,768,234

15,916,064

(461,625) (5,142,846) (447283) (6,051,754)

677,363
(1,589,728)

(912,365)
(1,373,990)
13,478,575

$12,104,585

3,012,277
(129,208)

6,520,000
24,120

(6,422,315)
3,004,874

(2,137,972)
3,283,808

$ 1,145,836

7,007

25,385,000
(92,932)

25,299,075
24,851,792

4,939
$ 24,856,731

3,696,647
(1,718,936)
31.905,000

(68,812)
(6,422,315)
27,391,584
21,339,830
16,767,322

$ 38,107,152

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

-I

Parkingl
Parks

Enforcement
Downtown

Development
Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investment fund
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts and notes receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Other current assets

$ 37,330
364

21

32,097
347

41
376

Total Assets $ 38.091 $ 32,485

Llabiliftes and Fund Balances (Deficits)

Ilabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Deferred revenue
Interfund loans payable within one year
Interfund loans payable after one year

Total liabilities

$ 2,493 $ 1,499
1,026 498

10,065
10,684
24,268 1,995

Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for specified projects

Total reserved fund balance
Total fund balance

38
13,785
13,823
13,823

30,490
30,490
30,490

Total ULabilitles and Fund Balances $ 38,091 $ 32,485

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Local
Gasoline

Tax
Stormwater

Utility

SHIP Local
Housing

Assistance

Community
Redevelopment

Trust Total

L-- $ 6,326,977
68,441

3,144,431

$ 3,612,052
36,431

104,119

156

$ 456,739
4,495

$ 234,581 $ 10,699,776
- 110,078
- 21
- 104,119
- 3,144,472
- 782250

$ 9,539,849 $ 3,752,758 $ 461,484 $ 234,581 $ 14,059,248

$ 1,137,859
6,386

160,676

1,304.921

473,369
7,761,559
8,234,928
8,234,928

$ 141,523
20,472

161,995

310,326
3,280,437
3,590,763
3,590,763

$ 1,455

460,029

461,484

234,581
234,581
234,581

$ 1,284,829
28,380

620,705
10,065
10,684

1,954,663

783,733
11,320,852
12,104,585
12,104,585

$ 9,539,849 $ 3,752,758 $ 461,484 $ 234,581 $ 14,059,248
_ i ~~~. _ _ , .
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CIlY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Parkingl
Parks

Enforcement
Downtown

Development

Revenues:
Property taxes
Other intergovernmental revenues
Parking meters and facilities
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Investment income
Gifts
Other

Total revenues

$ $ 49,858

62,673
8,471

2,019

9,870
83,033

1,975

51,833

Expenditures:
Current

General government and administration
Public works
Other

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Interest and paying agents' fees
Total expenditures

39,409

73,281
1,795

1,652 -
76,728 39,409

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 6,305 12,424

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers from other funds
Operating transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Uses 6,305 12,424

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 7,518 18,066
-

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 13,823 $ 30,490

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Local
Gasoline

Tax

$_
6,269,756

405,197
58,584

1,173
6,734,710

604,947

6,198,088

6,803,035

(68,325)

566,505
(1,564,728)

(998,223)

(1,066,548)

9,301,476

$ 8,234,928

Stormwater
uplity

2,173,980
208,023

2,382,003

2,635,152

282,493

2,917,645

(535,642)

(25,000)
(25,000)

(560,642)

4,151,405

$ 3,590,763

SHIP Local
Housing

Assistance

$_
332,332

26,541

358,873

358,873

358,873

_$

Community
Redevelopment

Trust

$ 112,414

11,199

123,613

123,613

110,858

110,858

234,471

110

$ 234,581

Total

$ 162,272
6,602,088

62,673
8,471

2,173,980
654,954

58,584
11,043

9,734,065

398,282
3,240,099

73,281
6,482,376

1,652
10,195,690

(461,625)

677,363
(1,589,728)

(912,365)

(1,373,990)

13,478,575

$ 12,104,585
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PARKINGIPARKS ENFORCEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Actual

Final
Budget

Revenues:
Parking meters and facilities
Fines and orfeitures
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

$ 6Z873
8,471
2,019
9,870

83,033

$ 69,100
5,220
3,000

10,850

88,170

$ (6,427)
3,251

(981)
(980)

(5,137)

Expenditures:
Current - other
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal payments
Interest and paying agents' fees

Total expenditures

73,281
1,796

77,931
1,795

10,089
1,652

91,487

4,650

-

1,652
76,728

10,089

14,739

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 8,305 (3,297) 9,602

Net Change in Fund Balance 6.305 (3,297) 9,602 -

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year 7,518 3,297 4,221

End of year $ 13,823 $ - $ 13,823

-
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Actual Budget (Negative)

Revenues:
Property taxes
Investnent Icome

Total revenues

$ 49,858 $ 48,858 $ 1,000
1,975 2,000 (25)

51,833 50,858 975

Expenditures:
Current - General government and administration

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Net Change In Fund Balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year

End of year

39,409 41,059 1,650
39,409 41,059 1,650

12,424 9,799 2,625

12,424 9,799 2,625

7,518 (9,799) 17,317

$ 19,942 $ - $ 19,942
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CllY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

LOCAL GASOLINE TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

-

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(NegaUve)

Final
BudgetActual

Revenues:
Other intergovernmental revenues
Investment income
Gifts
Other

Total revenues

$ 8,269,758
405,197

58,584
1,173

8,734,710

S 4,701,000
301,000
238,123

Expenditures:
Current - Public works
Capital out

Total expenditures

5,240,123

2,533,004
8,705,422

11,238,428

S 1,568,758
104,197

(179,539)
1,173

1,494,587

1.928,057
2,507,334
4,435,391

804,947
6,198,088
B,803,035

Excess (Dedfcency) of Revenues Over Expendcures (68,325) (5,998,303) 5,929,978

Other Financng Sources (Uses):
Operating transers from other Ainds
Operating transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

568,505
(1,564,728)

(998,223)

555,300
(1,830,795)
(1,275,495)

11,205
266,087
277,272

Excess (Defiwency) of Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Uses (1,06.548) (7.273,798) 6,207,250

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 9,301,476 7,273,798 2,027,678

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 8,234,928 $ - $ 8,234,928

-
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STORMWATER UTILITY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(N~egative)

Final
BudgetActual

Revenues:
Charges for services
Investment income

Total revenues

$ 2.173,980
208,023

2,382,003

$ 2,285,000
200,000

2,485,000

$ (111,020)
8,023

(102997)

Expenditures:
Current - Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

2,635,152
282,493

2,917,645

4,413,977
995,764

5,409,741

1,778,825
713,271

2,492,096

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (535,642) (2,924,741) 2,389,099

Other Financing (Uses):
Operating transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)
(25,000)
(25,000)

(25,000)
(25,000)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
and Other Uses (560,642) (2,949,741) 2,389,099

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 4,151,405 2,949,741 1,201,664

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 3,590,763 $ - $ 3,590,763
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SHIP LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Actual
Final

Budget

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(egative)

Revenues:
Other intergovernmental revenues
Investment income

Total revenues

$ 33Z332
28,541

358,873

$ 1,044,917

1,044,917

$ (712,585)
28,541

(686,M4)

Expenditures:
Current - General government and administration

Total expenditures
358,873 1,044,917 886,044
358,873 1,044,917 688,044

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ - $ - $

-_
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Final
BudgetActual

Revenues:
Property taxes
investment income

Total revenues

$ 112,414
11,199

123,613

Expenditures:
Current

General government and administrative
Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers from other funds

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

123,613

110,858

234,471

110

I 234,581

$ 28,485

28,485

28,485

110,858

139,343

(139,343)

$

$ 83,929
11,199
95,128

95,128

95,128

139,453

$ 234,581
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

1993 1995 2002
Improvement Improvement Improvement
Certificates Certifcates Certificates

Assets

Restricted cash and investments

Restricted equity in pooled cash and
investment fund

Total Restricted Assets

$ 921,514 $ 210,162 $

- - 42,253

$ 921,514 $ 210,182 $ 42253

Fund Balances

Accounts Payable from Restricted Assets
Accrued Interest Payable

Total Ilabilites payable from restricted assets

$ - $ - $
- - 35,211

35.211

Fund Balances:
Reserved for debt service 921,514 210,182 7,042

Total Uabilities and Fund Balances $ 921,514 $ 210,182 $ 4Z253

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1992 Optional 2002 Optli
Gas Tax Gas Tax
Bonds Bonds

$ - $

Mal

Total

- $ 1,131,676

09 110,959

D9 $ 1,242,635

_ 25,997 42,71

$ 25,997 $ 42,71

- $ 25,997 $ -

-- 35,591
25,97 35,591

- 7.118

$ 25,997 $ 42,709

$ 25,997
70,802
96,799

1,145,836

$ 1,242,635
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

1993
Improvement
Certificates

1995
Improvement
Certificates

$ 5,596

20O2
Improvement

Certificates

$ 358
Revenues:

Investment income $ 25,078

Expenditures:
Current

Nondepartmental
Debt Service:

Principal payments
Interest and paying

agents'fees
Total expenditures

475,000

853,547
1,328,547

85,000

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from refunding bonds
Bond premium (discount)
Payment to refunding bonds escrow agent
Operating transfers from other funds
Operating transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

(1,303,471)

1.343,028
(24,294)

1,318,734

252,682
337,682

(332,088)

335,324
(,044)

330,280

358

7,042
(358)

8,8384

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Uses 15,263 (1,806) 7,042

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 908,251 211,968

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 921,514 $ 210,162 $ 7,042

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1992 Optional
Gas Tax
Bonds

$ 92,143

114,798

2,825,000

660,353
3,600,151

(3,508,008)

6,520,000
24,120

- (6,422,315)
1,319,765

(99,151)

1,342,419

- (2,165,589)

2,165,589

=$

2002 Optional
Gas Tax
Bonds

$ 361

361

7,118
(361)

6,757

7,118

$ 7,118

Total

$ 123,534

114,798

3,385,000

1,766,582
5,266,380

(5,142,846)

6,520,000
24,120

(6,422,315)
3,012,277
(129,208)

3,004,874

(2,137,972)

3,283,808

$ 1,145,836
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Assets

Cash and investments

Equity in pooled cash and investment fund

Total Assets

Optional
Gas Tax

Construction

$

4,364

$ 4,384

2002 OptIonal
Gas Tax

Construction

$ 10,879,352

7,008

$ 10,888,380

2002
Capital

Improvement

$ 14,085,399

$ 14,085,399

Total

$ 24,964,751

11,372

$ 24,978,123

LIabilitIes and Fund Balances

Current Uabilities:
Accounts payable $ 519 S 42,342

Total liabilities 519 42,342

Fund Balances:
Reserved for specified projects 3,845 10,844,018

Total fund balance 3,845 10,844,018

Total Uabilities and Fund Balances $ 4,364 $ 10,888,360

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.

$ 76,531
76,531

14,008,88
14,008,868

$ 14,085,399

$ 119,392
119,392

24,858,731
24,856,731

$ 24,978,123
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Optional
Gas Tax

Construction

2002 Optional
Gas Tax

Construction

2002
Capital

Improvement Total

Revenues:
Investment Income

Total revenues
$ 242 $ 2,819 $ 3,650 $ 6,711

242 2,819 3,650 6,711

Expenditures:
Current

Public works
Nondepartmental

Total expenditures

1,336
- 201,539

1,336 201,539

299
250,820
251,119

1,635
452,359
453,994

- (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,094) (198,720) (247,469) (447,283)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt proceeds
Bond premium (discount)
Operating transfers from other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

11,045,000
(9,269)

-- 7,007
- 11,042,738

14,340,000
(83,663)

14,256,337

25,385,000
(92,932)

7,007
25,299,075

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses (1,094) 10,844,018 14,008,868 24,851,792

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

- Fund Balances at End of Year

4,939 - - 4,939

$ 3,845 S 10,844,018 $ 14,008,868 $ 24,856,731

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements.

78



CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

OPTIONAL GAS TAX CONSTRUCTION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Actual
Final

Budget

$
Revenues:

Investment income
Total revenues

$ 242
242

Expenditures:
Current - Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$ 242
242

544
930

1,474

1.716

2.129

$ 3,845

1,338

1,336

1,880
930

2,810

(2,810)Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,094)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

4,939 2,810

$ 3,845 $ -

]
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS:

The Internal Service Funds account for the operation of departments which exist solely to provide
services to other City departments. The revenues of the Internal Service Funds are derived from
user fees and self-insurance premiums charged to other City funds. The Internal Service Funds
used by the City are:

Internal Service Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the management
information system, central services, facilities maintenance, dinic and purchasing and
warehousing departments.

Fleet Manaaement Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the fleet management
department, which is responsible for replacing, specifying, acquiring, maintaining and
disposing of approAxmately 930 units of gas driven equipment.

Self-Insurance Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the risk management
department and for the costs of the City's insurance and self-insurance plans.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Internal
Assets Service

Fleet
Management

Self-
Insurance Total

Current Assets:
Cash and Investments
Equity In pooled cash and investment fund
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets

$ 150
2,109,588

29,275
80

35,348
443

2,174,880

$ 800
8,349,343

93,108
120

200,242

8,843,811

S 150
3,744,953

33,785
47,284

55,778
3,881,950

$ 1,100
14,203,882

158,166
47,484

235,588
58,221

14,700,441

Capital Assets, Net 8,918,904 8,715,294 8,999 17,641,197

Total Assets S 11,091,784 $ 17,358,905 $ 3,890,949 $ 32,341,838

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Compensated absences payable

Total current liabilities

S 154,798

85,683
220,481

687,380 $ 282,125
- 3,268,247

$ 1,124,303
3,268,247

113,000
4,503,550

47,317
734,897 3,548,372

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 80,137 33,433 113,570

Total Liabilities 300,818 768,130 3,548,372 4,617,120

Net Assets
Invested In capital assets
Unrestricted

8,918,904 8,715,294 8,999 17,841,197
1,884,309 7,875,481 333,578 10,073,388

Total Net Assets $ 10,781,213 $ 18,590,775 $ 342,577 S 27,714,565

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Internal
Service

Fleet
Management

Seff-
Insurance Total

Operating Revenues:
Fees and rentals
City Insurance contributions
Employee Insurance contributions
Other

Total operating revenues

$ 4,214,862 $

101,574
4,316,436

4,633,697 $ 908,996
- 6,268,661
- 2,027,034

2,211- 2,340
4,635,908 _ 9,207,031

$ 9,757,555
6,268,661
2,027,034

106,125
18,159,375

Operating Expenses:
Fleet management
Purchasing and warehousing
Information technology and

central services
Facilities maintenance
Insurance, administration and other
Depreciation
Other

Total operating expenses

1,055,211
2,738,024 2,738,024

1,055,211

2,230,946
1,473,951

906,359
120,590

5,787,057

1,995,408
9,420,610

5,333

2,230,946
1,473,951
9,420,610
2,907,100

120,590
19,946,4324,733,432 9,425,943

Operating Income (Loss) (1,470,621) (97,524) (216,912) (1,787,057)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses)

163,406
(2,023)

500,230 201,165 864,801
(2,03)

161,383 500,230 201,165 862,778

(1,309,238) 402,706 (17,747) (924,27piIncome (Loss) Before Operating Transfers

Operating Transfers:
To other funds

Total operating transfers
(6,312)
(6,312)

(6,312)
_ . (6,312)

Change In Net Assets (1,315,550) 402,706 (17,747) (930,591)

Total Net Assets, beginning of year

Total Net Assets, end of year

12,096,763 16,188,069 360,324 28,645,156

$ 10,781,213 $ 16,590,775 $ 342,577 $ 27,714565

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Internal
Service

Fleet
Management

Self-
Insurance Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activitles:
Cash received from employees
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and

services
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash received from other funds
Cash paid for insurance claims

Net cash provided by
operating activities

$ $ $ 2,027.034 $ 2,027,034
-

(2,224,530)
(Z429.212)
4,102,142

(987,653) (8,387,086)
(1,278,218) (370,729)
4,835,838 7,192,065

- (2,398,528)

(9,579,269)
(4,078,159)
15,930,045
(2,398,526)

(551,800) 2,371.967 84,758 1,905,125

Cash Fbws from Non-Capital Financing
Activities:

Operating transfers out
Net cash used In non-capital

financing activities

(8,312)

(8,312)

- - (6,312)

- - (6,312)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:

Pdncipal paid on capital lease and
notes payable

Interest paid on capital lease and
notes payable

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Acquisition and construction of

capital assets
Net cash used In capital and

related financing activiies

(171,753) (171,753)

(2,023)
101,581 112,613

(2,023)
214,174

(85,287) (1,945,278) (1,532) (2,032,075)

(157,482) (1,832,683) (1,532) (1,991,877)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing
activities

165,682 490,112 204,633 860,407

860,407165,662 490,112 204,633

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (549,732) 1,029,416 287,859 787,543

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of
year 2,659,468 7,320,727 3,457,244 13,437,439

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 2,109,738 $ 8,350,143 $ 3,745,103 $ 14,204,982

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. (Continued)
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA P
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Intemal
Service

Fleet
Management

Seff-
Insurance Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating ncome (loss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income

to cash flows provided by operating
actiities:

Depreciation
Loss (gain) on fixed asset disposal
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts and notes receivable
Inventories
Due from other governments
Other current assets

Increase (decrease) In Eabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Claims payable

$ (1,470,621) $ (97,524) $ (218,912)

906,359
(96,459)

29,038
2,728

1,995,408
20,543

(70)
(64,640)

5,333

5,068

7,000
(570)

$ (1,787,057)

2,907,100
(75,916)

34,036
(61,912)

7,000
26,066

627,872
29,408

198,528

26,636

34,137
16,582

505,424
12,826

88,311

198,528

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5 (551,600) $ 2,371,967 $ 84,758 $ 1,905,125

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATISTICAL SECTION

Description of Schedules

General Governmental Revenues and Other Financing Sources by Source

General Governmental Expenditures and Other Uses by Function

Property Tax Levies, Tax Collections and Assessed Valuations

Property Tax Rates and Levies - Direct and Overlapping Governments

Special Assessment Collections

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Schedules of Bond Coverage:
Electric System Revenue and Refunding Revenue Bonds
Water and Sewer Revenue and Refunding Revenue Bonds
Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992A and 1992B
Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Revenue Bonds and Capital

Improvement Revenue, Revenue Refunding and Refunding Revenue Certificates
Optional Gas Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Revenue Bonds and

Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds

Computation of Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Debt

Miscellaneous Statistical Data

Demographic Statistics

List of Ten Largest Taxpayers

Schedule of Insurance in Force

Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits

Summary of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity - All Bonded Debt

Statements of Bonded Debt and Interest:
Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Certificates, Series 1993
Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 1995
Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 2002
Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1996
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A
Electric System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001

Analysis of Sewerage System Capital Improvement Fund Established
for Florida Department of Environmental Regulation Grant #621080
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES BY SOURCE (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1993 1994 1995
$ 7,270C6B2 $ 7,575.278 $ 7,M2Pwpety taxes

Uility seAes tax
OMer taxes
ktrgor% reenes
Ucnses and pemits
Fes and btrb
Charges for serices and of-stre pardrg
Operabrq tanstrs tom cther htns
Bond and note poceeds

I1scelanecis
Totals

1,409,034
7,30,759

604,787
873,112
25300

17,411,683
14,143,855

780,108
277,420

$ 215,710

1,502,a77
9,214,202

783,066
891,455

2248,292
17,944,570
11,749,259
1,130,987

271,518
$ 53,288,712

1,508,7
9,12Z3

1,0S28
23830

17,00,5

1,47Z2
154,E

S 41,09B,6

199B
14 $ 7,81,975
- 4,791,403
es 1,673,398

383 1Q495,Q2i
B 800,587

S8 580973
349 2463,001
67 15,266,418

264 1,02,089
WOB 297,975
3 $ 45,810,840
_ EE .

(1) This schedule Includes revenues and other financing sources of the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds. Interfund expenditures have not been eliminated
between these funds.

-Ji
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1997 1998 1999 2000 Zf m2
$ 8,36B,548 $ 4480,580 $ 9,1Z9 $ 9,511,8 $ 11,548,574 $ 1243,199

4,722,401 50400,944 5,1,3E2 5,30,148 7,551,057 9,1
1,777,951 1,825,810 1,81423 2054,924 W960 395

11,657,539 1Z,4,615 13A5,031 12272487 11,036,370 13,365,718
957,288 950,467 1,054,871 1,096,018 1,589,534 1,055,S2
642935 W4,544 464,i8 381,070 391,95 403,753

228,92) 2747,158 9 3,8,5 4,115,134 4,094,55B
14,637,135 14,0816 13,231,408 1339,85 14,488,147 14,274,470

_ - - - ,544,12D
1,733,101 2161,010 1,039,143 1,847,372 28,5 1,770,818

314,017 436978 3134,30 1, 781 553,724 835,72
$ 47,337,835 $ 48,354,3z $ 51,658,2 $ 61,3Zi $ 55,103,670 $ 65,C0A315
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES BY FUNCTION (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1993
General go mermIent and administration $ 3,388,158
Public safety 12,621,517
Public wof 3,933,610
Culture and recreation 3,771,641
Nondepartmental 428,063
Debt serice 16,791,576
Capital outlay 2,262,339
Operating transfers to other finds 5,015,385
Payment to refunding bonds escrow agent
Miscellaneous 2,250,678

Totals $ 50,462,967

1994
$ 3,570,694

13,296,158
4,242,507
3,826,126

151,883
15,843,482
1,939,122
4,923,349

1,130,298
$ 48,923,619

1995
$ 3,750,858

14,812,271
4,531,891
3,939.075

87,932
3,501,935
3,160,173
4,777,853

995,400
$ 39,557,385

1996
$ 4,141,798

15,621,375
4,732,747
4,259,453

143,264
3,627,857
3,497,923
6,455,475

1,025,824
$ 43,505716

(1) This schedule Includes expenditures and other financing uses of the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds. Interfund expenditures have not been eliminated
between these funds.
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1997
$ 4,472,247

1602,853
5,253,535
5,184,240

191,039
3,760,178
5,175,529
3,990,763

1998
$ 4,759,554

17,47228
5,646,503
4,57Z977

210,752
3,758,570
4,993,327
4,017,101

1999
$ 5,353,842

18,844,027
%2s5,545
4,911,858

195,447
Z469,619
6,417,164
5,097,944

2000
$ 5,556,404

19,588,382
5,813,068
3,341,906

730,425
2.982635
9,521,370
5,187,048

2001
$ 5,207,855

21,686,577
5,931,960
3,650,228

316,333
2,979,339
7,120,700
4,552,992

$
2002

5,722144
23,546,305

8,722,518
3,922,136

330,237
5,164,672
8,462353
4,218,807

- 6,422315
1,057,508 2361,933 1,729,854 1,454,750 1,153,583 1,477,483

$ 45,757,892 $ 47,796,945 $ 51,285,300 $ 54,175,988 $ 5259,567 $ 67,970
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES, TAX COLLECTIONS

AND ASSESSED VALUATIONS (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Rfo
Assesed czre TbW CITcU

scal vakmam Tafte TaxlTah Ta Tax 1 CNA IszUced
ywb (100%Aa~eg fl, 0i c0ecun b y ThX"
1993 S 11,8,447 492 $ 7.4Za31 S 683708 7752 g7.e $ 564tA

1994 1517,X9 5.03 7=3 7,1363 7=.041 Sa 488,

1995 1,56,395,804 503 7X,6849 7,28,707 7,59538 9.9 547,142

1996 1.574,83100 5.09 8SA,653 7,474,513 7,781,671 9B. 557,140

1997 1.34,72 5.22 857S6 7=,9 s 8,87 972 64Z,70

1998 1, 88 5 8,7am255 8,131,968 844180 98.8 99197

199 1,771,688,458 527 9385,714 6,75,381 9.0,158 9S 530,333

2000 I1 ,85306830 527 921,59 9,17117 9%4A83 s4 649,462

201 Zr2eo,739 5.84 1184723 11,133,462 11,4383 98. 751,281

20 2,19469,258 5.78 1Z761,905 11,927,359 12227, 92 4

Source: Marion County Tax Collector and City of Ocala Finance & Administrative Services Department

(1) Excludes property tax levies of the Downtown Development Commission.

(2) Includes penalties under §193.072, Florida Statutes.

(3) Tax collections include curent and delinquent taxes, and tax certificates and payments to local
governments for homestead exemptions.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX RATES AND LEVIES -

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Millape Rates

Fiscal
Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

cty
4.92
5.03
5.03
5.09
5.22
5.22
5.27
5.27
5.84
5.78

County
6.05
6.10
5.74
5.40
5.71
6.22
6.15
6.15
6.18
6.06

School
9.41
9.58
9.88
9.75
9.99

10.59
10.62
9.83
9.66
9.50

Water
Management

Districts
0.36
0.47
0.48
0.48
0.48
0.48
0.48
0.48
0.47
0.46

Totals
20.74
21.18
21.13
20.72
21.40
22.51
22.52
21.73
22.15
21.80

Tax Levies

Rscal
Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

S
aCty(1)
7,389,129
7,611,869
7,823,068
8,02724
8,551,764
8,705,206
9,365,048
9,797,630

11,855,904
12,722,270

_ .

County(2)
$ 9,086,225

9,237,705
8,933,712
8,504,089
9,330,500

10,340,949
10,895,872
11,396,459
12,522,539
13,300,726

- School (2)
$ 14,132,460

14,507,741
15,377,191
15,354,605
16,324,90
17,606,214
18,815,310
18,215,804
19,574,065
20,850,973

Water
Management
Districts (2)

$ 540,668
711,758
747,070
755,919
784,350
798,015
850,409
889,480
952,361

1,009,626

Totals
$ 31,148,482

32,069,073
32,881,041
32,641,877
34,990,904
37,450,384
39,926,639
40,299,373
40,904,869
47,883,595

(1) Does not indude penalties under §193.072 of the Floda Statutes.

(2) The tax levies for overlapping governments reflect each government's millage applied to the total
assessed valuation within the City's corporate boundaries.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal
Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

New Liens
Assessed
$13,679

Collections
and

Acgushnents
$68,822

59,140
16,916
7,336

21,112
4,106

11,595
22770
25,044
2735

Total
Outstanding

Assessents (1)
$191,759

132,619
115,703
108,367

87,255
83,149
71,554
48,784
23,740
21,005

(1) Does not reflect reserves for uncollectible special assessment levies.

--4
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Assessed Vlue (100% at market as of Januaryl, 2002) $ Z194,839,266

Debt Umit 20% offsessed Value

Amount of General Obligation Debt Outstanding

$ 438,967,853

Legal Debt Mrgin $ 438,967,853

In accordance with Article IX, §9.02, of the City of Ocala Charter, the aggregate amount of general
obligation bonds of the City outstanding at any one time shag not be greater than twenty percent
(20%) of the assessed valuation of the taxable real and personal property in the City according to the
latest assessment of such real and personal property".
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Revenue
Available
for Debt Debt Service Requirements (2) (3) (4)

Year Servce (1) Principal Interest Total Coverage
1993 $21,524,840 $1,260,000 $683,780 $1,923,780 11.19 -

1994 23,081,766 1,345,000 582,353 1,927,353 11.98
1995 22,733,287 1,435,000 494,085 1,929,085 11.78
1998 19,025,573 1,530,000 398,038 1,928,038 9.87
1997 18,935,425 1,630,000 293,325 1,923,325 9.85
1998 22,891,440 1,745,000 179,390 1,924,390 11.90
1999 21,531,368 1,740,000 60,030 1,800,030 11.98
2000 20,413,962 - -
2001 18,548,045 - - - -

2002 22,489,491 445,000 243,571 243,571 92.33

(1) Represents gross operating revenues and Interest Income (including interest Income capitalized) less gross -

operating expenses, excluding amortization and depreciation, of the electric system.

(2) In October, 1989, the City issued Electri System Revenue Bonds, Series 1989A in the amount of $28,425,000
and Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1989B In the amount of $13,000,000. The 1989B
Bonds were Issued for the purpose of advance refunding the City's outstanding Power Supply Revenue Bonds,
Series 1977 and the Citys outstanding Power Supply Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1988. The refunding
bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the City because an escrow account was created for
them; and, therefore, all debt service requirements subsequent to October, 1989 for the refunded bonds have
been excluded from the determination of debt service coverage. The proceeds of the 1989A Bonds are being
used to fund the cost of the acquisition system and certain infrastructure Improvements related thereto. The
first interest payments on the Series 1989A and 1989B Bonds occurred in April, 1990; the first principal
payments were made October 1, 1990. The final principal and interest payments on the Series 1989B Bonds
were made on October 1, 1998.

(3) In March, 1992, the City issued the $28,435,000 Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 1992B, for the purpose of refunding the outstanding Electric Systern Revenue Bonds, Series 1989A 
The refunded bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the City since an escrow account was
created for thern; and, therefore, all debt service requirements subsequent to 1992 will be excluded from the
determination of debt service coverage. Since the Series 1992B Bonds, as well as the Utility Systems j
Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992A, are payable from a Hen upon the surplus revenues of
the Citys Water and Sewer System and the City's Electric System, the debt servce coverage for those two
issues Is shown in a separate schedule for 1993 and subsequent years.

(4) In August 2001, the City issued the $10,520,000 Electric System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001, for
the purpose of the current refunding of the Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1992B. The refunded bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the City since an escrow account
was created for them. The first interest payment on the Series 2001 bonds occurred in April 200Z the first
principal payment will be made on October 1, 2002.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF WATER AND SEWER REVENUE

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

bt evenue
Available
f>r Debt DebtService lidiremerdsX (43) (4 ( 

Year Service (1) Principal interes TOtal oeage
1993 $ 8,426,555 $ - $ 948,311 $ 948,311 &89
1994 8,177,122 45,000 8928 991,928 824
1995 8,596,135 245,000 937,825 1,18Z825 726
1996 9,041,538 260,000 1,051,660 1,311,660 6.89
1997 9,355,166 - 786,254 786,254 11.90
1998 10,048,7 385,000 953,281 1,338,281 7.51
1999 9,167,898 405,000 934,771 1,339,771 6.84
2000 10,960,270 420,000 914,745 1,334,745 821
2001 1Z828,558 445,000 893,613 1,338,613 9.58
2002 11,119,671 460,000 3,708,504 4,168,504 267

(1) Represents gross operating revenues less gross operating expenses, excluding amortization and
depreciation, of the water and sewer system. Additional pledge revenues are the unlevied public
service tax (all issues), Interest earnings on Investments and any Income realized from such
investments of the sinking, sinking reserve, and renewal and replacement funds.

(2) In March, 1992, the City issued the $51,880,000 Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 1992A, primarily for the purpose of refunding the outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 1985A and Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1986. The refunded
bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the City since an escrow account was created for
them; and, therefore, all debt service requirements subsequent to 1992 will be excluded from the
determination of debt service coverage. Since the Series 1992A Bonds, as well as the Utility Systems
Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 192B, are payable from a lien upon the surplus
revenues of the City's Water and Sewer System and the City's Electric System, the debt service
coverage for these two Issues Is shown in a separate schedule for 1993 and subsequent years.

(3) In October, 1995, the City Issued the $5,000,000 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995,
pimarily for the purpose of financing the cost of acquisition and construction of additions,
improvements and extensions to the City's water and sewer system. The first Interest payment on the
Series 1995 Bonds occurred In April, 1996 and the first principal payment occurred In October, 1997.

(4) In July, 1996, the City Issued the $12,170,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1996, primarily for the purpose of forward refunding the outstanding Water and Sewer Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 1988. The refunded bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the
City since an escrow account was created for them; and, therefore, all debt service requirements
subsequent to 1996 will be excluded from the determination of debt service charge. The first interest
payment on the Series 1996 Bonds occurred in October, 1996 and the first principal payment occurred
in October, 1997.

(Continued)
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF WATER AND SEWER REVENUE

AND REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Concluded)

(5) In April 2001, the City issued the $36,205,000 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2001,
primarily for the purpose of financing the cost of acquisition and construction of additions,
Improvements and extensions to the City's water and sewer system. The first interest payment on the
Series 2001 Bonds occurred on October 1, 2001, and the first principal payment will occur on October
1,2016.

(6) In August 2001, the City Issued the $39,885,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2001A, for the purpose of the current refunding of the Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 1992A. The refunded bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the City since
an escrow account was created for them. The first Interest payment on the Series 2001 bonds occurred
in April 2002; the first principal payment will be made on October 1, 2002.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY SYSTEMS SUBORDINATE

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 1992A AND 1992B, COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Net Revenue
Available
for Debt

Service (1)
$ 27,079,104

28,339,607
28,213,632
24,827,413
25,581,012
29,677,046
27,559,440
30,039,487
30,035,990

Debt Service Requirements (2)
Principal

$ 1,785,000
3,140,000
3,255,000
3,415,000
3,575,000
3,760,000
2,805,000
1 25,000
1,610,000

Interest
$ 4,814,527

4,520,638
4,107,890
3,953,546
3,783,065
3,595,930
3,422,435
3,304,000
3,214,610

Total
$ 6,59,527

7,660,538
7,362,890
7,368,546
7,358,065
7,355,930
6,227,435
4,829,000
4,824,610

Coverage
4.10
3.70
3.83
3.37
3.48
4.03
443
622
623

(1) Represents the surplus revenues of the City's Eledric System and of the Citys Water and Sewer
System available after the payment of the debt service requirements on the senior lien bonds.

(2) In August 2001, the City Issued the $39,885,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2001A, and the $10,520,000 Electric System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001, primarily for the
purpose of the current refunding of the outstanding Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 1992A and 1992B. The refunded bonds are no longer considered outstanding debt of the
City since an escrow account was created for them; therefore all debt service coverage subsequent to
2001 will be excluded from the determination of debt service coverage.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE AND

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE, REVENUE
REFUNDING AND REFUNDING REVENUE CERTIFICATES COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Pledged Revenues

Local

Government Communication Occupational Mobile Court

Half-Cent Services Franchise License Guaranteed Home Fines and

Year Sales Tax Tax Fees Tax Entitlement 1) Licenses Forfeitures
1993 $1,784,593 - $488,574 $385,591 $643622 $18,025 S732,964
1994 1,997,084 - 542,026 387,487 643,622 15,457 735,268
1995 2,108,783 497,871 378,545 543,822 1S,913 660,082
1996 2,196,321 - 573,247 438.648 643,622 21,030 507,069
1997 2,245,440 - 627.813 439,902 643,622 25,700 468,236
1998 2,443,377 594,940 452,402 643,622 26,488 532,189
1999 2,632,262 - 584,533 483,809 643,622 29,113 431,951
2000 2,530,619 - 807,441 488,485 843,822 43,358 337,801
2001 2,804.438 - 911,727 490,247 643,622 43,124 360,254
2002 2,919,423 $3,944,616 321,825 487,485 643,822 37,504 384,691

(1) The minimum amount of state revenue sharing funds to be received by the City in accordance with the
provisions of the State of Florida Revenue Sharing Act.

(2) The Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1988 were sold In August, 1986. The first
interest payment for this issue was on October 1, 1988, and the first principal payment was on
October 1, 1987. This issue places a senior lien on the pledged revenues. The outstanding portion of
this issue was refunded In December, 1993 by the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue
Certificates, Series 1993. Since an escrow account was established for the redemption of this issue,
the 1988 bonds will not be included in the debt service requirements for 1994 and subsequent years.

(3) The Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Certificates, Series 1988 were sold in August, 1988. The
first principal and interest payments were made on April 1, 1989. This issue constituted a junior or
subordinate lien on the pledged revenues until the senior debt, the Capital Improvement Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 1988, was refunded in December, 1993. The final principal and interest
payments for this issue were made on April 1, 1998.

(4) The Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Certificates, Series 1993 were sold in December, 1993.
The first interest payment was made on April 1, 1994, and the first principal payment was made on
October 1, 1999. This issue is on a parity with the Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding
Certificates, Series 1988 and with the Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 1995 and
Series 2002.
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Total

Revenue

A.tallable

for Ddet DtSec Reqia ( (X (4 6 

Servce
$4,011,369

4,300.922
4,303,796
4,377,935
4,450,713
4,693,016
4,765,290
4,851,326
5,253,422
8,739,166

Prlndpd
$1,145,000

1.410,000
980,000

1,050,000
1,120,000
1¶.0,000

520,000
540,000
560,000

tel
$1,212,244

1.05829
1,201,352
1.258,467
1 322,799
1,244,399
1,158,599
1,148,418
1,127,339
1,104X95

Total
$2,357,244
2,468229
2,181,352
2,308,467
2,442,799
2,444,399
t,168,599
1.868,418
1.667,339
1,664,895

Covraqe
1.70
1.74
1.97
1.90
1.82
1.92
4.11
2.91
3.15
5.25

(5) The Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Sefies 1995 were sold in October, 1995. The first
Interest payment was made on April 1, 1996, and the first principal payment was made on October 1,
1999. This Issue Is on a parity with the Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Certificates, Series
1988 and with the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Certificates, Series 1993 and with the
Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 2002 and with the Capital Improvement Revenue
Certificates, Series 2002.

(6) The Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 2002 were sold In September, 2002. The first
Interest payment will occur on April 1, 2003, and the first principal payment will occur on October 1,
2003. This Issue is on a parity with the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Certificates, Series
1993 and with the Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 1995 and Series 2002.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF OPTIONAL GAS TAX REVENUE BONDS AND

OPTIONAL GAS TAX REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

-

Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Ravenue -
Si-Cent

toal
Gas Tax

$2,060,097
,065,100

2,077,200
2,156,374
Z304,362
2282798

41,976
2440,94
Z51,737
2,625,636

Debt Serwice Rtqurements (1) (2) (3)
Principal
$395,000
620,000
595,000
615,000
635,000
660,000
690,000
725,000
755,000
800,000

IWrest
$851,586
734,403
715,763
694,578
670,490
64,953
61Z476
578,395
541,018
200,565

Total
$1,246,586

1,354,403
1,310783
1,309,578
1,305,490
1,302,953
1,302,476
1,303,395
1,298,018
1,300,565

1.65
1.52
1.58
1.65
1.77
1.75
1.86
1.87
1.94
202

(1) The Optional Gas Tax Revenue Bonds, Serles 1989 were sold in February, 1989. The first interest
payment occurred In June, 1989, and the first principal payment occurred In December, 1990. The
outstanding portion of this issue was advance refunded in December, 1992 by the Optional Gas Tax
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992. Since an escrow account was established for the redemption
of this issue, the 1989 bonds will not be included In the debt service requirements after 1993.

(2) The Optional Gas Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 were sold in December, 1992. The first
Interest payment occurred In June, 1993, and the first principal payment occurred in December, 1993.
The outstanding portion of this Issue was refunded in September, 2002 by the Optional Gas Tax
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 by the Optional Gas Tax Refunding and
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002. Since an escrow account was established for the current
refunding of this issue, the 1992 bonds will not be included In the debt service requirements after 2002.

(3) The Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 were sold in
September, 2002. The first interest payment will occur in April, 2003, and the first principal payment will
occur In October, 2003.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND

OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (1)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Bonds
Govemmental Unit Outstanding

Applicable to City of Ocala
Percent (2) Amount

Marion County
Umited Ad Valorem Refunding Tax Bonds,

Series 1994
imited Ad Valorem Refunding Tax Bonds,
Series 1998

School District of Marion County
General Obligation Refunding Bonds,

Series 1992
General Obligation Partial Refunding Bonds,

Series 1993

$ 6,365,000

8,805,000
15,170,000 27.51% $ 4,173,267

2,930,000

8,615,000
11,545,000 27.51% 3,176,030

Total Overlapping Debt $ 26,715,000 $ 7,349,297

(1) The City of Ocala did not have any general obligation debt outstanding during the fiscal year ended
September 30,2002.

(2) Represents the fraction of assessed valuation of taxable property in the City of Ocala overthe assessed
valuation of taxable property In the governmental unit.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Date of Incorporation

CityCharter~Aopted

Form of Government

Area of City

Miles of St-es, Sidewalks and Bikepaths
Street - Paved
Streets - Unpaved
Sidewalks (1)
3ikepaths

Miles of Sewers
Storm
Sanitary
Force Main

Number of Lit Stations

Building Permits (October2001 - September2002) (2)
Permit. Issued
Permit Value

Fire Protection:
Stations
Employees - Sworn
Employees - Civilian
Fire and rescue response time (minutes)

Police Protection:
Stations
Employees - Sworn
Employees - Civilian
Vehicular Patrol Units - Marked Vehicles
Vehicular Palrol Units - Motorcycles
Vehicular Patrol Units -Other Vehicles

Recreation:
Land area (acres)
Acivitycenters
Pools

February4,1869

January28,1885

Council/Manager

39.42 square miles

286.34 miles
9.72 miles

61.56 miles
25.47 miles

72.28 miles
299.24 miles

71.8 miles
98

5.059
$92.061,764

5
115

5
4 to 

5
157

88
106

5
63

731
7
2

(1) Includes 11.66 miles of sidewalks installed by the Florida Department of Transportation located inside
the City limits.

(2) Includes plumbing, gas, electrical, water, heating, air conditioning, refrigeration, ventilation and building J
permits; does not nclude moving and sign pemnits.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

POPULATION - LAST TEN YEARS

Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

City of Ocala
4Z400
42,920
43,207
43,332
43,630
44,718
45,585
45,943
46,288
46,543

Madon County
213,328
217,862
224,612
229,260
237,204
242,357
249,433
258,900
264,277
271,096

Source: The City of Ocala Comprehensive Plan - Planning Department.

POPULATION PROJECTIONS 11)

Year
2010
2015
2020
2025
2030

Marion Courty
316,700
346,600
377,500
407,400
503,800

State of Florida
18,866,700
20,314,500
21,792,600
23,222,200
24,528,600

Source: 2002 Florida Statistical Abstract, Bureau of Business and Economic Research -
University of Florida, Gainesville. Figures for years prior to year 2010 and
subsequent to year 2030 are unavailable.

Year
0-14
15-24
25-44
45-64
65+

% POPULATION BY AGE GROUP 1)
Marion County State of Florida

17.4% 1&9%
10.5% - 12.4%
23.1% 28.0%
24.4% 23.2%
24.6% 17.5%

Source: 2002 Florida Statistical Abstract, Bureau of Business and Economic Research -
University of Florida, Gainesville

(1) Figures are not maintained for individual cities within Marion County.

103



CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
LIST OF TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

2002 TAX ROLL

Taxpayer

1. K-Mart Corporation

2. Sprint-Florida, Inc.

3. Ocala Regional Medical
Center

4. Clairson International

5. Paddock Mall Associates

6. ITC Deltacom Switching
SeNce

7. Paddock Park Apartments

8. Carton Arms of Ocala

9. Gray Lumber Company
(Tuscany Apartments)

10. C.C. Ocala Joint Venture
(Gaitway Plaza)

Type of Business

Department Store/
Distribution Center

Telephone Communications

General Hospital Care

Manufacturer

Regional Shopping Center

Telephone Communications

Apartment Complex

Apartment Complex

Apartment Complex

Local Shopping Center

Assessed
Valuation

$ 52,083,977

43,998,369

29,771,348

28,928,421

27,354,715

15,925,023

15,547,849

14,705,912

12,298,834

11,828,541

% of Total
Assessed
Valuation

2.37%

2.00%

1.38%

1.32%

1.25%

0.72%

0.71%

0.67%

0.56%

0.53%

City Tax
Bill (1X2)

$ 300,962

254,240

172,031

187,160

158,068

92,021

89,841

84,977

71,066

67,183

Total Adjusted Value
Other Taxpayers

Total Assessed Value

252,240,589
1,942,598,677

$2,194,839,266

11.49%
88.51%

100.00%

1,457,547
11,284,723

$12,722,270

(1) City of Ocala taxpayers pay City, County, School Board and certain water district leves.
The City levy only is shown here.

(2) Excludes property tax levies of the Downtown Development Districts.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Deductible
Self UmLt of

Retention CoverageCompany Policy # Type of Coverage

City of Ocala

Safety National
Casualty Corporation

Hartford Ue Insurance
Company

Hartford fe Insurance
Company

Hartford Ufe Insurance
Company

Unurn-Prwodent Ufe
Insurance Company

City of Ocala

Coregis Insurance Co.

National Union Fire
Insurance

Coregis Insurance Co.

Coregis Insurance Co.

Coregis Insurance Co.

Hartford Steam Boiler

ECS/Greenwich
Insurance Company

City of Ocala

Selfnsured Workers' Compensation Statutory

SP 4277-FL

ETB-110402

ElB-110402

ETB-110402

125543

Selfnsured

651-0Q6889

AE3388673-01

651-006889

POD-001813

651-006889

FBP 9429840

PEC 0006048

SelfInsured

Workers' Compensation excess

Police and Firefighters accidental
death and dismemberment

Fresh Pursuit/Emergency
Response

Police and Firefighters Intentional
death and dismemberment

Employee Ufe, AD and D

Disability Income Replacement

All risk property

Airport Uability

General Uability, ncludng Fire
Legal and EMT Uablity

Public Officials Uability and
Employer Practices Uability

Crime Policy Including
Employee Dishonesty

Boiler and Machinery

Pollution Uability

Auto Uability

$250,000

$100,000

$100,000
per person
$200,000
per occurrence

$15,000
per occurrence

$10,000
per occurrence

$10,000

$50,000

Statutory

$25,000

$25,000

$ 75,000

Various as
specifed In

policy

60% of Income

Replacement
cost

$5,000,000
per occurrence

$1,000,000
per occurrence

$1,000,000
per occurrence

$250,000
per occurrence

$25,000,000
limit

$1,000,000
per occurrence

(Continued)
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30,2002

Company

City of Ocala

Coregis Insurance Co.

Coregis Insurance Co.

Blue CrossIl~ue
Shield of Florida

City of Ocala

Ullco Insurance Co.

Reliance Surety
Company

Policy #

Self-insured

651-006889

851-006889

15920

Self-insured

FPLI801478

6800307

Type of Coverage

Auto Physical Damage

Auto Physical Damage, High
Cost Vehicles

Out of state auto liability

Employee Health Coverage

Dental

Fiduciary Uability

Bond, Over-weight charge
(landfill)

Deductible
Self Limit of

Retention Coverage

- Actual cash
value

$100,000 Actual cash
value

$100,000 $1,000,000
per occurrence

Fully Insured Various as
specified In

policy

Fully self- $1,000 per
Insured person per year

$1,000 $1,000,000
per claim

- $10,000

Surety Bonds Required by Ordinance
City Manager.
Reliance Surety Co. 6894635

Finance and Administrative Services Director
Reliance Surety Co. 6800308

Amount

$ 95,000

$95,000
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Commercial
Construction (1)

Number

Residential
Construction (1)

Number

Bank Deposits
(in thousands)

Savings& Loan
Year
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

of Units
35
70
72
51
55
61
79
76
72

101

Value
$ 9,475,119

38,309.231
32,579,580
14,222,885
32,731,058
21,826,358
39,962,937
44,932,744
83,284.180
33,542,912

of Units
96

112
119
122
118
208
212
207
172
131

Value
$ 8,105,884

10,159,393
8,439,036
9.314,269

10,547,982
30,564,248
19,190,387
22,497,308
24,646,219
15,819,218

-

Bank (2) (4)
$1,422,021
2,074,371
2,134,528
2,332,913
2,391,266
2,520,364
2541,736
2,533,202
2,732,180
2,928,964

Association (3) (4)
$711,342

85,726
119,237

409

(1) Obtained from records maintained by the City of Ocala Building, Zoning and Ucensing Department.

(2) Obtained by the Florida Bankers Association for 1997 and 1998; Barnett Bank for 1993 through 1996;
FDIC web site for 1999 through 2002. Figures shown are for Marlon County and represent total bank
deposits at September 30 for the years 1993 through 1998; June 30 for 1999 through 2002.

(3) Obtained by Bamett Bank for 1993 through 1996, the Florida Bankers Association for 1997 and 198,
and the FDIC web site for 1999 through 2002. Figures shown are for Marion County and represent
total savings and loan association deposits at June 30 for 1999 through 2002, and at September 30 for
1993 through 1998.

(4) The swing In deposits from savings and loan associations to banks represents the purchaselmerger of
Mid-State Federal Savings and Loan Association by AmSouth Bank and of Califomia Federal Savings
and Loan Association by NationsBank during fiscal year 1994, and purchase/merger of Citizens
Savings and Loan Association by NationsBank during fiscal year 1996.
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

ALL BONDED DEBT
2003-2032

FISCAL
YEAR

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2208
2009
2010
2011
2D12
2213
2D14
2215
2016
D17
2018
2019
2D20
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2028
2027
2022
2029
2030
2D31
232

Totals

CAPITAL OPTIONAL
IMPROVEMENT GAS TAX

REVENUE REFUNDING
AND AND

REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT
REVENUE REVENUE

CERTIFICATES BONDS
S 1.961,757 $ 298.968

Z697,150 1,865.388
2703,.09 1,875,575
2,707,915 1,876,575
2699,057 1,871.7S2
2701,372 1,874,282
2699,284 1,S68,493
2698,012 1,867,722
2696,471 1,866,910
2694,636 1,861,822
3,073,881 3,928,228
3,068,450
3,069,425 -

Ac66.56 -

3,062,594
3,057,389
3,060,789
2,046,664
2040,986
Z045,075
Z039,10 -

$ 55,S90,391 $ 21,055,503

WATER &
ELECTRIC SEWER
SYSTEM REVENUE AND

REFUNDING REUNDING
REVENUE REVENUE

BONDS BONDS
$2271.406 $ 6,90,189

2299,387 7,041,045
2,294,219 7,041,039
2,296,613 7.048,875
2,293,053 7,039,200

- 7,02B,553
- 7,023,188
- 7,021,428
- 7.019,132
- 7,014.887
- 7,011,839

- 7,002,484
- 6,991,236
- 6,987,139

- 3,847,187
- 3,845,775
- 3,839,625
- 3,838,475
- 3,836,937
- 3,837,538
- 3,840,162
- 3,841,913
- 3,847,412
- 3,847,928
- 3,843,025
- 3,840,513

TOTAL
PRINCIPAL

AND
INTEREST
S 11,440,318

13,902,970
13,914,642
13,929,978
13,903,072
11,602,187
11,590,965
11,587,162
11,582,513
11,571,145
14,013,948
10,070,934
10,060,661
10,053,708
6,909,781
6.903,164
6,900,414
5,885,139
5,877,923
5,882,613
5,879,268
3,841,913
3.847,412
3,847,925
3,843,025
3,840,513
3,832,012
3,816,575
3,796,219
3,775.513

$247,903,612

-4d

3,832,012
3,816,575
3,796,219
3,775,513

$ 159,503,040$11,454,678

I
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING REVENUE CERTIFICATES, SERIES 1993
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

The Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Certificates, Series 1993, dated December 14, 1993, bear
Interest at 3.90-5.25%, payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. The certificates, which are fully
registered and were issued In denominations of $5,000 or any Integral multiple thereof, consist of $6,045,000
of serial certificates and $12,320,000 of term certificates. As of September 30, 2002, $915,000 of these
certifcates have been retired. The principal of and premium, if any, are payable upon presentation and
surrender to the paying agent, The Bank of New York, as successor to NationsBank of Georgia, National
Association, Atlanta, Georgia.

The Series 1993 Certificates and the Interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and
pledge of sales tax revenues, franchise fees, occupational license taxes, the guaranteed entitlement portion
of state revenue sharing funds, mobile home licenses and court fines and forfeitures. The Series 1993
Certificates are payable on a parity with the City's outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates,
Series 1995.

Proceeds received from the sale of the Series 1993 Certificates, were used primarily to refund the City's
Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1986,
construction of certain capital Improvements in the City.

and to finance the costs of acquisition and

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Interest
Rate
4.20%
4.30%
4.50%
4.60%
4.70%
4.80%
4.90%
4.90%
5.25%
5.25%
5.25%
5.25%
5.00%h
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%

Totals

Principal
Due

October 1
$ 500,000

520,000
540,000
570,000
590,000
620,000
650,000
680,000
715,000
755,000

1,330,000
1,395,000
1,470,000
1,545,000
1,620,000
1,700,000
1,790,000

$ 16,990,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 421,514

411,014
399,834
387,684
374,574
360,709
345,829
329,904
313,244
294,475
274,656
239,744
203,125
166,375
127,750
87,250
44,750

$4,782,431

Interest
Due

April 1
$ 411,014

399,834
387,684
374,574
360,709
345,829
329,904
313,244
294,475
274,656
239,744
203,125
166,375
127,750
87,250
44,750

$4,360,917

Totals
$ 1,332,528

1,330,848
1,327,518
1,332,258
1,325,283
1,326,538
1,325,733
1,323,148
1,322,719
1,324,131
1,844,400
1,837,869
1,839,500
1,839,125
1,835,000
1,832,000
1,834,750

$26,133,348
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CITY OF OCALAv FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE CERTIFICATES, SERIES 1995
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

In October, 1995, the $5,000,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Series 1995 were sold. This
issue consists of $1,335,000 in serial certificates maturing on October 1, 1999 through 2011 and of
$3,665,000 in term certificates maturing on October 1, 2022. As of September 30, 2002, $165,000 of these
certificates have been retired. The schedule below shows the actual maturities for the serial certificates and
the debt service requirements for the term certificates. The certificates are fully registered and were issued in
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The paying agent and registrar Is The Bank of New
York.

The Series 1995 Certificates and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and
pledge of sales tax revenues, franchise fees, occupational license taxes, the guaranteed entitlement portion
of state revenue sharing funds, mobile home licenses and court fines and forfeitures. The Series 1995
Certificates are payable on a parity with the City's outstanding Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue
Certificates, Series 1993.

Proceeds received from the sale of the Series 1995 Certificates are being used primarily to finance the costs
of acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements In the City.

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2008
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Interest
Rate

4.400%
4.500%
4.600%
4.700A
4.800%
4.9000%
5.000%
5.100%
5.200%
5.300%

5.375%
5.375%
5.375%
5.375%
Totals

Principal
Due

October 1
$ 85,000

90,000
95,000

100,000
105,000
110,000
115,000
125,000
130,000
135,000

845,000
890,000
940,000
990,000

$ 4,755,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 125,162

123,292
121,267
119,082
116,732
114,212
111,517
108,642
105,454
102,074
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
75,787
51,869
28,606

$ 2,089,872

Interest
Due

April 1
$ 123,292

121,267
119,082
116,732
114,212
111,517
108,642
105,454
102,074
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
98,497
75,787
51,869
28,608

$ 1,964,510

Totals
$ 333,454

334,559
335,349
335,814
335,944
335,729
335,159
339,098
337,528
335,571
196,994
198,994
198,994
198,994
198,994
196,994
198,994

1,019,284
1,017,656
1,018,475
1,016,608

$ 8,809,182
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CITY OF OCALA
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2002
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

The Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates, Sedes 2002, dated September 1, 2002, bear Interest at 2.00-
4.50%, payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. The certificates, which are fully registered and were
issued In denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, consist of $14,340,000 of serial
certificates. The paying agent and registrar Is The Bank of New York.

The Series 2002 Certificates and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and
pledge of half-cent sales tax revenues, franchise fees, local communication services tax, occupational license
taxes, the guaranteed entitlement portion of state revenue sharing funds, mobile home licenses and court
fines and forfeitures. The Series 2002 Certificates are payable on a parity with the City's outstanding Capital
Improvement Refunding Revenue Certificates, Series 1993, and Capital Improvement Revenue Certificates,
Series 1995.

Proceeds received from the sale of the Series 2002 Certificates, are being used primarily to finance the costs
of acquisition and construction of certain capital Improvements in the City.

Fiscal Interest
Year Rate
2003 -

2004 2000%
2005 2.000%
2006 2.000%
2007 2.250%
2008 2.500%
2009 2.850%
2010 3.000%
2011 3.250%
2012 3.350%
2013 3.400%
2014 3.550%
2015 3.650%
2016 3.800%
2017 4.000%
2018 4.100%
2019 4.200%
2020 4.300%
2021 4.400%
2022 4.500%
2023 4.500%

Totals

Principal
Due

October 1

$530,000
550,000
560,000
570,000
585,000
600,000
615,000
635,000
655,000
675,000
700,000
725,000
750,000
780,000
810,000
845,000
880,000
915,000
960,000

1,000,000
$14,340,000

Interest
Due

October 1-

$253,522
248,221
242,721
237,121
230,709
223,396
214,996
205,771
195,453
184,481
173,006
160,581
147,350
133,100
117,500
100,895
83,150
64,230
44,100
22,500

$3,282,803

Interest
Due

April 1
$295,775
248,221
242,721
237,122
230,709
223,396
214,996
205,772
195,453
184,481
173,006
160,581
147,350
133,100
117,500
100,895
83,150
64,230
44,100
22,500

$3,325,058

Totals
$ 295,775

1,031,743
1,040,942
1,039,843
1,037,830
1,039,105
1,038,392
1,035,768
1,036,224
1,034,934
1,032,487
1,033,587
1,032,931
1,030,450
1,030,600
1,028,395
1,029,045
1,027,380
1,023,330
1,026,600
1,022,500

20,947,861
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

OPTIONAL GAS TAX REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2002

SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

The Optional Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, dated September 1, 2002,
bear interest at 2.25-3.50%, payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. The bonds, which are fully
registered and were Issued In denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, consists of
$15,500,000 of serial bonds and $2,085,000 of term bonds. The paying agent and registrar is The Bank of
New York.

The Series 2002 Bonds and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien and pledge of
the proceeds of the six cent local option fuel tax received by the City.

Proceeds received from the sale of the Series 2002 Bonds were used primarily to refund the City's Optional
Gas Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992, and to finance the cost of acquisition and construction of
certain roads and road improvements within the City.

-

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
205
2008
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2013

Interest
Rate

2500%
2.500%
2.250%
2.500%
2.500%
2.800%
3.OOO
3.250%
3.350%
3.400%
3.550%
Totals

Principal
Due

October 1
$-

1,370,000
1,415,000
1,450,000
1,480,000
1,520,000
1,555,000
1,600,000
1,650,000
1,700,000
1,760,000

* 2065,000
$ 17,565,000

Due Due
October 1 April 1

$ -$ 298,968
258,257 239,131
239,131 221,444
221,444 205,131
205,131 188,831
188,831 167,831
167,831 145,862
145,861 121,881
121,881 95,049
95,049 66,573
68,574 36,654

$ 1,705,570 $ 1,784,933

Total
$ 298,968

1,885,388
1,875,575
1,876,575
1,871,782
1,874,282
1,888,493
1,867,722
1,868,910
1,881,822
3,928,228

$ 21,055,503

Interest Interest

-

*Tern Bond due April 1, 2013

j
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CIlY OF OCALA, FL
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1995
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

In October, 195, the $5,000,000 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 195 were sold. This Issue
consists of $155,000 In serial bonds maturing on October 1, 1997 through 2011 and of $4,845,000 In teri
bonds maturing on October 1, 2020. As of September 30, 2002, $35,000 of these bonds have been retired.
The schedule below shows the actual maturities for the serial bonds and the debt service requirements for the
term bonds. The bonds are fully registered and were Issued In denominations of $5,000 or any Integral
multiple thereof. The paying agent and registrar Is The Bank of New York.

The Series 1995 Bonds and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon the net
revenues derived from the operation of the water and sewer system on a parity with the Water and Sewer
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.

The proceeds of this issue are being used primarily to finance the cost of acquisition
additions, Improvements and edensions to the City's water and sewer system.

and construction of

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Interest
Rate
4A0%
4.50%
4.60%
4.70%
4.80%
4.90%
5.00%
5.10%
5.20%
5.30%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%

Totals

Principal
Due

October 
$ 10,000

10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000

860,000
905,000
955,000

1,005,000
1,060,000

$4,955,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 135,925

135,705
135,480
135,250
135,015
134,775
134,530
134,280
134,025
133,635
133,237
132,825
132,412
132,000
131,587
107,937
83,050
56,787
29,150

$2,287,605

Interest
Due

April Total
$ 135,705 $ 281,630

135,480 281,185
135,250 280,730
135,015 280,265
134,775 279,790
134,530 279,305
134,280 278,810
134,025 278,305
133,635 282,660
133,238 281,873
132,825 281,062
132,413 280,238
132,000 279,412
131,588 278,588
107,938 1,099,525
83,050 1,095,987
56,788 1,094,838
29,150 1,090,937

- 1,089,150
$2,151,685 $ g,394,290
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CITY OF OCALA, FL
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1998
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

In July, 1998, the $12,170,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 were sold. This
issue consists of $1,620,000 In serial bonds maturing on October 1, 1997 through 2000 and of $10,550,000 In
temn bonds maturing on October 1, 2005, 2010 and 2015. As of September 30, 2002, $1,835,000 of these
bonds have been retired. The schedule below shows the actual maturities for the serial bonds and the debt
service requirements for the term bonds. The bonds are fully registered and were issued in denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The paying agent and registrar is The Bank of New York.

The Series 1996 Bonds and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon the net
revenues derived from the operation of the water and sewer system on a parity with the Water and Sewer
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995.

The proceeds of this Issue are being used primarily for the forward refunding of the City's outstanding Water
and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1988.

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Interest
Rate
6.00%
8.00%
6.00%
8.00%
6.00%
6.00%
6.00%
8.00%
6.00%
5.50%/6
5.50%S
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%

Totals

Prindpal
Due

October 1
$ 485,000

510,000
540,000
580,000
610,000
645,000
685,000
725,000
770,000
815,000
860,000
910,000
955,000

1,010,000
$10,100,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 291,625

277,075
261,775
245,575
228,175
209,875
190,525
169,975
148,225
125,125
102,712
79,082
54,037
27,775

$ 2,411,536

Interest
Due

April 1
$ 277,075

261,775
245,575
228,175
209,875
190,525
159,975
148,225
125,125
102,713
79,063
54,038
27,775

$2,119,914

Totals
$ 1,053,700

1,048,850
1,047,350
1,053,750
1,048,050
1,045,400
1,045,500
1,043,200
1,043,350
1,042,838
1,041,775
1,043,100
1,036,812
1,037,775

$14,631,450

-I

I
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CITY OF OCALA, FL
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2001
SEPTEMBER 30,2002

In May 2001, the $36,205,000 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2001, were sold. This Issue consists
of $9,120,000 in seial bonds maturing on October 1, 2016 through 2022 and of $27,085,000 In term bonds
maturing on October 1, 2024, 2027 and 2031. The schedule below shows the actual maturities for the serial
bonds and the debt service requirements for the term bonds. The paying agent and registrar Is The Bank of
New York.

The Series 2001 Bonds and the Interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien on the net
revenues derived from the operation of the City's Water and Sewer System on a parity with the Water and
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, the Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1986.and the
Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A.

The proceeds received from the sale of the Series 2001 Bonds are being used primarily to finance the cost of
acquisition and construction of additions, Improvements and extensions to the City's water and sewer system.

-

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2006
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

Interest
Rate

5.00%/
5.00%/
5.00%/
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%
5.00%/
5.00%
5.25%

5.25%
5.75%
5.75%
5.75%
5.75%

Totals

Principal
Due

October 

$ 35000
880,000
920,00
970,000

1,020,000
2,190,000
2,305,000
2,425,000
2,555,000
2,690,000
830,0o

2,980.000
3,140,00D
3.310,000
3,485,000
3,670,000

$ 36,205,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 96.768

968,769
966,769
966,769
966,768
96,769
96,769
968,769
966,768
066,769
966,769
966,769
966,768
966,769
966,769
945,894
S23,693
900,894
876,643
851,144
796.394
738,769
678,144
614,269
543,656
489,369
391,143
300,869
205,706
105,513

$ 23,843,831

Interest
Due

April 1
$ 966,769

966,769
966,768
966,769
066.769
966,769
966,768
966,769
966,769
966,769
966,768
86.769
96,769
966,769
945,893
923,894
900,894
676,644
851,144
796,394
738,768
678,144
614,268
543,656
469,369
391,144
300,869
205,706
105,513

S 22,877,063

Totals
1,S33.537
1,933,538
1,933,537
1,933,538
1,933,537
1,933,538
1,933,537
1,933,538
1,933,537
1,933,538
1,933,537
1,933,538
1,933,537
1,S33,53S
2,747,66
2,749,788
2,744,787
2,747,538
Z747,787
3,837,538
3,840,162
3,841,913
3,847,412
3,847,925
3,843,025
3,840,513
3,832,012
3,816,575
3,796,219
3,775,513

82,925,894
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

WATER AND SEWER REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2001A
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

In August 2001, the $39,885,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, were sold. This
issue consists of $39,885,000 In serial bonds maturing on October 1, 2002 through 2015. Al September 30,
2002, none of these bonds have been retired. The schedule below shows the actual maturties for the serial
bonds. The bonds are fully registered and were issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof. The paying agent and registrar Is The Bank of New York.

The Series 2001A Bonds and the interest are payable solely from and secured by a lien on the net revenues
derived from the operation of the City's Water and Sewer System on a parity with the Water and Sewer
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, the Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 and the Water
and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.

Proceeds received from the sale of the Series 2001A Bonds are being used primarily for the current
refunding of the City's Utility Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992A.

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2008
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2018

Interest
Rate

4.000%
3.500%
4.000%
3.250%
3.375%
4.250%
3.750%
4.0000h
4.000%
4.100%
4.200%
4.300%
4.400%A
5.500%
Totals

Principal
Due

October 1
$ 2,080,000

2,300,000
2,390,000
2,480,000
2,560,000
2,650,000
2,755,000
2,865,000
2,975,000
3,095,000
3,225,000
3,355,000
3,500,000
3,655,000

$ 39,885,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 800,481

758,881
718,611
870,811
630,512
587,311
530,999
479,343
422,042
382S43
299,095
231,370
159,237
82,238

$ 8,733,434

Interest
Due

April Total
$ 758,861 $ 3,839,322

718,811 3,777,472
870,811 3,779,422
830,511 3,781,322

587,311 3,777,823
530,999 3,768,310
479,342 3,765,341
422,042 3,766,385
382,543 3,759,585
299,095 3,756,638
231,370 3,755,465
159,238 3,745,608
82,238 3,741,475

- 3,737,238
$ 5,932,972 $ 52,551,408

-4
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2001
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

In August 2001, the $10,520,000 E8ectric System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 were sold. This
Issue consists of $10,520,000 in serial bonds maturing on October 1, 2002 through 2006. As of
September30, 2002, none of these bonds have been retired. The schedule below shows the actual
maturities for the serial bonds. . The bonds are fully registered and were Issued in denominations of $5,000
or any integral multiple thereof. The paying agent and registrar Is The Bank of New York.

The Series 2001 Bonds and the Interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon the net
revenues derived from the operation of the City's electric system.
The proceeds of this issue are being used primarily for the current refunding of the City's outstanding Utility
Systems Subordinate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992B.

Fiscal
Year
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

Principal
Interest Due

Rate October 1
3.500% $ 1,940,000
3.250% 2,035,000
4.00% 2,105,000
3.250% Z185,000
3.375% 2,255,000
Totals $ 10,520,000

Interest
Due

October 1
$ 182,678

148,728
115,659
73,560
38,053

$ 558,678

Interest
Due

April 1
$ 148,728

115,659
73,560
38,053

$ 376,000

Totals
$ 2,271,406

Z299,387
2,294,219
2,296,613
2,293,053

$ 11,454,678
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CITY OF OCALA, FLORIDA
ANALYSIS OF SEWERAGE SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
ESTABLISHED FOR FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL

REGULATION GRANT #621080

The City received grant number 621080 from the State of Florida Department of Environmental Regulation for
a portion of the construction of Sewer Treatment Plant #1. One of the requirements of this grant Is that the
City provide for a sewerage system capital improvement account to accumulate the equivalent future value of
the grant amount adjusted for Inflationary cost increases upon completion of the grant-related project In
December, 1985, the City adopted ordinance #1810 which addresses this subject in section 5. The amount to
be accumulated by the City is $8,020,482.40. Grant condition number 23 requires annual certification that the
sewerage system capital improvement account is maintained in accordance with Section 17-501.810 of the
Florida Administrative Code.
The construction of the grant-related project, Sewer Treatment Plant #1, was completed during fiscal year
1988. Since prepayments to the capital Improvement fund are allowed, the City started making deposits in
fiscal year 1988. During fiscal year 2000, $1,500,000 was withdrawn from this fund for the Water Reclamation
Facility #3 project, which Is an expansion of the system. The following schedule shows all activity In the
sewerage system capital improvement fund since its Inception:

Fiscal Deposits Investment Balance
Year (Withdrawals) Income September 30
1987 $ 301,023.12 $ 18,714.00 $ 820,760.24
1988 301,023.12 50,909.98 972,693.32
1989 301,023.12 91,647.90 1,365,364.34
1990 301,023.12 125,170.01 1,791,557.47
1991 301,023.12 142,72&85 2,235,309.44
1992 301,023.12 111,185.27 2,647,517.83
1993 301,023.00 116,575.01 3,065,115.84
1994 301,023.00 133,077.65 3,499,218.49
1995 301,023.00 178,917.78 3,979,157.27
1998 301,023.00 232,147.37 4,512,327.64
1997 301,023.00 278,528.52 5,091,877.16
1998 301,023.00 412,080.84 5,804,981.00
1999 301,023.00 191,600.02 8,297,604.02
2000 (1,500,000.00) 350,778.24 5,148,382.28
2001 - 507,048.67 5,655,430.93

2002 - 272,019.10 5,927,450.03
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Alachua, Florida

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Alachua, Florida, as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2002 as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Alachua, Florida management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We did not obtain sufficient evidential matter to determine if property, plant and equipment recorded in the
proprietary fund types is fairly presented at cost or estimated historical cost, due to insufficient detail within the
City of Alachua, Florida's property records.

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary
had we been able to determine the propriety of amounts recorded as property, plant, and equipment in the
proprietary fund types, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the City of Alachua, Florida, as of September 30, 2002, and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 3, 2003 on our
consideration of the City of Alachua's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report
in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was made primarily for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as
listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
general purpose financial statements. Such additional information has been subjected to the procedures applied in
the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

Bradenton, Florida
April 3, 2003

Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants SEC Practice Section Private Companies Practice Section Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic statements provide a summary overview of the financial position of all funds and account groups as well
as the operating results of all funds and cash flows of the propriety fimd type. They also serve as an introduction to
and summary of the more detailed statements included in the accompanying information section.
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CITY OF ALACHUA FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

Ij

Governmental Fund Types
Special Debt

Revenue Service
Capital
ProjectsGeneral

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles parenthetically indicated):
Accounts ($36,098)
Other

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory of utility supplies
Prepaid costs and other assets
Unbilled revenue
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Property, plant and equipment:
Cost less accumulated depreciation
for Proprietary fund types; cost for
general fixed assets account group

Unamoritized bond issue costs
Amount available for retirement of general long-

term debt
Amount to be provided for retirement of

general long-term debt

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

$ 553,296

38,673
73,109

1,929,170
137,337

179,346

95,521 96,490

33,767

84,029

$ 2,910,931 129,288 180,519 -_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Proprietary
Fund Types

Internal
ise Service

Fiduciary
Fund Type

Trust
Funds

Account Groups
General General
Fixed Long-Term

Totals
(Memorandum Only)

Enterpr Assets Debt 2002 2001

5,460,703
- 30,000

265,768
141,967

3,576,441
1,044,317

235,138
_ 42,067

950,138

106,736
665,855

- 6,312,746
-- 695,855

- 304,441
- 215,076
- 5,505,611
- 1,215,421
- 235,138
- 221,413
- 950,138

- 950,130
- 255,763

3,505,658
627,896

382,421
82,525

1,314,668
1,026,652

256,133
587,448
630,354

1,794,746
849,302

- 866,101
255,763

13,413,412
391,635

28,324 - 3,861,115 - 17,302,851
- 391,635

16,741,612
329,829

265,046104,832 104,832

3,690,416 ' 3,690,416 3,639,432

26,673,450 135,060 665,855 3,861,115 3,795,248 38,351,466 32,033,722

(CONTINUED)
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

Governmental Fund Types

-

-

Special Debt

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Other accrued expenses
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Payable from restricted assets:

Accrued interest
Current portion of bonds payable
Customer deposits

Deferred revenue and credits
Note payable - other
Note payable - Arcadia
Note payable - sales tax
Note payable - secion 108
Note payable - tax increment
Revenue bonds payable
Accrued compensated absences

General

S 180,402
77,747

1,631,382
33,767

Revenue Service
Capital
Projects

63,385

5,808
11,154
64,533

_I

38,763

Total liabilities 1,962,061 5,808 75,687 63,385

Equity and other credits:
Contributed capital
Investment in general fixed assets
Retained earnings:

Unreserved
Fund balances:

Reserved for
Pension benefits
Other
Undesignated

206,786
742,084

123,480
104,832 ( 63,385)

Total equity and other credits

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

948,870 123,480 104,832 ( 63,385)

$ 2,910,931 129,288 180,519 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Proprietary

Fund Types

Fiduciary

Fund Type

Trust

Funds

Account Groups

General General

Fixed Long-Term

Totals

(Memorandum Only)

Enterprise

522,542
- 70,523

3,746,312

376,575
376,000
330,720

_ 255,763
49,360

12,330,000
53,042

18,110,837

Internal

Service

10,466
29,946

Assets Debt 2002

719,218
189,370

5,505,612
33,767

865,000
312,591

2,195,000
278,986

143,671

376,575
376,000
330,720
294,526
49,360

865,000
312,591

2,195,000
278,986

12,330,000
196,713

24,053,438

2001

1,216,167
119,322

1,314,668

402,027
356,000
217,013
252,096

48,062
905,000
340,476

2,250,000
300,000

12,618,867
175,083

20,514,78140,412 3,795,248

4,032,699

- 4,529,914

- 3,861,115
- 4,032,699
_ 3,861,115

4,032,699
3,662,655

1,954,96594,648 4,624,562

665,855

3,861,115

3,861,115

665,855
330,266
783,531

513,867
66,657

1,288,098

8.562.613 94.648 665,855

665,855 3,795,248

14,298,028

38,351,466

11,518,941

32,033,72226,673,450 135,060

7
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Year Ended September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

Governmental Fund Types
Special

General Revenue
Debt Capital

Service Projects

Totals
(Memorandum Only)

2002 2001
Revenues:

- Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Interest and miscellaneous

S 2,771,884
167,446
684,460

78,897
422,838
254,459

87,017

1,365

517,850

2,858,901
167,446

1,202,310
78,897

422,838
255,824

2,283,045
148,357

1,089,542
72,272

373,166
168,524

Total revenues 4,379,984 88,382 - 517,850 4,986,216 4,134,906

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic Environment

i Parks and recreation
Other Grant Expenditure
Debt service

1,550,743
1,966,560

388,763
374,374

358,860
141,184

80,856 - 580,786

14 -

1,550,743
1,966,560

388,763
374,374
661,642
358,860
141,184
330,214

937,726
1,820,539

309,317
415,935
976,422
307,446

1,286,607_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - 3 3 0 ,2

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

4,780,484 80,856 330,214 580,786 5,772,340 6,053,992

( 400,500) 7,526 ( 330,214) ( 62,936) ( 786,124) ( 1,919,086)

- Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from long-term debt
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

753,319
( 170,00O)

- 170,000 - 923,319
- - ( 208,152) ( 378,152)

2,370,972
( 1,494,936)

2,550,000

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses

583,319 - 170,000 ( 208,152) 545,167

182,819 7,526 ( 160,214) ( 271,088) ( 240,957) 1,506,950

50,431 265,046 207,703 1,354,754 ( 152,195)Fund balances - October 1 83:

Residual Equity Transfer ( 6'

Fund balances - September 30 $ 941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

1,574

5,523) 65,523 - - -- -

3,870 123,480 104,832 ( 63,385) 1,113,797 1,354,755
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Year Ended September 30, 2002

General Fund
Variance

Budget
(Revised)

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Interest and miscellaneous

$ 2,564,993
222,000
474,983

80,000
406,500
130,500

Actual

2,771,884
167,446
684,460

78,897
422,838
254,459

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

206,891
54,554)

209,477
( 1,103)

16,338
123,959

Total revenues 3,878,976 4,379,984 501,008

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Parks and recreation
Other Grant Expenditure

Debt service

1,232,148
2,090,242

341,482
401,159

1,550,743
1,966,560

388,763
374,374

358,860
141,184

318,595)
123,682

( 47,281)
26,785

3,135
( 141,184)

361,995

Total expenditures 4,427,026 4,780,484 353,458)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ( 548,050) ( 400,500) 147,550

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from debt

545,167 753,319
- ( 170,000)

208,152
( 170,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) 545,167 583,319 38,152

Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balances - October I

( 2,883) 182,819 185,702

831,574 831,574

Residual equity transfer - ( 65,523) 65,523)

Fund balances - September 30 $ 828,691 948,870 120,179

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Special Revenue Funds Debt Serice Funds

Budget

(Revised)

108,000

7,004

115,004

80,846

0,846

34,158

Actual

87,017

1,365

88,382

80,856

80,856

7,526

Variance

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

( 20,983)

5,639)

( 26,622)

( 10)

( 10)

( 26,612)

Budget

(Revised)

245,900

245,900

( 245,900)

Actual

330,214

330,214

330,214)

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

9 4,314)

84,314)

4,314)

245,900

245,900

170,000

170,000

75,900

75,900

34,158

50,431

84,589

7,526

50,431

65,523

123,480

( 26,632) -- ( 160,214)

265,046 265,046

( 160,214)

160,21

65,523

38,891 265,046 104,832

(CONTINUED)
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CrTY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Year Ended September 30, 2002

Capital Projects Funds
Variance

Budget
(Revised)

Favorable
(Unfavorable)Actual

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Interest and miscellaneous

$

517,850 517,850

Total revenues 517,850 517,850

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Parks and recreation
Other grant expenditures
Debt services

580,786 ( 580,786)

Total expenditures 580,786 580,786)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from debt

- ( 62,936) ( 62,936)

- ( 208,152) ( 208,152)

Total other financing sources (uses) 208,152) ( 208,152)

Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses - ( 271,088) ( 271,088)

Fund balances - October I 207,703 207,703

Residual equity transfer

Fund balances - September 30 S 207,703 63,385) 271,088)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
12



Totals
(Memorandumn Only)

2002 2001

2,858,901
167,446

1,202,310
78,897

422,838
255,824

4,986,216

1,550,743
1,966,560

388,763
374,374
661,642
358,860
141,184
330,214

2,283,045
148,357

1,089,542
373,166

72,272
168,524

4,134,906

937,726
1,820,539

309,317
415,935
976,422
307,446

1,286,607

6,053,992

1 ,919,086)

2,550,000
2,370,972
1,494,936)

3,426,036

1,506,950

152,195)

5,772,340

( 786,124)

923,319
( 378,152)

545,167

( 240,957)

1,354,755

1,113,798 1,354,755
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Year Ended September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Total Figures for 2001)

-

Proprietary Fund Types
Internal

Totals
(Memorandum Only)

Operating Revenues:
Utility service fee
Interfund charges

Total operating revenues

Enterprise

S 8,670,246
454,061

9,124,307

Service

640,475
640,475

2002

8,670,246
1,094,536
9,764,782

2001

8,683,300
498,379

9,181,679

Operating expenses:
Nuclear Power Generation and Transmission
Purchased power cost
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Billing and administrative
Depreciation
Other expenses

129,598
4,342,673

697,449
146,928
156,174
150,303
592,569
592,553
263,410

428,047
17,640
55,103
11,529

2,053
123,930

129,598
4,342,673
1,125,496

164,568
211,277
161,832
592,569
594,606
387,340

4,522,764
959,756
199,900
110,811
173,574
458,510
556,235
241,510

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Connection charges
Interest income
Interest on long-term debt
Amortization of bond issue cost
Grant revenue
Miscellaneous income

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses)

Net income before operating transfers

Operating transfers:
Operating transfers out

Net operating transfers

Net income

Retained earnings - October I

Retained earnings - September 30

7,071,657

2,052,650

308,269
59,430

( 815,439)
( 20,401)

1,244,623
383,461

1,159,943

3,212,593

( 545,167)

( 545,167)

2,667,426

1,862,488

$ 4,529,914

638,302

2,173

7,709,959

2,054,823

308,269
59,430

- ( 815,439)
- ( 20,401)

1,244,623
383,461

1,159,943

7,223,060

1,958,619

166,177
183,342

( 827,039)
( 20,946)

42,630

( 455,836)

1,502,783

880,106)

( 880,106)

622,677

1,332,288

1,954,965

2,173 3,214,766

( 545,167)

( 545,167)

2,173

92,475

94,648

2,669,599

1,954,963

4,624,562

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF ALACHUA FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
Year Ended September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Total Figures for 2001)

Proprietary Fund Types
Internal

Enterprise - Service

Totals
(Memorandum Only)

2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:

Operating incane (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash

provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue
Due To/From other funds
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses
Customer deposits

S 2,052,650

612,954

346,777)
0

( 112,086)
186,320

20,995
440,750

2,173

2,053

2,054,823

615,007

1,958,619

556,235

- ( 346,777) ( 273,514)
- 1,469,101

- ( 112,086) ( 862,100)
- 186,320 -

- 20,995 ( 57,070)
- 440,750 ( 447,580)

( 533,242) 1,564 ( 531,678) 267,369
113,707 - 113,707 26,840

Net cash provided (used) from operating activities 2,435,271 5,790 2,441,061 2,637,900

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
- Connection Charges

Grant revenue
Operating tasers out to other funds

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Extension and replacement of plant - net of contributions

received in aid of construction
Principal payments on bonds
Notes proceeds
Interest paid

- Miscellaneous income

308,269
1,244,623

545,167)
1,007,725

( 974,788)
268,867)

1,298
815,439)
383,461

_ 308,269
1,244,623

_ C 545,167)
_ 1,007,725

( 3,000) ( 977,788)
- ( 268,867)
- 1,298
- ( 815,439)
- 383,461

166,177

( 880,106)
713,929)

( 586,227)
( 329,000)

1,264
( 830,254)

42,630

Net cash provided (used) from capital and
related financing activities 1,674,335) ( 3,000) ( 1,677,335) ( 1,701,587)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investments purchased
Investments matured
Interest income

593,539
59,430

593,539
59,430

16,859)
53,007

183,342

Net cash provided (used) from investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents

652,969 652,969 219,490

441,8742,421,630 2,790 2,424,420

Cash and equivalents -October 1 3,905,174 103,946 4,009,120 3,567,246

Cash and equivalents -September 30 S 6,326,804 106,736 6,433,540 4,009,120

Reconcilliation of cash and cash equivalents (above) to
combined balance sheet

Captions on combined balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Assets - cash and cash equivalents

- Total

5,460,703
866,101

6,326,804

15

106,736

106,736

5,567,439
866,101

6,433,540

2,214,374
1,794,746
4,009,120
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

Totals
(Memorandum Only)
2002 2001General Police

- Additions:
Contributions:

Employer
Plan member
State of Florida
Net investment income (loss)
Operating transfer in

$ 108,558

( 10,759) (

32,311
2,645

39,983
10,763)

140,869
2,645

39,983
21,522)

102,871
2,014
4,289

( 34,810)
4,070

(

Total additions 97,799 64,176 161,975 78,434

Deductions:
Retirement benefits and refunds
Administrative fees

7,803
343

510
1,331

8,313
1,674

2,968
4,780

Total deductions

Net increase

( 8,146) ( 1,841) ( 9,987) ( 7,748)

89,653 62,335 151,988 70,686

Net assets held in trust for Pension Benefits:
October I 184,421 329,447 513,868 443,181

September 30 $ 274,074 391,782 665,856 513,867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these staternents.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

The City of Alachua, Florida (the City) is a political subdivision of the State of Florida, established in 1908 under
the legal authority of Chapter 165, F.S. and is located in Alachua County. The legislative branch of the City is
composed of a five-member elected commission. The City Commission is governed by the City Charter and by
state and local laws and regulations. The City Commission is responsible for the establishment and adoption of
policy. The execution of such policy is the responsibility of the Commission appointed City Manager.

The City's major operations include various utility services - electric, water and wastewater as well as police
protection, road and street maintenance, parks, recreation and other general government services. The City
contracts with Alachua County for the provision of fire service at a fixed cost to the City which is renegotiated
annually. The City leases the fire station and equipment to Alachua County at no cost. Sanitation services are
provided by a private company, but billed by the City to its customers. The City retains an administrative fee on
sanitation services.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies.

1. THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

As outlined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, the reporting entity,
consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable,
and other organizations whose exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete. Each potential component unit is individually evaluated using specific criteria outlined in GASB
Statement No. 14, to determine whether the entity is: a) part of the primary government; b) a component unit
which should be included in the reporting entity (blended or discretely presented); or c) an organization which
should be excluded from the reporting entity entirely. The principal criteria for classifying a potential component
unit include: a) the legal separateness of the organization; and b) the financial accountability of the primary
government for the potential component unit resulting from either the primary government's ability to impose its
will on the potential component unit or the potential component unit's fiscal dependency on the primary
government. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following is a brief review of each potential
component unit addressed in defining the City's reporting entity.

Community Redevelopment ARencv
The Community Redevelopment Agency (the Agency) was created by the City Commission in 1982. In
evaluating this potential component unit, it was determined that the Agency is not a separate legal entity as it
generally cannot transact business in its own name and, therefore, should be included as part of the primary
government for reporting purposes. The Agency is presented in the general purpose financial statements of the
City as a special revenue fund.

Public Finance Authoritvy For Affordable Housing (the Authority)
This potential component unit was created by the City Commission in 1992. The Authority is a separate legal
entity capable of suing and being sued, and able to purchase property in its own name. By charter, the Authority's
Board is composed of the City Commission and the City Commission has oversight over all financial activities.
Accordingly, the Authority is a component unit of the City. There have been no financial transactions in the
Authority during 2001, or since its creation; therefore, no amounts related to the Authority are reported in the
accompanying general purpose financial statements.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FUND ACCOUNTING

The City's accounting records are organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording all financial resources with all related liabilities,
reserves and residual equities, or balances or changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives. Amounts received from or payable to other funds are shown in
the accounts of an individual fund and separately presented in the accompanying general purpose financial
statements until liquidated by payment or residual equity transfer.

The following fund types and account groups are used in accounting for the financial operations of the City.

Governmental Fund Types
* General Fund - to account for all financial resources not properly accounted for in another fund.

* Special Revenue Funds - to account for the proceeds of specific revenue resources (other than special
assessments, expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. The City uses these funds to account for the activities of the Agency and to
account for certain grant-funded projects.

* Debt Service Fund - to account for the accumulation of resources and the payment of principal and
interest on all general long-term debt.

* Capital Projects Funds - to account for the financial resources used in the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary fund types).

Proprietary Fund Types
* Enterprise Funds - to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to

private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The City's electric, water and wastewater utility services and mosquito control activities are
accounted for in these funds.

* Internal Service Fund - to account for the financing of goods or services provided by central services
departments to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. The City uses this fund
to account for utility billing and administration.

Fiduciary Fund Types
- * Pension Trust Funds - to account for pension assets held on behalf of employees and former

employees. The City's defined contribution plan for general employees and defined benefit plan for
police are accounted for in these funds.

Account Groups
* The account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the City's general

fixed assets and general long-term debt. These account groups are not considered funds since they do
not reflect available financial resources and related liabilities.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-term liabilities associated with a fund
are determined by its measurement focus. Governmental fund types are accounted for on a "spending" or
"financial flow" measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally
included on the balance sheet. The reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of "available
spendable resources." Governmental fund type operating statements present increases (revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, such -

statements are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted for in the general
fixed assets account group, rather than in governmental funds, and long-term liabilities expected to be financed
from governmental fund types are accounted for in the general long-term debt account group.

The proprietary fund types are accounted for on a "cost of services" or "capital maintenance" measurement focus.
This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with its activity are
included on the balance sheet. The reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributions and
retained earnings components. The proprietary fund types operating statements present increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting
The governmental fund types are maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method of
accounting, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets.
Revenues which are susceptible to accrual, i.e., being recorded when earned, include property and utility taxes,
refuse collection fees and lot clearing, and certain other fees. Expenditures are generally recorded on an accrual
basis, i.e., when incurred, except as follows:

* Principal and interest on long-term debt are recognized when due; and
* accumulated vacation and sick pay is not recorded in the general fund since the current amount is

immaterial.

The proprietary fund types are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. This method of accounting relates
costs and expenditures to the period in which benefits of the outlays are received. It is intended to provide an
accurate matching of these benefits with associated revenues. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and measurable, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Proprietary fund types follow all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as the following pronouncements
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements:

* Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations;
* Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions; and
* Accounting Research Bulletins.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, the City has elected not to apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations
issued after November 30, 1989, to its proprietary fund type activities.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgeting
The Ciys procedures in preparing and adopting the annual budget are as follows:

* The City Manager is responsible for preparing a proposed operating budget for the upcoming year
prior to September 30 that includes estimated revenues, proposed expenditures, and other financing
sources and uses.

a Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments and suggestions. The budget is enacted through
passage of a resolution, which sets spending limits by department.

* The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any department in any fund, but
may not revise total departmental expenditures without the approval of the City Commission. The
budgetary information for the governmental fund types in the combined statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances is reported as amended.

* Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
Appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Encumbrances are not recorded.

* The budgets for the general and debt service funds that were adopted during the year by the City
Commission were prepared on the same basis of accounting utilized by those specific fund types.
Comparisons of budgetary data to actual are not required to be reported for proprietary fund types.

Receivables
Customef accounts receivable are recorded at their net realizable value reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts.

Inventory
Inventory in the general fund is charged to expenditures when purchased. Inventory in the proprietary fund types
consists of supplies held for repairs or capital improvements, plus nuclear fuel.

Property. Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment in the proprietary fund types are recorded at historical cost or at fair market value
on the date donated. Ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses as incurred.

Provision has been made for the depreciation of such property, plant and equipment using the straight-line
method. The straight-line rate is computed using the period of years considered as the normal service life of the
property. Such rates are as follows:

- Nuclear Plant and Equipment 2.7% to 3.6%
Electric Distribution Plan 2 % to 4 %
Water Plant 3% to 10%

-~ Wastewater Plant 2.5%
Other Equipment 10% to 20%

Construction work in progress is not depreciated until completed and placed into service. Utility plant acquired
through grants is depreciated along with other utility plant purchased or constructed.

All other property and equipment owned by the City is reflected at cost in the general fixed assets account group
and shown as an expenditure in the fund purchasing the property or equipment. Certain improvements such as
streets, sidewalks and other infrastructure assets are not capitalized along with other general fixed assets. No
provision for depreciation is made for any general fixed assets.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Bond Discount and Issue Costs Amortization
The bond issue costs are being amortized over the lives of the bonds using the straight-line method. The bond
discounts are being amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

Capitalized Interest During Construction
The City accounts for capitalized interest during construction in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 34, Capitalization of Interest Costs, and Statement No. 62, Capitalization of Interest
Cost in Situations Involving Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants. No interest expense
was capitalized during 2002 on construction-in-progress in any fund or account group.

Long-Tern Liabilities
Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types is limited to
exclude amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term
amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type liabilities. They are instead reported as liabilities in the
general long-term debt account group.

Compensated Absences
The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay when incurred, if material, in the proprietary funds
and the general long-term debt account group. Amounts representing the current liability for unused annual and
sick leave in governmental fund types are immaterial. Therefore, the entire liability for governmental fund types is
recorded in the general long-term debt account group.

Personnel policies allow permanent, full-time employees to accumulate a maximum of twenty-five days vacation
leave. One week of vacation time is granted if sixty days sick leave is accumulated. Employees are paid the
balance of their accumulated vacation leave, in full, upon termination. Also upon termination, employees are paid
the balance of their accumulated sick leave, up to a maximum of eighty hours.

Revenue Recognition
Utility revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in the accompanying financial statements.
Restricted grant revenues which are received, but not expended, are recorded as deferred revenues in the liability
section of the balance sheet.

Property Taxes
Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school board
property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The
laws of the state regulating tax assessments are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method
statewide. Florida Statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10.00 mills. The City's
millage rate for the 2002 fiscal year was 5.7 mills.

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Commission prior to October I of each year and the Alachua
County Property Appraiser incorporates the City millages into the total tax levy, which includes the County and
the County School Board tax requirements.

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value January I of each year. Each assessment roll is
submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue for review to determine if the rolls
meet all of the appropriate requirements of Florida Statutes.

22



CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property Taxes (Concluded)

All taxes are levied on November 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified and
delivered to the County Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 following the year in which
they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4 % in the month of November, 3 % in
the month of December, 2 % in the month of January, and I % in the month of February. The taxes paid in March
are without discount.

On or prior to June I following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real property. After
sale, tax certificates bear interest of 18% per year or at any lower rate bid by the buyer. Application for a tax deed
on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the certificate holder after a period of two years. Unsold
certificates are held by the County.

Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest at 18% per year until the tax is satisfied either by seizure and
sale of the property or by the five-year statute of limitations.

Use of Estimates
The preperation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requries management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differd from those estimates.

Total Columns on the Combined Statements
Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Totals (Memorandum Only)" to indicate that they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The data in these columns does not present financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made
in the aggregation of this data. The totals for 2001 are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Certain changes have been made to this information
to conform to the current year presetation.

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

All monies collected by the City are required to be deposited in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.
Florida Statutes authorize the City to invest in the following:

* Direct obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, the U.S. Government;
* Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified institutions;
* Obligations of the Federal Farm Credit Banks;
a Obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association,
* The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.

Deposits
At year end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $ 7,270,462 and the bank balance was $ 7,998,571.
All deposits of the City are maintained in qualified public depositories. Included in the balances above are
$574,128 deposited with fiscal agents as of September 30, 2002, for the payment of revenue bonds on October 1.
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Florida Security for Public Deposits Act; Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes, provides that qualified public
depositories must maintain eligible collateral having a market value equal to 50% of the average daily balance for
each month of all public deposits in excess of any applicable deposit insurance held by the depository during the
twelve months immediately preceding the date of any computation of the balance. As such, the depository is not
required to hold collateral in the City's name nor specify which collateral is held for the City's benefit. In the event
of default, the Public Deposit Security Trust Fund, as created under the laws of the State of Florida, would be
required to pay the City for any deposits not covered by depository insurance or collateral pledged by the
depository as previously described.

Investments
The carrying amount and market value of investments owned by the City at September 30, 2001, was as follows:

Balance
Type of Investment 9/30/02

Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) CR-3 Pooled
Investment Account 255,7620

Certificate of deposit 30,000
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund 665,856
Total $ 951,6180

The State Board of Administration's deposits in Tallahassee are maintained in an investment pool which invests
primarily in commercial paper, repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptance notes and U.S. Government
obligations. The FMPA account represents a 2.087% interest in an investment pool which invests primarily in
mid- and long-term U.S. Government obligations. The securities in the pool are registered in the name of
SunTrust, N.A., as trustee for the FMPA (CR-3) participants. The U.S. Treasury Bonds are insured or registered,
or held by the City or its agent in the City's name. The City of Arcadia debt service reserve account is an
investment pool held by the Trustee for the City of Arcadia bond issue, which is invested in FNMA mortgage
notes. The Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund is an investment pool managed by the Florida League of Cities.

NOTE C - INVENTORY

Inventory in the proprietary fund types at September 30, 2002, consists of the following:

Electric Utility Supplies $ 161,389
Water/Sewer Supplies 19,342
Nuclear Fuel 38,120
Nuclear Plant Materials Inventory 16,287
Total $ 235,138

The utility supplies and plant inventory are valued at cost as determined by the average unit cost method. The
City's portion of nuclear fuel inventory at the CR-3 nuclear generating facility is recorded at amortized cost.
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NOTE D - DETAIL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

General Fixed Assets Account Group

A summary of changes in general fixed assets for the year follows:

City Park - Structures and Improvements
City Hall - Building
City Hall - Equipment, Furnishings and Vehicles
Fire Station
Fire Trucks and Other Equipment
Police Station
Police Department - Vehicles and Equipment
Rolling Green - Land and Buildings
Rolling Green - Improvements
Parking Lots - Land
Street Paving and Sidewalks
Land - Other
Streets and Roads Equipment and Vehicles
Miscellaneous
Parks and Recreation - Buildings and Improvements
Parks and Recreation - Equipment
Physical Environment - Equipment
Building Department - Building
Building Department - Equipment
Planning and Zoning
CWIP - CDBG Hitchcock Project

Total Property, Plant and Equipment - At Cost

Balance
10/1/01

$ 22,328
159,089
113,232
129,249
90,652
66,497

536,206
698,624

14,653
43,189

1,047,205
171,791
110,277

11,326
231,524

57,645
48,345
87,085

7,738
0

16,000
$ 3,662,655

Additions
37,550

12,533

87,562

27,526

35,623

24,616

11,085

236,495

(Removables
And

Adjustments)

38,035

38,035

Balance
9/30/02

59,878
159,089
125,765
129,249
90,652
66,497

585,733
698,624

14,653
43,189

1,047,205
171,791
137,803

11,326
231,524

93,268
48,345

111,701
7,738

11,085
16,000

3,861,115

Proprietar Fund Types

A summary of property, plant and equipment in the proprietary fund types at September 30, 2002, follows:

Nuclear Generating Plant and Equipment
Electric Distribution Plant and Equipment
Water Plant and Equipment
Wastewater Plant and Equipment
Mosquito Control Equipment
Utility Billing and Administration Equipment

$ 651,961
6,954,010
4,905,318
7,073,793

7,200
38,058

19,630,340
(8,241,306)
11,389,034
2,024,378

$ 13,413,412

- Accumulated Depreciation

Wastewater Improvements - Construction in Progress
Total Utility Plant - Cost Less Accumulated Depreciation

Nuclear generating plant and equipment represents the cost of the City's 0.0779% undivided interest in Florida
Power Corporation's Crystal River m (CR-3) Nuclear Plant.
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

Listed below is a summary of all outstanding debt issues of the City at September 30, 2001, by issue and by fund:
Principal

Interest Balance Final
Description Rate 9/30/02 Maturity

1993 City of Arcadia Revenue Bonds 5.375% S 865,000 2015
1995 First National Bank Note 5.20% 243,705 2010
1993 Utility Acquisition Bonds 7.0/6 1,090,000 2019
1993 Utility Refunding Bonds 3.0% -5.5% 8,825,000 2020
2002A Utility Refunding Bonds 6.35% 2,235,000 2008
1979 Utilities Revenue Bond 5.0% 556,000 2019
1998 State Revolving Fund Loan 2.70% 49,360 2021
2000 Sales Tax Revenue Note 6.00% 68,886 2010
2000 Tax Increment Road Improvement Note 6.50% 278,986 2010
2001A Section 108 Loan 3.66% to 6.67% 2,195,000 2021
Total Debt 16,406,937

Total long-term debt by fund/account group:

General Long-Term Debt
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Total Debt

S 3,651,577
7,253,533
1,431,603
4,040,224

S 16,406,937

General Long-Term Debt

The following tabulation summarizes the changes in the City's general long-term debt account group during the
year ended September 30, 2002:

Balance
10/1/01

New
Debt Principal Paid

City of Arcadia, Florida, Dedicated Pool Local
Government Revenue Bonds Series, 1993

Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 1995 -
First National Bank of Alachua

Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 2000
First National Bank of Alachua

Tax Increment Road Improvement
Revenue Note, Series 2000

Section 108 Government Guaranteed Participation
Certificates, Series HUD 200 1A

Compensated Absences
Totals

$ 905,000

265,215

75,261

300,000

40,000

21,510

6,375

21.014

55,000

143,899

Balance
9/30/02

865,000

243,705

68,886

278,986

2,195,000

143,671

3,795,248

2,250,000

109,002
$ 3,904,478

34,669
34,669
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

City ofArcadia, Florida - Dedicated Pool Local Government Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 - On July 1, 1993, the
City executed a loan agreement with the City of Arcadia, Florida (the Sponsor), and NationsBank of Florida, N.A.
(the Trustee), to borrow $1,200,000 from the Sponsor's $45,455,000 Local Government Revenue Bonds, Series
1993, Dedicated Pool. The Sponsor issued the bonds on August 10, 1993, and deposited the proceeds with the
Trustee to fund the pool, available to governmental entities for financing and refinancing certain qualified
projects. During 1996, the Trustee was changed to Bank of New York.

The City used the proceeds to refinance the balance due on a loan from the City of Gulf Breeze, originally issued
to finance street and drainage improvements. The City of Arcadia loan is evidenced by a Governmental Unit
Note, which is payable solely from the City's local option gas tax revenues and guaranteed entitlement revenues.

Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 1995 - On May 24, 1995, the City adopted Resolution R-95-9, authorizing the
issuance of a $400,000 Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 1995. The note was issued at the par amount of $393,000,
and used to refinance the City's outstanding FLGFA loan, plus pay note issuance and loan redemption costs.

The note is secured by a lien upon the pledge of the City's local government half-cent sales tax. Principal and
interest are payable on the first of each month in level monthly installments for fifteen years. Interest accrues at a
fixed rate of 5.20% (based on a 360-day year) for the first five years of the note, and is reset on June 1, 2000 and
June 1, 2005, to the five-year U.S. Treasury index on those dates. The City may prepay the note in whole or in
part, at any time, without penalty.

Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 2000 - On April 4, 2000, the City issued a $85,000 Sales Tax Revenue Note,
Series 2000, to finance a capital project.

The note is secured by a lien upon the pledge of the City's local government half-cent sales tax, which is junior
and subordinate to the lien and pledge in favor of the City's outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 1995.
Principal and interest are payable on the first of each month for the ten-year term of the note. Interest accrues at a
fixed rate of 6.00%.

Tax Increment Road Improvement Reven ue Note, Series 2000 - On January 8,2001, the City issued a $300,000
Tax Increment Road Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2000, to finance improvements and renovations to Main
Street within the City's Community Redevelopment District.

The note is secured by the tax increment revenues of the Community Redevelopment District. Principal and
interest are payable annually on the first day of February for ten years. Interest accrues at a fixed rate of 6.50%
until February 2, 2006, at which time it is reset to the five-year U.S. Treasury index at that date. The City may
prepay the note in whole or in part, at any time, without penalty.

Section 108 Government Guaranteed Participation Certificates, Series HUD 2001A - On August 2, 2001, the
City executed a loan agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (the Sponsor) to
borrow $2,250,000 from the Sponsor's $313,756,000 Section 108 Governnent Guaranteed Participation
Certificates, Series HUD 2001A. The Sponsor guarantees timely payment of the notes issued by local
governmental agencies. The City used the proceeds of the note to repay the outstanding balances on its Taxable
Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series, 1999A, and Sales Tax Revenue Note, Series 1999B and finance other costs
related to economic development.
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The note is secured by the City's local government half-cent sales tax (subordinate to the City's Sales Tax
Revenue Note, Series 1995), utility franchise fees and state revenue sharing. Principal is payable annually and
interest semiannually for twenty years. Interest accrues at the certificates rates which vary from 3.66% to 6.67%
over the life of the note.

General Long-Term Debt - Summary

The following tabulation indicates the principal retirement of general long-term debt
(excluding compensated absences):

by fiscal year

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30,

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
Thereafter
Totals

City of
Arcadia

Loan
45,000
45,000
50,000
50,000
55,000

620,000
$ 865,000

1995
Sales Tax
Revenue

Note
25,131
26,781
28,618
30,541
31,950

100,684
S 243,705

2000
Sales Tax
Revenue

Note
7,414
7,868
8,370
8,894
9,403

26,937
$ 68,886

2000
Tax

Increment
Note

23,698
25,260
26,883
28,697
30,588

143,860
S 278,986

2001A
Section 108

Loan
60,000
60,000
65,000
70,000
75,000

1,865,000
S 2,195,000

Total
Principal

161,243
164,909
178,871
188,132
201,941

2,756,481
S 3,651,577

Proprietary Fund Tvves

Utility Acquishion Bonds, Series 1993 - On October 18, 1993, the City adopted Resolution R-93-24 authorizing the
issuance of $1,300,000 Utility Acquisition Bonds, Series 1993 (the 1994 bonds) to provide the necessary funds for the
acquisition of the private water and wastewater systems in the Turkey Creek recreational residential community in the City.
The bonds are secured by the gross revenues of the combined electric, water and wastewater utility systems of the City, but is
subordinate to the secured interests of the bondholders in the other outstanding revenue bonds of the City.

The bonds were issued without premium or discount and are payable at 7 % interest, with interest payable
semiannually beginning April 1, 1994, and principal payable annually beginning October 1, 1994.

UtUity Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 - On March 31, 1993, the City adopted Resolution R-93-3, authorizing
the issuance of $9,500,000 Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. The bonds were issued at a par amount of
S9,000,000 to provide a portion of the funds required: a) to advance refund the City's outstanding Utility Revenue Bonds,
Series 1990 and a portion of the City's outstanding Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1986; b) to construct and install
certain facilities constituting water and wastewater capital improvements; and c) to pay a portion of the costs of issuance.

Gross revenues of the system, plus utilities service taxes are pledged as collateral for the revenue bonds on a
parity and rank equally as to lien on, and source and security for payment with the City's outstanding Series 1979
bonds and the remaining Series 1986 bonds.

The $9,000,000 issue consists of $1,355,000 of serial bonds maturing from 1994 to 2009, with stated interest rates
of 3 % to 5.5%; $1,635,000-5.625% Term Bonds due April 1, 2012, sold at a price of 98.5% of par, and
$6,010,000-5.75% Term Bonds, due April 1, 2020, at 99% of par.
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Utilities Revenue Bond of 1979 - On August 6, 1979, the City adopted a resolution to issue the Utilities Revenue
Bond of 1979. The bond was issued on December 17, 1979, to partially finance the cost of the construction of
additions to the utility system.

Net utility revenues and utilities service taxes are pledged as collateral for the revenue bond which has a coupon
rate of 5%. The lien on revenues by the 1979 bond is equal to the Utilities Refunding Revenue Bonds of 1986 and
1993.

State Revolving Fund Loan - State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection - This loan is to finance
preconstruction wastewater control facility costs. The total loan available is $125,732, of which $49,360 had been
drawn as of September 30, 2002. Repayment commences in May 2002, and is over a term of twenty years bearing
a 2.70% interest rate.

Utilities Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2002A - On April 2, 2002, the City issued the $2,235,000 Utilites
Refunding Refunding Note, Taxable Series 2002A with an interest rate of 6.35% to refund $2,220,000 of
outstanding Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1986 with an average interest reate of 7%.

The refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt
of $60,076. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from notes
payable, is being charged to operations through the year 2008 using the effective-interest method. The City
completed the refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 6 years by $150,004 and to obtain
an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $84,080.

The following tabulation indicates the principal retirement of the proprietary fund types' long-term debt by fiscal
year:

Fiscal
Year Ending

September 30,
2003
2004

- 2005
2006
2007

Thereafter
Totals

Utility
Revenue

Bond
of 1979

21,000
23,000
24,000
25,000
26,000

437,000
$ 556,000

Utility
Acquisition

Bonds,
Series 1993

35,000
40,000
40,000
45,000
45,000

885,000
$ 1,090,000

Utility
Refunding
Revenue
Bonds,

Series 1993
20,000
25,000
25,000
25,000

390,000
8,340,000

S 8,825,000

State
Revolving

Fund
Loan

2,500
2,500
2,500
2,500
2,500

36,860
$ 49,360

Utilities
Refunding
Revenue

Note
Series 2002A

395,000
420,000
445,000
475,000
140,000
360,000

S 2,235,000

Totals
473,500
510,500
536,500
572,500
603,500

10,058,860
$ 12,755,360

Defeased Bonds - At September 30, 2002, the City has outstanding bonds that have been defeased by the
purchase of qualifying securities in irrevocable trusts. The scheduled maturities and the interest earnings on the
escrowed securities are sufficient to redeem these defeased bonds without further debt service costs to the City.
Both defeased bonds and the escrowed securities are, as required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, omitted from the financial statements of the City.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following bonds have been defeased by the City and no longer are included in the accompanying general
purpose financial statements.

Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1974A
Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1976
Utility Revenue and Refuiding Bonds, Series 1978
Utility Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 1981
Utility Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 1981A
Total

Estimated
Balance

September 30,
2002

S 500,000
350,000

1,800,000
2,300,000

775,000
$ 5,725,000

Conduit Debt - The City may assist nongovernmental entities in the obtainment of financing for capital facilities
by issuing debt on behalf of the nongovernmental entity. This debt, known as conduit debt, allows the
nongovernmental entity to borrow at tax-exempt rates. The nongovernmental entity, not the City, is responsible
for repayment of the conduit debt obligation. At September 30, 2002, the following conduit debt is outstanding in
the City's name:

Estimated
Balance

September 30,
2002

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 IJ.00QQ0

NOTE F -RESTRICTED ASSETS

Actual balances of the restricted cash and investment accounts in the enterprise funds at September 30, 2002, are
as follows:

Revenue Bond Accounts:
Sinking Fund
Customer Deposits
CR-3 Decommissioning
Account
Total

Electric

$ 334,185
199,700

255,763
$ 789,648

Water Wastewater Totals

$ 110,285 $ 221,931 $ 666,401
-- 199,700

S 110,285 $ 221,931
255,763

$ 1,121,684

The CR-3 Decommissioning Account is required by state law to accumulate funds for the City's share of the
decommissioning costs of the CR-3 nuclear power plant. The City's contribution to this account was $41,652
including interest during 2002. The required cash balance in the decommissioning account is offset by a deferred
credit on the balance sheet.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Interfund transactions are normally recorded through a consolidated cash account instead of interfund receivables
and payables. Following is a summary of interfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2002:

Due From
Wastewater Fund
Debt Service Fund
Job Creation CDBG Fund
Wastewater Fund
Water Fund
Electric Fund
Hitchcock Jobs Grant
General Fund
General Fund
Total

Due To
Electric Fund
General Fund
Water Fund

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Water Fund

Electric Fund
Wastewater Fund

Amount
$ 1,232,696

64,532
16,449

1,579,223
52,153

250,858
44,525

1,000,000
1,265,275
5,505,611

Following is a summary of interfund transfers during 2002:

Transfers Out
General Fund
Electric
Water
Other Grant
Total

Amount
$ 170,000

531,246
13,921

208,152
$ 923.319

Fund Receiving Transfer
Debt Service
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

NOTE H - FUND BALANCES - RESERVED

Fund balances are reserved within the governmental fund types as follows:

General Special Revenue
Reserved:

Prepaid expenses
Police Department Operations
Community redevelopment

$ 179,346
27,440

0

0
0

123,480

Reserves earmark a portion of fund equity as: 1) not available for appropriation or expenditure; or 2) legally
restricted to a specific future use.

NOTE J - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET AND DEFICIT EQUITY BALANCES

For excesses of actual expenditures over budgeted appropriations for governmental fund types, please see pages
10 through 12 of the financial statements.

The following individual fund shows a deficit equity balance at September 30, 2002:

Fund
Job Creation Grant

Type
Unreserved Fund Balance

Deficit
2001

( 63,385)
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K -SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains enterprise funds to account for the activities of its electric, water, wastewater, and mosquito
control.

Segment information for the year ended September 30, is as follows:

Operating Revenues
Depreciation
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Operating Transfers (Out)
Net Income (Loss)
Property, Plant and

Equipment Additions
Contributions - Current

Year
Net Worldng Capital (Deficit)
Total Assets
Bonds Payable -

Long-Term Portion
Total Equity (Deficit) 1,196,222
Total Retained Earnings

(Deficit)

Electric
Fund

$ 7,554,812

267,828
1,951,740
(234,283)
(531,246)
1,186,211

66,019

0
5,166,279

11,209,269

7,130,129
2,382,433

2,382,433

Water
Fund

S 595,166

147,160
(51,516)

(58)
(13,921)
(65,495)

892,229

0
465,969

3,419,622

1,388,607
1,719,338

890,551

Wastewater
Fund

$ 939,637

176,845
139,009

1,281,410
0

1,420,419

Mosquito
Control Fund

S 34,692

720
13,417

0
0

13,417

1,338,344 0

0
1,699,463

12,013,987

0
22,409
30,572

3,811,264
4,319,295

1,115,383

2
28,673

28,673

NOTE L - ELECTRIC POWER AGREEMENTS

City of Gainesville
The City entered into a wholesale electric service contract with the City of Gainesville, Florida, on January 21,
1987, for the purchase of the majority of the City's electric power requirements beginning January 6, 1988. The
City constructed a 138 x 69 - 12.47Y/7.2kV substation to receive the power, which was placed into operation on
that date. The substation is located in such a manner that the City has reasonable access to the transmission lines
of both the City of Gainesville and Florida Power Corporation. A portion of the substation is owned by the City of
Gainesville. The initial term of the contract was five years, with options for additional annual extensions. The
contract was renegotiated on October 2, 1992, and extended for an additional fifteen years, beginning on
December 31, 1992. Provisions in the contract allow for price adjustments for increases and decreases in the City
of Gainesville's fuel and operating costs. Total payments to the City of Gainesville for 2002 were $4,144,881.

Crystal River Unit #3 Participation Agreement
The City is a participant in an agreement with Florida Power Corporation which was entered into on July 31,
1975. Under terms of the agreement, the City acquired an 0.0779% ownership interest and generation entitlement
share in the nuclear steam electric generating unit. Participants are entitled to energy output of the unit based upon
their respective generation entitlement share.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L - ELECTRIC POWER AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Crystal River Unit #3 Participation Agreement
Florida Power Corporation has been appointed by the participants to act as their agent and has sole authority to
manage, control, maintain and operate the unit Operating costs of the unit, in general, are shared in proportion to
each generation entitlement share on a monthly basis. Common and external facilities of the generating unit are
solely owned by Florida Power Corporation and participants share in the operating and maintenance expenses of
such facilities. Nuclear fuel payments and capital acquisition costs are required of participants in advance. Total
payments for 2002 were $116,450.

The City's share of plant decommissioning costs to be paid during the years 2015 through 2022 is being
accumulated in an account administered by the FMPA. FMPA has determined the appropriate account balance to be
$255,763 at September 30, 2002. The cash account is offset by a deferred credit on the balance sheet of $255,763 at
September 30,2002.

St. Lucie No. 2 Power Purchase Agreement
The City has negotiated a long-term agreement with Florida Power and Light Corporation through FMPA to
purchase .3044 megawatts of generating capacity and a corresponding amount of energy monthly from the St. Lucie
No. 2 nuclear generating plant. The plant became operational in 1984. Total payments for 2002 were $170,558.

The City has signed certain documents with FMPA relating to the St Lucie Project that provide that if the agency
defaults on certain bond payments, the City would be required to satisfy payment on their share (.431 %) of the
bonds. The par amount of the outstanding bonds at September 30, 2002, was approximately $291 million.

NOTE M - PENSION PLANS

All full time employees of the City hired prior to January 1, 1996, participate in the Florida State Retirement System,
a multiple-employer defined benefit public retirement system. Full time employees hired on January 1, 1996, or
later, participate in a retirement system administered by the Florida League of Cities, Inc.

Florida Retirement System
The Florida State Retirement System (the System) was created by the Florida Legislature and is administered by the
State of Florida, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit public retirement plan available to governmental units within the state of Florida. The System issues
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Florida Retirement System, Division of Retirement, 2639-
C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560, or by calling (850) 488-5706. At September 30, 2002, the
City had twenty-six active participants in the System.

The System provides vesting of benefits after ten years of creditable service. Members are eligible for normal
retirement after they have met one of the following: 1) after thirty years of service, regardless of age (twenty-five
years if special risk); or 2) age 62 and ten years of service (age 55 and ten years if special risk).

Early retirement may be taken any time after completing ten years of service; however, there is a 5 % benefit
reduction for each year prior to normal retirement. Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final
compensation and service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest years of earnings.
The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are estimated by Florida Statutes and include cost of
living adjustments.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of the Florida
Legislature. These acts provide that employers, such as the City are required to contribute 5.76% of the
compensation for regular members, 9.41% for senior management and 16.01 % for special risk as of September 30,
2002. The City's contribution to the System for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000, were
$121,352, $126,484 and $149,701, respectively.

Florida Iaue of Cities Plans
There are two retirement plans for employees hired on or after January 1, 1996: a defined contribution plan for
general employees, and a Police Officers' Pension Plan, a local-law plan that follows Chapter 185 of the Florida
State Statutes. Both plans are administered by the Florida League of Cities. At September 30, 2002, the City had
thirty-four general employees and nine police officers participating in these plans.

The Retirement Pkn and Trustfor the General Employees of the City ofAlachua is a defined contribution plan with a
vesting schedule between five and ten years of service. The amount contributed to the plan by the City is at the City
Commission's discretion, 11 % for fiscal year 2002. The vesting schedules are as follows:

Years Percent
of Service Vested

0 - 4 Years 0 %

5 Years 50%

6 Years 60%

7 Years 70%

8 Years 80%

9 Years 90%

10 or More Years 100%

The normal retirement date from this plan is the first day of the month coincident with or next following
attainment of age 62. Distributions may be made at the participant's election on or after the anniversary date
following termination of employment and a one year break in service. The administrator and the investment
manager of this plan is the Florida League of Cities' Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund (FMPTF). The
City's contributions to this plan for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000, were 108,558,
$78,365, and $52,247, respectively.

The Retirement Plan and Trust for the Police Officers of the City of Alachua is a defined benefit plan
established under Chapter 185 of the Florida Statutes. Benefits are determined by the number of years of
credited service multiplied by 2% and multiplied by final monthly compensation. Final monthly compensation
is one-twelfth of the highest average earnings during the five best years out of the last ten years of creditable
service prior to separation, or the career average, whichever is greater.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The normal retirement date is the first day of the month coincident with, or next following attainment of age 55
and 10 years of service or earlier attainment of age 52 and 25 years of service. The amount of accrued benefits
will be reduced a maximum of 3 % for each year before the normal retirement age. This plan requires a I %
contribution by all participants. If a member terminates before completing 10 years of credited service,, all
employee contributions are returned to the member, with no other benefits. Employees are 100/e vested after
ten years. The City's contributions are based on an actuarial study, 12.17 % for fiscal year 2001. The
administrator and investment manager is the Florida League of Cities' FMPTF. Claims procedures and plan
administration is supervised by the City of Alachua Police Officers' Pension Trust Fund Board of Trustees. The
Florida League of Cities, Inc. issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Florida League
of Cities, Inc., P.O. Box 1757, Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1757, or by calling (850) 222-9684. Membership in
this Board is established by the City Commission in compliance with Chapter 185, Florida Statutes. The City's
contributions to this plan for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000, were $32,311, $24,506, and
$23,022, respectively.

NOTE N - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance. Insurance against losses are provided
for the following types of risk with the following carriers:

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust
a Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability

St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company
a General liability and Automobile Liability
a Real and Personal Property Damage
a Automobile Physical Damage
a Public Employees' Blanket Bond
* Boiler Officials' Liability
* Law Enforcement Officers' Professional Liability and Other Mandated Coverage
* Accidental Death and Dismemberment
* Auxiliary Reserve Policy
* Law Enforcement Officers' Professional Liability

The City's coverage for workers' compensation is under a retrospectively related policy. Premiums are accrued
based on the ultimate cost to-date of the City's experience

NOTE 0 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING REONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) recently issued GASB No. 34 Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. The new standard
will result in a new reporting model for state and local governments. The new financial statements must present,
amoung other things, a new section for management discussion and analysis, presentation of government wide
financial statements and the reporting of the cost of infrastructure assets. The new standard will be effective for
years beginning after June 15, 2002 for those governments with revenues greater than $10 million but less than
$100 million. Management anticipates that implementation of the new standards will not result in a material
allocation of personal funds.

35



I . j~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

F I I

I '5;.

This page was intentionally left blank

36



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS

These financial statements provide a more detailed view of the "General Purpose Financial Statements" presented in
the preceding subsection.

Combining statements are presented when there are more than one fund of a given fund type. Individual fund
statements are presented when there is only one fund of a given type. Individual fund statements are also necessary
to present budgetary comparisons.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Figures for 2001)

2002 2001

ASSETS

Cash in bank, including certificates of deposit:
Police department trust fund
Pooled cash

- Receivables:
Customer accounts
Other

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses

$ 27,440
525,856

38,673
73,109

1,929,170
137,337
179,346

16,675
764,215

17,034
67,170
65,523
78,421
42,825

1,051,863TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,910,931

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other accrued expenses
Occupational licenses collected in advance
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Other deferred revenues

$ 180,402
77,747

95,859
86,444
16,084

21,901

1,631,382
33,767
38,763

Total liabilities 1,962,061 220,288

Fund balance:
Reserved for:

Prepaid expenses
- Police department operations

Undesignated

179,346
27,440

742,084

42,825
16,675

772,075

831,575

1,051,863

Total fund balance 948,870

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 2,910,931
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Year Ended September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Figures for 2001)

2002

Budget
(Revised)

Taxes:
Property taxes - current
Property taxes - delinquent
Franchise fees
Utility taxes
Local community service tax
Local option gas taxes

$ 1,684,785

175,000
580,000

125,208

Actual

1,726,899
4,754

113,287
577,950
208,957
140,037

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

42,114
4,754

( 61,713)
( 2,050)

208,957
14,829

2001

Actual

1,287,943
11,611

171,487
617,240

125,701

I

-J

Total taxes 2,564,993 2,771,884 206,891 2,213,982

License and permits:
Occupational licenses
Building permits

22,000
200,000

25,327
142,119

3,327
( 57,881)

27,711
120,646

Total licenses and permits

Intergovernmental:
Federal Grants:

U.S. Department of Justice - LLEBG
U.S. Department of Transportation in car video
Passed through Alachua County School Board - DARE
U.S. Department of Justice - COPS -

School-Based Partnership
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Housing Grant
Waco Grant

DCA - City Park
FEMA Assistance

Total Federal Grants

222,000 167,446 ( 54,554) 148,357

- 13,601
- 19,600
- 43,200

13,601
19,600
43,200

16,464
19,600
21,600

2,780

_ 43,500
- 18,000
_ 50,000

- 187,901

43,500
18,000
50,000

187,901

15,012

75,456

State Grants:
Solid waste
Florida Department of Transportation

Protection - FRDAP

4,000 -- ( 4,000) 2,132
48,477

7,630

Total State Grants 4,000 -- ( 4,000) 58,239

State-Shared Revenue:
State revenue sharing
Mobile home licenses
Alcoholic beverage tax
Half-cent sales tax
Fuel tax refimd

139,898
6,000
4,500

316,585
4,000

470,983

474,983

42

138,420
5,239
3,206

344,412
5,282

496,559

684,460

( 1,478)
( 761)
( 1,294)

27,827
1,282

25,576

209,477

136,143
6,197
3,900

325,550
5,202

476,992

610,687

Total State-Shared Revenue

Total Intergovernmental



CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

Year Ended September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Figures for 2001)

2002
Variance

Budget
(Revised) Actual

2001

Actual
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Revenues (continued):

Charges For Serices
Police services
Zoning fees
Sanitation revenue
Penalty revenue

35,000
365,000

6,500

6,649
17,447

391,224
7,518

6,649
( 17,553)

26,224
1,018

4,202
33,875

328,540
6,549

Total Charges For Services 406,500 422,838 16,338 373,166

Fines and Forfeitures
Court fines
Forfeitures

80,000 68,422
10,475

( 11,578)
10,475

68,904
3,368

Total Fines and Forfeitures 80,000 78,897 ( 1,103) 72,272

Miscellaneous
Interest
Rents
Miscellaneous revenue
Recreation department revenue
Assets sales
Cotributions and donations

75,000
14,000
9,500

32,000

41,926
15,795
29,157
37,723
2,176

127,682

33,074)
1,795

19,657
5,723
2,176

127,682

14,668
14,379
98,835
25,451

666

Total Miscellaneous 130,500 254,459 123,959 153,999

- Total Revenues $ 3,878,976 4,379,984 501,008 3,572,463
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CrY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

Year Ended September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Figures for 2001)

-4

2002

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative:

Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay

Total Legislative

Budget
(Revised)

S 55,267
20,178
10,000
85,445

Actual
Expenditures

44,287
27,053

9,449
80,789

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

10,980
( 6,875)

551
4,656

2001

Actual

34,404
19,965

54,369

i

Executive:
Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay
Debt service

Total Executive

307,410
170,281
22,000

170,900
670,591

308,243
173,800
566,552

1,048,595

234,137
42,359

276,496

( 833)
( 3,519)

544,552)
170,900

( 378,004)

19,043
1,045

20,088

230,935
246,229

6,260

483,424

241,941
41,495

1,009
284,445

Finance and Administration
Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay

Total Finance and Administration

253,180
43,404

296,584

Legal:
Operations

Total Legal
126,000
126,000

Code Enforcement
Personal services
Operations

Total Code Enforcement

117,352
117,352

17,512
9,999

27,511

8,648
8,648

12,431
13,586
26,017

77,431
77,431

28,180
9,877

38,057

29,943
23,585
53,528

Total General Government 1,232,148 1,550,743 ( 318,595) 937,726

PUBLIC SAFETY
Law Enforcement:

Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay

Total Law Enforcement

1,119,848
157,836
64,056

1,341,740

1,078,902
181,885
64,056

1,324,843

40,946
( 24,049)

16,897

970,374
128,312

127,975
1,226,661

Fire Control:
Operations 351,154

351,154
304,090
304,090

47,064
47,064

291,227
291,227

(CONTINUED)
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES (CONCLUDED)
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

Year Ended September 30, 2002
(With Comparative Actual Figures for 2001)

2002

Protective Inspections:
Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay

Total Protective Inspections

Budget
(Revised)

270,052
111,996

15,300
397,348

Actual
Expenditures

259,233
65,468
12,926

337,627

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

10,819
46,528
2,374

59,721

2001

Actual

214,279
80,264

3,584
298,127

Animal Control:
Personal services
Operations

Total Animal Control-u

Total Public Sfety

3,544
980

4,524

2,090,242 1,966,560 123,682 1,820,539

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT
Sanitation:

Personal services
Operations

Total Sanitation

TRANSPORTATION
Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay

Total Transportation

PARKS AND RECREATION
Personal services
Operations
Capital outlay

Total Parks and Recreation

OTHER GRANT EXPENDITURES
Operations
Capital Outlay

Total Other Grant Expenditure

Total Expenditures

341,482
341,482

269,007
104,152
28,000

401,159

190,253
135,742
36,000

361,995

$ 4,427,026

17,127
371,636
388,763

254,526
92,322
27,526

374,374

191,318
132,638
34,904

358,860

90,534
50,650

141,184

4,780,484

( 17,127)
( 30,154)
( 47,281)

14,481
11,830

474
26,785

( 1,065)
3,104
1,096
3,135

( 90,534)
50,650)

( 141,184)

( 353,458)

309,317
309,317

251,628
156,307

8,000
415,935

119,770
161,562
26,114

307,446

3,790,963
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

A Special Revenue Fund is used to finance particular activities and is created out of receipts of specific taxes or other
earmarked revenues. Such funds are authorized by statutory or charter provisions to pay for certain activities with some

- special form of continuing revenues.
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CMTY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Total Figures for 2001)

Community
Redevelopment

Agency
2002 2001

Neighborhood
Revitalization

Grant

I I
Totals

2002 2001 2002 2001
I

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

$ 95,521 121,225
33,767 _____

- - 95,521
_ _ 33,767

121,225

TOTAL ASSETS $ 129,288 121,225 - - 129,288 121,225

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

$ 5,808 5,271
65,523

5,808 5,271
65,523

Total liabilities 5,808 5,271 - 65,523 5,808 70,794

Fund balances:
Reserved for community redevelopment
Reserved for economic development

123,480 115,954
- ( 65,523)

123,480 115,954
( 65,523)

Total fund balances 123,480 115,954 -- ( 65,523) 123,480 50,431

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 129,288 121,225 -- - 129,288 121,225
I
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

Community
Redevelopment

Agency

Neighborhood
Revitalization

Grant Totals
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Revenues:
- Taxes

Intergovernmental revenue:
Federal grants

Interest and miscellaneous

$ 87,017 69,063 - 87,017 69,063

1,365 7,296
- 462,855

1,365
462,855

7,296

Total revenues 88,382 76,359 -- 462,855 88,382 539,214

Expenditures:
Economic environment ( 80,856) (414,972) - (528,532) ( 80,856) (943,504)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 7,526 (338,613) - ( 65,677) 7,526 (404,290)

Other financing sources (uses):
Loan proceeds - 300,000 - - - 300,000

Total other financing sources (uses): - 300,000 - - - 300,000

Excess of revenues and other financial
sources over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses

Fund balances - October 1

7,526 ( 38,613)

115,954 154,567 ( 65,523)

( 65,677) 7,526 (104,290)

154 50,431 154,721

Residual equity transfer

Fund balances - September 30

-- 65,523 - 65,523 -

$ 123,480 115,954 - ( 65,523) 123,480 50,431
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are designed to account for the resources expended to acquire assets of a relatively permanent
nature. (Enterprise Fund resources are not included in this category).
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Figures for 2001)

Job Creation Other Capital
Grant Projects Totals

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
I

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

$ - - - 208,152 - 208,152
- 16,000 - - - 16,000

$ - 16,000 - 208,152 - 224,152

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Due to other funds $ 63,385

63,385

16,449

16,449

_ 63,385

- 63,385

16,449

16,449Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved ( 63,385)
Reserved for economic development _

Total fund balances (deficit) ( 63,385)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ --

( 449)

( 449)

16,000

- 208,152

- 208,152

-- 208,152

( 63,385) 208,152
- ( 449)

( 63,385) 207,703

- 224,152
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Figures for 2001)

Job Creation Other Capital
Grant Projects Totals

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue:

Federal grants

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Economic environment

Excess of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
- Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses

Fund balances (deficit) - October 1

Fund balances (deficit)- September 30

$ 517,850 16,000 - - 517,850 16,000

517,850 16,000 - - 517,850 16,000

(580,786) ( 16,449) - (580,786) ( 16,449)

( 62,936) ( 449) - - ( 62,936) ( 449)

- -- - 208,152 - 208,152
- - (208,152) - (208,152) -

- - (208,152) 208,152 (208,152) 208,152

( 62,936) ( 449) (208,152) 208,152 (271,088) 207,703

( 449) - 208,152 - 207,703 -

$ ( 63,385) ( 449) - 208,152 ( 63,385) 207,703
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

An Enterprise Fund is used to account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of governmental facilities and
services which are entirely or predominantly self-supporting by user charges. The significant characteristic of
Enterprise Funds is that the accounting system must be structured to reflect whether the activity is operated at a profit or
loss, similar to comparable private enterprises. Thus, the reports of Enterprise Funds are self-contained and creditors,
legislators or the general public can evaluate the performance of the municipal enterprises on the same basis as the
performance of investor-owned enterprises in the same industry.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINNG BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

ASSETS

Turkey Creek Totals
Waste Mosquito
Water Control

Water/ (Memorandum Only) I
Electric Water Wastewater 2002 2001

Current assets:
Pooled cash
Investments
Receivables

Accounts receivable
Other receivables

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories - at cost
Prepaid power costs
Prepaid expenses
Unbilled revenue

Total current assets -
nonrestricted

S 2,292,381

30,000

375,008 2,770,287 23,027 - 5,460,703

_ 30,000

2,110,428
30,000 -

210,673
134,338

2,232,696

215,796
34,858

7,209
822,561

17,174 36,640
2,000 5,629

80,981 1,262,764
- 1,044,317

1,281 - 265,768

_ 141,967

- 3,576,441

- 1,044,317

- 235,138

- 34,858

_ 7,209

- 950,138

365,387

15,355
1,249,145

932,231
256,133
537,414

7,209
630,354

19,342 - -

50,656 76,921 -

5,980,512 545,161 5,196,558 24,308 - 11,746,539 6,133,656

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

533,885
255,763

110,285 221,931 - 866,101

- 255,763

1,794,746
849,302

Total restricted assets 789,648 110,285 221,931 - 1,121,864 2,644,048

Property, plant and equipment
Utility Plant in Service
Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress

Total property, plant and
equipment

7,644,029 4,905,318
( 3,442,967) (2,165,525)

7,073,793 7,200
( 2,631,878) ( 936)

2,024,378 -

- 19,630,340

- ( 8,241,306)

- 2,024,378

19,425,963
( 7,648,753)

1,274,370

4,201,062 2,739,793 6,466,293 6,264 - 13,413,412 13,051,580

Other assets:
Bond issue costs 238,047 24,383 129,205 - - 391,635 329,829

Total other assets 238,047 24,383 129,205 -- - 391,635 329,829

TOTAL ASSETS $ 11,209,269 3,419,622 12,013,987 30,572 - 26,673,450 22,159,113
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Waste
Electric Water Water

Turkey Creek
Mosquito Water/
Control Wastewater

Totals
(Memorandum Only)
2002 2001

Current liabilities (payable from
current assets):

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other funds
Accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities
(payable from current assets)

S 476,072 13,021 31,550
56,426 8,166 5,931

250,858 52,153 3,443,301
30,877 5,852 16,313

814,233 79,192 3,497,095

1,899 - 522,542 1,107,813
- - 70,523 26,233
- - 3,746,312 1,232,696
- - 53,042 41,102

1,899 - 4,392,419 2,407,844

Current liabilities (payable from
restricted assets):

- Accrued interest
Current portion of long-term debt
Customer deposits

210,864 42,235
153,404 42,996
262,443 34,380

123,476 -

179,600 -

33,897 _

_ 376,575

- 376,000

- 330,720

402,027
356,000
217,013

Total current liabilities
(payable from restricted
assets)

Long-term debt - excluding current portion

626,711 119,611 336,973 - 1,083,295 975,040

Note payable
- Deferred credit - CR-3 decommissioning costs 255,763

Bonds payable 7,130,129

- 49,360 - -- 49,360
_ - - - 255,763

1,388,607 3,811,264 - - 12,330,000

48,062
214,111

12,618,867

Total long-term debt 7,385,892 1,388,607 3,860,624 - - 12,635,123 12,881,040

TOTAL LIABILTIES

- Fund equity:

Contributions
Customers
Farmers Home Administration

EDA and HUD
Capital Project Fund
Other

8,826,836 1,587,410

- 36,774

- 246,900

- 135,050

-- 37,758

- 372,305

7,694,692 1,899 - 18,110,837 16,263,924

924,325
180,400

1,247,171

844,478
7,538

-- 961,099 961,099
- 427,300 427,300
- 1,382,221 1,382,221
- 882,236 882,236
- 379,843 379,843

Total contributed capital - 828,787 3,203,912 - 4,032,699 4,032,699

- Retained earnings:

Unreserved retained earnings

Total retained earnings

Total fund equity

- TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

2,382,433 1,003,425 1,115,383 28,673 -- 4,529,914 1,862,490

2,382,433 1,003,425 1,115,383 28,673 - 4,529,914 1,862,490

2,382,433 1,832,212 4,319,295 28,673 - 8,562,613 5,895,189

S 11,209,269 3,419,622 12,013,987 30,572 - 26,673,450 22,159,113
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES N RETAINED EARNINGS
Year Ended September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)
I

Turkey Creek Totals
Waste Mosquito Water/

Electric Water Water Control Wastewater
Operating revenues:

Utility billigs
Other operating charges

(Memorandum Only)
2002 2001

8,670,246 8,353,088
454,061 330,212

I
S 7,126,638 582,400

428,174 12,766
927,154 34,054 -

12,483 638 - I
Total operating revenues 7,554,812 595,166 939,637 34,692 - 9,124,307 8,683,300

Operating expenses:
Electric power expenses:

Nuclear power generation and transmission 129,598
Purchased power and other 4,342,673

Personal services 369,887 143,205
Contractual services 5,375 63,688
Supplies 68,902 41,220
Repairs and maintenance 55,004 46,421
Billing and administration 320,238 125,022
Depreciation 267,828 147,160
Other expense 43,567 79,966

I

181,643

77,865

41,875
48,846

134,500
176,845
139,054

2,714

4,177

32
12,809

720

823

- 129,598 115,257
- 4,342,673 4,407,507

-- 697,449 656,076

- 146,928 178,064

- 156,174 78,129
- 150,303 155,042
- 592,569 458,510

- 592,553 554,332
- 263,410 197,159

ii

I

Total operating expenses ,603072 646 682 800,628 21,275 - 7,071,657 6,800,076

Operating income (loss) 1,951,740 ( 51,516) 139,009 13,417 - 2,052,650 1,883,224

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Interest and fiscal charges
Amortization of Bond Issue Costs
Connection charges
Grant Revenue
Miscellaneous income (expense)

36,830 678

( 477,845) ( 84,993)

( 12,742) ( 1,591)
- 158,794

219,474 39,928

21,922 -

( 252,601) -

( 6,068) -

149,475 .

1,244,623 -

124,059_

_ 59,430 183,342

- ( 815,439) ( 827,039)

- ( 20,401) ( 20,946)

- 308,269 166,177

- 1,244,623 -
- 383,461 42,630

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses) (_234,283) 112,816 1,281,410 - - 1,159,943 ( 455,836)

Net income (loss) before transfers 1,717,457 61,300 1,420,419 13,417 -- 3,212,593 1,427,388

Operating transfers out ( 531,246) ( 13,921) -- - -- ( 545,167) ( 880,106)

Net income (loss)

Retained earnings - October I
Residual equity transfers

Retained earnings - September 30

1,186,211 47,379 1,420,419 13,417 - 2,667,426 547,282

1,196,222 911,965 ( 372,715) 15,256
-- 44,081 67,679 -

$ 2,382,433 1,003,425 1,115,383 28,673

111,760 1,862,488 1,315,208
( 111,760) -- -

- 4,529,914 1,862,490
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for 2001)

ILj

I
Pension Trust

Assets:

General Employees
2002 2001

S 274,073 184,420

Police Officers
2002 2001

391,782 329,447

Totals
(Memorandum Only)
2002 2001

665,855 513,867

I

Investments

Net assets held in trust for
pension benefits S 274,073 184,420 391,782 329,447 665,855 513,867
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ADDITIONAL ELEMENTS OF REPORTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVENAENTAUDITJNG STANDARDS, ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER GENERAL

OF THE UNITED STATES; THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) CIRCULAR A-133;
AND THE RULES OF THE AUDiTOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

61



I l

ASSOCMES-
Certified Public Accountants

and Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners
and City Manager

City of Alachua, Florida

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Alachua, Florida, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2003. Except as discussed
in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Srandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

We did not obtain sufficient evidential matter to determine if property, plant and equipment recorded in the
proprietary find types is fairly presented at cost or estimated historical cost, due to insufficient detail within
the City's property records.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Alachua's general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 1
the determination of general purpose financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported L
under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However,
we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating
to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in
our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data consistent with the assertions of management in the general purpose financial statements. This
reportable condition is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 02-
1. ]
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned fnctions. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we consider the
reportable condition described above to be a material weakness. In addition, we noted other matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the City Commission in the
management letter dated April 3, 2003.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Commissioners, City Manager,
management, the Auditor General of the State of Florida and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified users.

C/A 4 4 ftL
Bradenton, Florida
April 3, 2003
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE F1NANCLAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2002

CFSA CFDA Pass-through
Number Number Grantoes Number Expenditures

Federal Awards

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through Department of Community Affairs:

Section 108 Loan Guarantee - Dollar General
Community development block grant program:

Job creation project
Housing Grant
WACO Project

14.248 01OD-SE99-99-15-XOI $ 2,195,000

14.228
14.228
14.228

OIDB-79-03-11-02-E38
02DB-89-03-11-02-HO1
02DB-89-11-43-02-E51

578,375
51,266
24,712

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Redevelopment 2,849,353

U.S. Department of Justice
Law enforcement block grant program
Law enforcement block grant program

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Commerce
Economic Development Administration:

Public works and facilities development program

U.S. Department of Environmental Protection
Passed through Florida department of environmental protection:

Drinking water state revolving fund grant

16.592
16.592

11.300

66.468

02-LB-BX-0235
01 -LB-BX-0982

04-01-04373

DWO115010

3,584

20,017
23,601

774,751 1

26,050

Total Federal Awards

State Financial Assistance

$ 3,673,755

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Florida recreation development assistance program
Florida recreation development assistance program
Governor's water panel wastewater grant
SFR wastewater
USDA water and waste program

37.017
37.017
37.039
37.039
37.039

F0247
F0249

SP90090

WWGI2079008P
Unknown

$ 15,352
7,705
4,583
8,800
5,960

Total Florida Department of Environmental Protection and state financial assistance

See independent auditor's report and notes to this schedule.

$ 42,400
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- ACPA
ASOCIATES

Certified Public Accountants
and Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT

Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners
and City Manager

City of Alachua, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Alachua, Florida, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement,
and the requirements described in the Executive Office of the Governor's State Projects Compliance
Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs and state projects for the year ended
September 30, 2002. The City of Alachua's major federal programs and state projects are identified in the
summay of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs and state projects is the responsibility of the City of Alachua's management Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Alachua's compliance based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governent Auditing Stands, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards, OMB
Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, Rules ofthe Auditor General require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state project
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Alachua's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City of Alachua's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Alachua complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs and state projects for the year ended
September 30,2002.
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Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City of Alachua is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs and state projects. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Alachua's
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program or state project in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purposes of expressing
our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
0MB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program or state project being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Alachua, Florida, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2003. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550, Rules
of the Auditor General and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of City of
Alachua, Florida Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Commissioners, City Manager,
management, the Auditor General of the State of Florida and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified users.

C/A 1Y
Bradenton, Florida
April 3, 2003
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results

General Purpose Financial Statement Section

Type of auditor's report issued: Qualified Opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified?

Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to
be material weaknesses?

X yes no

yes X no

Noncompliance material to general purpose financial
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards Section

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

- Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs:

$300.000

yes X no

Unqualified Opinion

Internal Control over compliance:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes

- Were reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

- Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Circular A-133 (Section .510(a))?

________ yes

________ yes

X no

X no

X no

Identification of major programs

IfPTFA vinlmhior4a Vamo of RFrlo-ral Preoble for (hietp-r
Afl_ _ * S Stl~~O a , '.' . = C . - I * I .ftSA

11.300

14.228

14.248

Department of Commerce - Public Works and
Facilities Program
Department of Housing and Urban Development -
Community Development Block Grant Program
Department of Housing and Urban Development-
Section 108 Loan Guarantee-Dollar General
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

State Awards Section

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A projects: $300.000

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major projects: Unqualified Opinion

Internal Control over compliance:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Were reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Rule 10.557, rules of the Auditor General of
the State of Florida?

yes

yes

X no

X no

Identification of major projects

rRRA Nulmber-s) Nme. f State Poiect

N/A NONE

Part II - Schedule of General Purpose Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 5.18 through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards.

01-1: Accounting Records*

Condition - Although improvement in the City's accounting records was noted in the current and prior
audits, there are several areas that still need improvement including long-term debt, pooled cash, interest
income, pension activity, fixed asset additions, depreciation, accounts receivable and accrued wages.

Criteria - The City needs standard procedures to record entries and to perform reconciliations on a
monthly basis to ensure accurate presentation of monthly and annual financial information.

Effect of Condition - Lack of monthly accounting procedures may result in errors and irregularities
which go undetected for extended periods of time and may cause financial reports to be misstated.
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CITY OF ALACHUA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2002

Recommendation - The City should formalize monthly procedures to assure these items are properly
accounted for in a timely manner, and as a sound practice of internal control and financial management.
We recommend that management evaluate the various responsibilities, assign duties to particular
personnel and create a system for review and oversight.

Status - The City has had the same findings for the past two years and improvement in their accounting
records is still needed. The City has hired additional staff for the 2002-2003 fiscal year and plans to
assign specific monthly duties to particular personnel.

Part m - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance,
including known fraud and questioned costs, related to the audit of federal and state programs, as
required to be reported by Circular A-133 Section .510 (a) and Rule 10.554(l)(J) 4, Rules of the Auditor
General of the State of Florida.

No reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including known fraud
and questioned costs, related to the audit of federal and state projects were identified.

Part IV - Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

01-2: Capital Improvement Plan*

The City continues to experience growth which may require significant improvements to the City's
existing infrastructure. It was recommended in the September 30, 2000 and 2001 audit reports that the

- City develop a formal capital improvement plan.

During the current audit, we noted that the City had developed and adopted a formal capital improvement
and finding plan to meet the anticipated future infastructure requirements of the City.

* Indicates finding was reported in prior
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ACSPA
Certified Public Accountants

and Consultants

MANAGEMENT LETER - LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners
and City Manager

City of Alachua, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Alachua, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2003. In our report, our
opinion was qualified because we were unable to obtain sufficient evidential matter to determine if
property, plant and equipment recorded in the proprietary fund types were fairly presented at cost or
estimated historical cost, due to insufficient detail within the City's property records.

Except as discussed above, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. We have issued
our Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and Internal Control over Financial Reporting,
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and Internal Control over Compliance Applicable to each
Major Federal Program and State Project, and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Disclosures
in those reports and schedule, which are dated April 3, 2003, should be considered in conjunction with
this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Those rules (Section 10.554(lXg) l.a.) require that we address in the management letter, if not already
addressed in the auditor's reports on compliance and internal controls or schedule of findings and
questioned costs, whether or not inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, fraud, and/or violations of laws,
rules, regulations, and contractual provisions reported in the preceding annual financial audit report have
been corrected. All inaccuracies, irregularities, shortages, defalcations, and/or violations of laws, rules,
regulations, and contractual provisions disclosed in the preceding annual report have been corrected,
except for those reported below under the heading Prior Year Findings and Recommendations.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(lXg) l.b.) require that we address in the management
letter, if not already addressed in the auditor's reports on compliance and internal controls or schedule of
findings and questioned costs, whether or not recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report have been followed. The recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit
report have been corrected, except for those reported below under the heading Prior Year Findings and
Recommendations.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(l)(g) (2.), the scope of our audit
included a review of the provisions of Section 218.415., Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of
public funds. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Alachua, Florida complied
with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.

70
Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants SEC Practice Section Private Companies Practice Section a Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants



The Rules of Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(g) (4.) require disclosure in the management letter of
the following matters if not already addressed in the auditor's reports on compliance and internal controls
or schedule of findings and questioned costs: (1) violations of laws, rules, regulations, and contractual
provisions that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred; (2) improper or illegal expenditures; (3)
improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g., the omission of required disclosures from the
financial statements); (4) failures to properly record financial transactions; and (5) other inaccuracies,
shortages, defalcations, and instances of fraud discovered by, or that come to the attention of the auditor.
Our audit disclosed matters required to be disclosed in the section under Prior Year Findings and
Recommendations.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(lXg) (5.) also require that the name of official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed
in the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City was
established in 1908 under the legal authority of Chapter 165, Florida Statutes. There are no component
units related to the City of Alachua, Florida.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(lXg) 6.a.), the scope of our audit
included a review of the provisions of Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, regarding financial
emergencies. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Alachua, Florida is not in a
state of financial emergency as a consequence of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida
Statutes.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(g) 6.b.), we determined that the
annual financial report for the City of Alachua for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, filed with
the Department of Banking and Finance pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in agreement
with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554(g)(6) c. and 10.556), we applied
financial condition assessment procedures as of the fiscal year end. It is management's responsibility to
monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same. No
findings were noted in this regard.

This management letter is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Commissioners, City
Manager, management, and the State of Florida Office of the Auditor General, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

a // a
Bradenton, Florida
April 3, 2003
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PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

01-3 Budgets

Due to an incomplete budget amendment, the City's September 30, 2001 financial statements reflected a
$843,172 deficit budgeted fimd balance in the debt service fund. An additional budget amendment
should have been made to transfer approximately $1.1 million from the Project Gold capital project fund
to the debt service fund. It was recommended that the City more closely monitor budget to actual
variations to ensure an absence of budget deficits in the future.

During the current audit, we noted no problems of this nature.

014 Wastewater Overdraft

The City's wastewater fund has typically operated at an annual loss and had accumulated a net overdraft
position in its unrestricted cash of $1,232,696 and $318,387 at September 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The City maintains operating cash for all funds in a pooled cash account, so the overdraft
position represents amounts due other funds of the City, not amounts due to the bank. In prior audits, it
was recommended that this interfimd liability be eliminated through Commission action by authorizing
one-time and annual transfers from other fimds to support these losses. The alternative would have been
to raise wastewater rates so that the fund is self-supporting.

During the current audit, it was noted that the status is still the same. We continue to make the
recommendation noted above.

01-5 Out of Balance Funds

During the prior audit, there were a number of funds that were out of balance. In a double entry
accounting system, funds should never be out of balance. This was brought to the attention of
management after year end and steps were being taken to correct this problem.

During the current audit, we identified three funds that were out of balance. We continue to recommend
that management take steps to identify and correct the problem.

01-6 Pooled Cash Reconciliation

During the prior audit, it was noted that the City's pooled cash and investment fund reconciliation was
not being accurately or timely prepared by management. During the current audit, we noted the same 1
problems. Management should analyze the procedures for summarizing and recording the pooled cash
transactions to correct the conditions that are causing reconciliation problems. Accurate and timely
reconciliations should be prepared, and retained, on a monthly basis.
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CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

02-1 Cash Management/Investment Policies

The City does not have formal cash management and investment policies. We noted that the City has
several non-interest bearing bank accounts with large balances. The City should adopt a formal
comprehensive policy for managing cash and investments. Funds in excess of current needs should be
temporarily invested in either a State Pool or a short-term investment account. The City needs to minimize
idle cash and increase interest income. Adequate control needs to be maintained over cash inflows and
outflows. The following items should be considered when creating a cash management policy: (a) cash
required for normal operations is maintained at the lowest level possible (b) hold a diverse portfolio and take
advantage of federal and/or state depository insurance options (c) any collateral available should be obtained
in the form of securities and (d) the underlying securities are held by the City itself. The City should become
familiar with the state statutes in relation to limitations on investing activities in conjunction with creating
formal procedures.

02-2 Debt

The City has several debt accounts within the general long-term debt account group and the enterprise finds.
These debt issues present numerous accounting issues that are not being accounted for properly (Finding 01-
1). The City should consider engaging a financial advisor to review all current debt issues and determine if
any economies of scale or monetary savings are available through consolidation or other actions.

02-3 Segregation of Duties

During our audit, we noted several areas where there is a lack of segregation of duties among accounting
staff. Currently one employee is performing all payroll functions, accounts payable, and cash disbursement
functions. The City needs to evaluate the control environment and separate duties accordingly. With the
addition of planned personnel hirings, the City should be able to overcome this problem. The City should
review all control systems and establish new duties for payroll and payable/disbursement functions.
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